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As a world-class racing
club, we act continuously
for the betterment of

our society
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CORE VALUES
“OMEE

World-class Leadership | £iEE
Uncompromising Integrity | E<F&HifE

Continuous Development | F&E#

Serving the Community | BR#& 8




INTEGRATED BUSINESS MODEL
mEEERN
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Through its integrated business model, the Club generates
economic and social value for our society.

In 2018/19, the Club returned 78.1% of its betting and lottery
revenue directly to Hong Kong in the form of tax payments and

charitable donations.

Racing &
Racecourse
Entertainment
EERESRE
By continually developing the quality
of our world-class racing, we bring pride
to Hong Kong and provide a racecourse
spectacle filled with entertainment
and sporting energy.
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Membership Club\ ;¢
BERH N\
Through their ownership of top-class
thoroughbreds, and despite Hong Kong’s
small horse population, our Members
make Hong Kong’s racing success
globally possible.

Charities &
Community
BERHE
Through our tax contribution,
charitable donations and proactive
community engagement, we work to
ERENHERATS  B2EES improve Hong Kong’s quality of life.
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Responsible *

Sports Wagering
& Lottery
BEHFREEERRES
Through our responsible and best-in-class
sports wagering and lottery services,
we help meet public demand, channelling

it away from illegal operators.
RMREFHHREEE  EZ RN
BERERESRERERRN
=R LU BIBA LS8R

IEERIEEE o V4
«*J),,a

*




PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
FEBE

Amounts Bet HK$ Betting and
by Customers 247 5 s Lottery Revenue

BEEREE +EBT BREREFEA

Football Betting

ERIEF
Revenue

by Business

E 3T 0N

1141

HK$ billion
+E8 T

HK$ billion
+EBT

‘ Horse Racing

Mark Six Lottery BE

REF
8.4 Football Betting
® o
‘ Mark Six Lottery
~E¥

84.4%
* Horse race betting revenue does not include fees
from commingling partners and royalty income
of the amounts bet locally are returned g,ﬁgmﬁggémégggmﬁm&g
as dividends, rebates and lottery prizes R
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23.3

Revenue
Distribution
WA 5B

HKS billion
THRERT

78.1%

of Club’s betting and lottery
revenue is returned to Hong Kong
SEBEEREZVAFH

78.1% OEEEE

Betting Duty & Profits Tax to
HKSAR Government

[ & B 45T E BT S8
EEREFEHR

Approved Donations to
Charities Trust
MEZEETESFHNIBEN

Lotteries Fund

Club Operations

Operating Surplus after
Donations to Charities Trust
BREZECETESERNKERS

® 6|6 o

Club Contributions
to Hong Kong

SEHEBHNER

Tax Contribution B ERE

Horse Race %5

2 Betting Duty @t 13.0
Football 23R

| Betting Duty ###t 7 7

Lottery ®5 2 1

HK$ billion Duty R
+EE T :

frofts mmem 0.5
Donations B

Approved Donations to Community
EEMBEEER

Charities and
- community
4 3 HKS$ billion projects supported 294
[ | +EET APHERLEIER

Lotteries Fund B
Contribution RHEELHEM

1 3 HK$ billion
[ ] +EBT

Employment Created £l&ER ##eE

21,821

Full-time and Part-time Jobs
2R RIS




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

This has been an exceptional year for Hong Kong’s world-class sport of horse
racing and for the Club’s commitment to the betterment of society.

SHE > EENERRESEGRFEEREXFHENTHEERRREM -




Conghua Racecourse, designed and built to take Hong Kong’s
world-class racing forward, more than lived up to expectations,
while its inaugural exhibition raceday showcased the enormous
potential of the Greater Bay Area. Hong Kong horses raced to victory
in all four LONGINES Hong Kong International Races for the very
first time. And Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts, the former
Central Police Station compound restored and revitalised by the
Club, received over 3.4 million visits in its first year of operation.

All this in a year which saw the Club achieve record wagering
turnover of HK$247.5 billion, contribute HK$23.3 billion in betting
duty and profits tax to the Government and HK$1.3 billion to the
Lotteries Fund, and approve a record HK$4.3 billion in donations to
294 charitable and community projects.

CONGHUA RACECOURSE
et 535

Conghua Racecourse, which opened last August, was conceived
with one objective in mind. That is to sustain and carry forward

the Club’s world-class racing and so ensure that we can keep on
fulfilling our purpose of contributing to the betterment of society.

Judging by the feedback and results, Conghua is already having

a very significant impact. Owners, trainers and jockeys have been
universally positive, while horses training at Conghua have notched
up no less than 109 victories. With more trainers using Conghua
next season, the standard and competitiveness of Hong Kong racing
can only get better.

Conghua’s success owes a great deal to the close co-operation
between Central, Guangdong and Hong Kong SAR authorities,
and my sincere thanks to them. | would also like to thank owners
and trainers for their support. | am delighted that they have been
rewarded with such success on the racetrack.

No less significant is that Conghua’s world-class facilities,
internationally recognised equine disease-free zone and highly
skilled workforce make it ideally positioned to support a world-class
equine industry in the Greater Bay Area, bringing both employment
and economic growth. Indeed, given its location in the superb
natural surroundings of Conghua District, we believe it can do a
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great deal to promote Conghua as a national and international tourist
destination. For these reasons we were very encouraged by the
announcement in February of the Outline Development Plan for the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, which includes
goals for developing equestrian sports and related industries.

Conghua’s inaugural exhibition raceday, which followed just

one month later, provided the ideal opportunity to demonstrate
this potential. With senior officials from the Central Government,
Guangdong Provincial Government, Hong Kong SAR Government
and Guangzhou Municipal Government in attendance, it was a
great success, and we were very encouraged to receive their
endorsement and support. A second exhibition raceday is planned
for October 2019.

INTERNATIONAL ACHIEVEMENT
ZEE

The world-class quality of Hong Kong racing was on display not just
at the LONGINES Hong Kong International Races, but at our newest
international raceday — FWD Champions Day.

In only its second edition, FWD Champions Day, which brings
together the FWD Queen Elizabeth Il Cup, FWD Champions Mile
and Chairman’s Sprint Prize, attracted no less than 16 international
Group 1 winners from five countries and jurisdictions. Once again
Hong Kong horses proved their strength, winning two out of three
races. But the standout success was Beauty Generation, who
cemented his reputation as one of the world’s top milers on turf
by taking the FWD Champion’s Mile. With four international Group
1 victories this season, he also spent six months at the top of the
world rankings.

Nor was Beauty Generation alone in his achievement. With Exultant
and Beat The Clock winning respectively three and two international
Group 1 contests this season, and new blood headed by BMW Hong
Kong Derby winner Furore, Hong Kong has a very promising new
generation of horses emerging.
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The bright future ahead for Hong Kong racing was nowhere better
demonstrated than by the continued growth of commingling, where
turnover increased to HK$18.8 billion this season. More significantly,
the Club provided commingling on its first overseas race meeting,
joining hands with Ascot and Totepool to offer the Ascot World

Pool on the five days of Royal Ascot. Quite clearly Hong Kong has
become the global hub for commingling, with the prospect of further
positive growth to come.

EQU ESTRIAN SUCCESS
SrESRIER

This year was no less memorable for Hong Kong equestrian sport
as we celebrated Jacqueline Siu’s gold medal at the 2018 Asian
Games. This was Hong Kong’s first ever equestrian gold medal

at an Asian Games and a proud moment for the Club, since
Jacqueline, along with fellow members of the Hong Kong team, has
benefited from training and support provided under our equestrian
performance plan.

This is one of several initiatives by the Club, including our support
as Founding Partner of the LONGINES Masters of Hong Kong and
Asia Horse Week, through which we are building the quality of
Hong Kong equestrian sport. With new opportunities opening up
within the Greater Bay Area, we look forward to further supporting
the growth and development of the sport.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER®E
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COMMITTED TO THE BETTERMENT OF SOCIETY

BHERER IS

As | have said, the Club has one single purpose and that is the
betterment of our society. Through our unique integrated business
model we deliver economic and social value for the benefit of

all. This includes, but is by no means limited to, our charitable
donations, which have quadrupled over the last 11 years thanks to
the success of the Club’s business strategies. Indeed, this year’s
approved donations of HK$4.3 billion set a new record for the Club.
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These additional resources have facilitated a transformation in the
Club’s charities strategy over the last five years, with the Charities
Trust now adopting a much more proactive approach. In particular
it is focusing on four strategic areas: youth; the elderly; sports; and
arts, culture and heritage. These were identified after discussions
with policymakers and field experts as being emerging areas where
the Trust’s resources could be utilised with particular impact. At
the same time the Trust is continuing to support the broad range

of community need, with a record 294 charitable and community
projects set to benefit from this year’s approved donations.

A key component of the Club’s proactive stance are its Trust-
initiated projects (TIPs). These are collaborative initiatives with
partner agencies, many of them cross-sectoral and many aiming to
pilot new and innovative approaches.

Currently 13 TIPs are in progress. Our newest, Fun to Move@JC,
which aims to encourage young children to develop habits of
physical exercise, and Jockey Club SMART Family-Link, which
seeks to enhance the effectiveness of family support services, were
officially launched this year.

Other TIPs are well advanced and are already delivering results.
For example, JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support
Network, which provides holistic support for children with autism in
mainstream schools, and the Jockey Club End-of-Life Community
Care Project, which aims to improve end-of-life care for the elderly.
Both have been extended following successful pilots.

A second important aspect of the Trust’s charities strategy is
capacity building, through which we seek to help agencies and
NGOs build their capabilities and access expertise and knowledge.
This applies to all of our TIPs, as well as to many other projects. It is
also the explicit purpose of InnoPower@JC, a fellowship programme
which seeks to foster innovation in the education and social service
sector, and The Hong Kong Jockey Club Programme on Social
Innovation, which provides management education to NGOs and
service agencies. Delivered by the University of Chicago Booth
School of Business, the programme is being run at the university’s
new Hong Kong campus, which was partly funded by the Trust.
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It was to widen knowledge, encourage fresh thinking and forge new BRAIEBER SR EEREEREE
connections across the NGO community, that the Trust inaugurated BOoBNRH  EEEEETELSHAREN

the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum two years ago. Bringing B [ZELA HMmBE | BREERE -
together delegates and thought leaders from Greater China and W T APER TR HNERNRRREM
around the world, the forum has proven a great success. The second  HfE - E_[EHREREFOATHEME &
edition, held in September, attracted over 1,400 delegates and 67 BB 1,400 BRRME7TABHEESE &
distinguished speakers, including two Nobel Laureates. Planning is EMN S BERREE - TEMES 12020
already underway for our next forum in 2020. FET > HRBETELCER -
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TAI KWUN
KEB

This year we celebrated the first anniversary of one of the Club’s
largest and most far-reaching projects, which is already yielding
substantial benefits for the community.

Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts is the product of a ten-year
partnership with the Government to conserve the historic Central
Police Station compound and revitalise it as a platform for the
development, appreciation and promotion of arts and heritage.

The results have exceeded even the Club’s expectations. Tai Kwun
has been hailed internationally and in Hong Kong as a model of
heritage conservation and a must-see visitor attraction. Above all, it
has been enthusiastically received by Hong Kong people. Visitation
over the past year has exceeded 3.4 million, making Tai Kwun the
most popular heritage site in Hong Kong.

Essential to Tai Kwun’s success has been an active programme

of events, exhibitions and performances, which have brought top
international talent to Hong Kong and provided a showcase for Hong
Kong artists and performers. With nine heritage and art exhibitions,
750 programmes and performances, and over 800 heritage docent
tours, Tai Kwun has been a busy, eventful and happening place.

No doubt we can expect an equally stimulating year ahead, as Tai
Kwun continues to build its reputation as one of Hong Kong’s most
popular and cutting-edge arts and heritage destinations.

MEMBERSHIP
2ESEHK

This year saw good progress on the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley,
which together with the Old Clubhouse forms The Hilltop in the Valley.
Comprising eight floors of dining, recreation and social space, all
connected via a link building to the Old Clubhouse, the new building
is due for completion in 2020. When it opens it will provide members
with many more dining, recreation and personal development
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opportunities. These include an action kitchen, healthy eating and a
Chinese provincial restaurant, while members will also have access to
a 50-metre swimming pool and a 2,200 square metre gym. And these
are just some of the new facilities that will be available.

The New Clubhouse is part of a comprehensive development plan
to improve the portfolio of clubhouses and the overall membership
experience. New programmes, facilities and services are being
developed with the aim of creating more rewarding and enriching
membership experiences. With so much in prospect, | have no
doubt that we will continue to be one of the world’s most admired
membership clubs.

| would like to thank my fellow Stewards for their support and
guidance over the past year. In particular | would like to thank

our Deputy Chairman, Mr Lester Kwok, for his invaluable support
and wise counsel. As always we have benefited greatly from the
dedicated professionalism of the Club’s Board of Management
under the leadership of our Chief Executive Officer, Mr Winfried
Engelbrecht-Bresges. Above all | would like to thank the Club’s
staff for their magnificent team performance, which has once again
enabled the Club to achieve new heights of world-class excellence.

Anthony W K Chow
Chairman

26 July 2019
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THERERE

This year the Club achieved excellent business results despite a challenging
economic environment. Total wagering turnover for the financial year (1 July
2018 - 30 June 2019) was HK$247.5 billion, up 5.8% on the last financial

year. For the racing season (2 September 2018 - 14 July 2019), total wagering
turnover was HK$247.3 billion, up 5% on last season, with total gross margin,
commingling and simulcast royalty income being HK$37.8 billion, up 3.8%.
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Racing turnover for the season was up 0.4% to HK$124.8 billion,
generating gross margin, commingling and simulcast royalty income
of HK$18.6 billion, almost on a par with last season. Total net
margin on racing, plus commingling and simulcast royalty income,
was up 1.0% on last season to HK$5.5 billion. Football turnover for
the financial year was up 10.7% to HK$114.1 billion, yielding gross
margin of HK$15.34 billion, with the Club retaining HK$7.67 billion.
Mark Six lottery turnover for the financial year was up 4.3% to
HK$8.4 billion, yielding betting and lottery revenue of HK$3.9 billion,
with the Club’s net commission being HK$0.5 billion.

As a result, the Club was able to return a record HK$28.9 billion
to the community in betting duty, profits tax, Lotteries Fund
contributions and approved charitable donations.

This performance is the outcome of a business strategy which
focuses on being customer-centric in our offerings and services as
well as striving for world-class excellence in everything we do. The
aim is to strengthen the Club’s unique integrated business model of
racing and racecourse entertainment, membership club, responsible
sports wagering and lottery, and charities and community
contribution, and in so doing ensure that we can keep on fulfilling
our purpose, which is the betterment of our society.

This drive for excellence is manifest in the quality of the Club’s
racing, where Hong Kong is now home to 12 international Group 1
races, 11 of which featured in the World’s Top 100 Group 1 Races
for 2018. Likewise, despite having one of the world’s smallest
thoroughbred populations, representing just 0.7% of the global
total, Hong Kong horses now rank among the world’s best. This
season they swept to victory in all four of the LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races for the very first time, while 25 featured in the
2018 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings. Among them
was Beauty Generation, winner of an unprecedented eight Hong
Kong races this season, including four international Group 1s, and
who spent six months at the top of the world rankings.
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Hong Kong is justifiably proud of these sporting achievements, not
least because they raise the profile of our city internationally. But
they also make sound business sense. Because in an increasingly
globalised world of sport, racing fans are only prepared to invest
time and money in the very best.

This is why customer-centricity is such an important part of the
Club’s strategy, where our efforts have focused on providing

a unique entertainment experience for our different customer
segments. At the racecourses, the Club has invested HK$7.0 billion
to revitalise facilities, while marketing programmes have created
international racing carnivals and themed events like Chinese New
Year raceday and Sa Sa Ladies’ Purse day, attracting an attendance
of 70,000 spectators and more. At Happy Valley we have established
“Happy Wednesday” as an internationally recognised brand, with
themed events such as Octoberfest and Bollywood Nights attracting
up to 19,000 fans from Hong Kong and overseas. As a result, “Happy
Wednesday” is now one of Hong Kong'’s top tourist attractions.

Customers have also benefited from the Club’s significant
investment in technology, especially the creation of differentiated
digital wagering experiences for targeted customer segments, with
60% of transactions now being carried out via digital channels. A
new customer information and wagering system will further increase
capacity and performance as well as provide more flexibility. The
first phase has already been successfully completed.

None of these achievements would be possible without the Club’s
ability to attract the very best racing talent. Here the Club has proven
highly successful in recruiting top international trainers and jockeys
as well as developing home-grown talent. This year saw Champion
Jockey Zac Purton ride an unprecedented seven international Group
1 winners and set a new record for prize money, while Vincent Ho,
winner of Tony Cruz Award, enjoyed a breakthrough season with 56
victories. In the trainers’ championship, John Size secured a record-
equalling eleventh title, while Frankie Lor followed up last year’s
impressive debut by winning two of the LONGINES Hong Kong
International Races and the BMW Hong Kong Derby to end the
season third in the trainers’ ranks.

To incentivise owners to invest in quality thoroughbreds and so
maintain the high standard of Hong Kong racing, the Club offers
some of the best prize money in world racing. Next season this
will rise to HK$1.3 billion. There will be increases for the High
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

Achievement Bonus, with eligible horses receiving HK$1 million

plus a top-up bonus of HK$500,000 as applicable. There will also

be substantial increases for the BMW Hong Kong Derby and for
Champions Day. The latter enjoyed a highly successful second
edition this year under its new sponsor FWD and is well on its way to
becoming one of the world’s classic racedays.

COMMINGLING

EAT)

Nowhere is the success of the Club’s strategy more evident than
in the global expansion of the Club’s brand and customer base
through commingling. Launched just five years ago, commingling
now represents 15% of the Club’s total racing turnover. As of next
season, the Club will have over 40 commingling partners in 14
countries and jurisdictions, with Hong Kong racing being watched
and wagered on in five continents.

Most significantly, this season saw the Club offer commingling on its
first overseas race meeting, joining hands with Ascot, Totepool and
other regular partners to offer the Ascot World Pool on the five days
of Royal Ascot. The additional turnover boost of HK$238 million
took total commingled turnover to HK$18.8 billion for the season,
generating net income of HK$780 million, up 11.4% on last year.

All of this underlines how Hong Kong has become the global centre
for commingling. Our world-class racing, competitive field sizes, high
integrity, extensive racing information, state-of-the-art technology,
and wagering pools with high levels of liquidity, have all made Hong
Kong a leader in international wagering.

CONGHUA RACECOURSE
WL 55

The strategic investment in Conghua Racecourse lays the foundation
for the next phase of the Club’s growth. Operating as part of a dual-
site model together with Sha Tin, Conghua provides much-needed
capacity, including state-of-the-art stables and superb training,
veterinary and rehabilitation facilities.
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Thanks to the excellent support and co-operation of authorities in
the Mainland and Hong Kong, operations over the past year have
been seamless. These arrangements have been further formalised

in the context of the Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area as well as under the framework
of the Hong Kong/Guangdong Co-operation Joint Conference.

International authorities have also been highly supportive, with Hong
Kong horses training at Conghua recognised as having the same
health status as those in Hong Kong. Major jurisdictions recognising
Conghua’s health status include the European Union, the United
States and Japan, and from June this year, New Zealand. Good
progress has been made towards achieving the same recognition
from Australian authorities.

Feedback from owners, trainers and jockeys has also been extremely
positive. | would like to express my deepest appreciation to everyone
involved in making Conghua such a success. In particular our horse
owners and trainers, who have provided such steadfast support.

Conghua is already delivering results, with horses training at
Conghua winning 109 races this season. Going forward, Conghua
opens up new opportunities for owners via the import of colts and
fillies with breeding potential. It will also facilitate the construction
of new stabling and training facilities at Sha Tin, which will be
comparable in standard to Conghua.

As the Chairman has pointed out, Conghua Racecourse is also a
pioneering example of what can be achieved in the Greater Bay
Area, as so effectively demonstrated by our exhibition raceday.
Indeed, in addition to promoting Conghua district as a national

and international tourist destination, we believe the racecourse can
play a significant role in developing a world-class equine industry

in the region, contributing greatly to economic development and
employment. With a second exhibition raceday planned for October
2019, we look forward to the further development of Conghua
Racecourse within the Greater Bay Area.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT

FOOTBALL
EER

Since 2003, the Club has been licensed by the Government to
provide betting on football as a means to combat illegal and offshore
bookmakers, provide a responsible and legal wagering channel, and
prevent the loss of community revenue.

Today, the Club is one of the world’s largest operators, with its state-
of-the-art products and risk management systems constantly being
refined to stay competitive against illegal and offshore operators.
The Club’s success this year was reflected in its record turnover of
HK$114.1 billion, which in turn provided HK$7.67 billion in tax to the
Government, with the Club retaining HK$7.67 billion.

The Club’s provision of football betting, like all its sports wagering
and lottery services, is part of its broader commitment to responsible
gambling, which includes support for advocacy and education.

The Club’s efforts are internationally recognised by the World
Lottery Association, which this year renewed the Club’s Level 4
accreditation, the highest possible, under its Responsible Gambling
Framework. The Club is the first operator in Asia to receive this
accreditation three times in succession.

CHARITIES AND COMMUNITY
ZERHEIEH

The ultimate purpose of everything the Club does is the betterment
of society. Over the last ten years, thanks to the success of its
business strategies, the Club has been able to provide ever higher
levels of contribution. This year was no exception. The Club
contributed a record HK$23.3 billion in tax, equivalent to 6.8% of the
total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department, while our
Charities Trust approved a record HK$4.3 billion in donations. The
Club now ranks among the world’s top ten charity donors.

The Club utilises its donations to support a wide range of charitable
and community projects, with a record 294 benefiting this year.
Some are Trust-initiated in partnership with NGOs, field experts and
Government agencies. Many are conceived and executed by service
providers themselves. Indeed the Club is keen to foster the NGO
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sector, with more funding being allocated to first-time grantees and
to smaller NGOs. Similarly the Club is supporting capacity building
to promote innovation and develop capabilities, as exemplified by
this year’s Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum. For we strongly
believe that a healthy and vibrant NGO sector is essential to effective
social provision, both now and in the future.

It is with the present and future needs of Hong Kong in mind that
the Charities Trust has adopted a more proactive approach, with a
special focus on four strategic areas: youth; the elderly; sports; and
arts, culture and heritage. Through projects like CLAP for Youth@JC
and CoolThink@JC we want to help young people identify their

life and career goals and develop the creative and computational
thinking skills they need to succeed in the digital economy of the
future. With Hong Kong’s population rapidly ageing, The Jockey
Club Age-friendly City Project has launched age-friendly city
initiatives in all 18 districts, while other projects are promoting
preventive healthcare, helping to address elderly mental wellness,
and enhancing the quality of end-of-life care. Recognising the
importance of sport and exercise, Fun to Move@JC is helping young
children develop habits of exercise that will hopefully last a lifetime.
And in its very first year, Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts
has made a major contribution to Hong Kong’s cultural life, opening
up new insights into the city’s history, showcasing some of the best
international art, and providing a platform for Hong Kong’s up-and-
coming artists and performers. With visitation exceeding 3.4 million,
Tai Kwun was Hong Kong’s most popular heritage site in 2018/19.

These are just some examples of the many projects in progress,
which extend well beyond the four strategic areas. For example, this
year work commenced on the Jockey Club Nature Conservation
Centre at Kadoorie Farm and Botanic Garden, which is being
supported with an approved Trust donation of HK$130 million. This
year also saw the opening of the Hong Kong Baptist University
Jockey Club Chinese Medicine Disease Prevention and Health
Management Centre, while in the area of rehabilitation services

the newly opened Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill Pre-school and
Children Service Complex is just one part of a major project to
redevelop the Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill Village.
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Complementing the work of the Charities Trust are the Club’s other
community initiatives. These include our support for equestrian
sport, where the Club is helping Hong Kong’s equestrian athletes
achieve success on the international stage, and our pioneering

use of football to help young people develop physically, mentally
and socially. | would also like to thank the many members of our
CARE®@hkjc employee volunteer team, who in the best spirit of the
Club have donated their time to worthy causes. In particular they
have joined numerous district-level programmes to help address
local needs and issues.

What unites all the Club’s efforts is an enduring belief in the strength
of our city, its “can-do” spirit, and its great compassion for those

in need. These are qualities we honour at our 18 Districts Cup

race meeting and during Community Day. Each year they are also
celebrated by the many thousands of people who join us for the
Riding High Together Festival. | have no doubt that these strengths
will continue to inspire Hong Kong, as they do the Club, as we
continue to work for the betterment of our society.

INVESTING FOR THE FUTURE
REARKR

As we look to the future, there is no doubt that the Club is facing a
challenging environment. With the global and Hong Kong economies
experiencing uncertainty, the Club’s business will likely be impacted.
Nonetheless, we are determined to forge on, investing in the Club with
the aim of sustaining our business and maintaining our commitment
to the betterment of society.

In this respect, Conghua Racecourse is an important foundation for
growth, both in Hong Kong and in the Greater Bay Area as a whole.
So too is commingling, which is helping to expand the Club’s brand
worldwide.

We will also continue to invest in the Club’s asset health. With
Conghua Racecourse now operational, we will move forward with
the redevelopment of Sha Tin stables. Racecourse revitalisation will
also continue, where we will soon move on to the fourth and final
phase. And we look forward to the completion of our new customer
information and wagering system.
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The Club’s members are the foundation of the Club, not least
because they own the horses that make our racing success possible.
It is therefore vitally important to develop and maintain a healthy
membership base. The New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, which will
open next year, is just one part of a strategy to develop the overall
membership experience and so maintain our reputation as one of
the world’s finest membership clubs.

In line with our business performance, the Club will maintain its
strong support for the community, with the needs of Hong Kong’s
growing population of elderly being a particular focus. We also look
forward to supporting Tai Kwun’s ongoing programme of exhibitions,
events and performances as part of our overall arts, culture and
heritage strategy.

Essential to the Club’s current and future success are its employees,
where we are fortunate to have a strong and capable workforce

led by a dedicated management team. The Club has invested
substantially in their development over the years, both to support

its business growth and to help employees achieve their career
potential. Under the banner of One Club, One Team, One Vision,

we will continue to build their strength. In the meantime, | would like
to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff for making the many
achievements of the past year possible.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Management and of all the
Club’s employees, it gives me great pleasure to thank the Board

of Stewards. Under our Chairman Dr Anthony Chow and Deputy
Chairman Mr Lester Kwok, the Board has provided outstanding
leadership and support over the past year. With its guidance, | look
forward to even more success for the Club in the year ahead.

Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges
Chief Executive Officer

26 July 2019
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The 2018/19 season proved historic for Hong Kong’s world-class racing.
Hong Kong horses swept all four LONGINES Hong Kong International
Races for the first time. The FWD Champions Day firmly established
itself as one of the world’s elite racing contests. And in its first year

of operation, Conghua Racecourse provided not just state-of-the-art
training and care to Hong Kong horses but demonstrated the potential of
the Greater Bay Area as a centre of world-class equine excellence.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Racing and Racecourse Entertainment

TOP 100 GROUP 1 RACES
EHER-—KE

Hong Kong’s elite contests scaled new heights in 2018, with 11
of its 12 Group 1 races named amongst the World’s Top 100
Group 1 Races.

A total of seven races featured in the top 50, with the Champions
Mile, Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup and LONGINES Hong Kong Mile
ranked equal highest.

Joining that trio in the top 50 were the LONGINES Hong Kong
Cup, Chairman’s Sprint Prize, LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint and
Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup.

Race rankings are determined by the average of the year-end
ratings of the first four finishers in each Group 1 contest.

Hong Kong Cup December
BBE 124

Hong Kong Mile December
BEIEHRER 128

Stewards’ Cup January Centenary Sprint Cup January

Hong Kong Sprint December
BBERRE 125
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Hong Kong Vase December

BB 128

Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup February
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QEIl Cup April
ZE®&E 458

Champions Mile April
BE—EBE 45

Chairman’s Sprint Prize April
EEERE 45

Champions & Chater Cup May
TBEEEE 54
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WORLD’S BEST RACEHORSE RANKINGS
tHRETCFLRFER

Hong Kong’s champion miler Beauty Generation was ably supported
by a host of proven Group 1 performers in the 2018 LONGINES
World’s Best Racehorse Rankings.

HONG KONG HORSES
IN WORLD RANKINGS
HEENESHRET
Beauty Generation’s relentless progress earned him equal fourth place fﬁ%ﬂi%

on a rating of 127. In doing so he became the joint highest-rated horse
in Hong Kong history. Able Friend had held that honour since 2014 for
his runaway win in the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile. It was victory in
the same race in 2018 which earned Beauty Generation his 127 rating.
The rating also made him the world’s joint top miler on turf.

Mr Stunning, Hong Kong’s top ranked horse of 2017, retained his
mark of 121 by winning the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint for the
second year running.

Group 1 wins for lvictory, Pakistan Star and Time Warp ensured
Hong Kong had five of only 58 horses rated 120 or higher. With a
total of 25 thoroughbreds rated 115 or higher, Hong Kong remains
the jurisdiction with the highest number of horses in the World’s Best
Racehorse Rankings relative to the size of its horse population.
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Celebrating Exultant’s victory in the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase.
[EEAR ] B HRZEREBMN - BERABRKERREBNEENE -

OWNERSHIP

The successes achieved by Hong Kong horses are a tribute to the support
of horse owners for the Club’s vision of world-class racing. They also reflect
the Club’s ongoing efforts to provide owners with the very best training
facilities and to incentivise and support their import of quality thoroughbreds —
not least through offering some of the best prize money in world racing.

There is no clearer demonstration of the Club’s support than the new
Conghua Racecourse. With its state-of-the-art training and horse care
facilities, Conghua is already helping owners achieve success on the
racetrack. Owners have responded positively, with Conghua having an
average population of over 200 horses this season, and more due to
arrive from the four trainers forming phase two of the project.

In addition to prize money, where next season the total pool will
increase to HK$1.3 billion, the Club also incentivises owners through
the High Achievement Bonus. This season a total of 30 horses received
the bonus for winning a Class 2 race before reaching the age of five and
having a minimum rating of 80. Next season the bonus will rise to HK$1
million, with an additional HK$500,000 for horses winning a Class 1
race or higher during their period of eligibility.
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Recognising the challenges owners face given the highly-competitive
thoroughbred market, from next season the minimum required rating

for Private Purchases made using permits granted in 2019 and beyond
will be reduced from 70 to 68. This will give Hong Kong owners more
opportunities to import promising previously raced horses, potentially at a
lesser cost.

The Hong Kong International Sale has long provided opportunities for
owners to purchase horses specifically selected to perform on Hong
Kong racetracks. This year’s sale, which was once again split into two
sessions, saw a total of 47 lots go under the hammer. An O’Reilly full
brother to the Group 1-winning miler Sacred Falls and a Snitzel gelding
out of the dual Group 1 winner Scarlett Lady were the joint top lots at
HK$7 million.
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PRIZE MONEY
L) PE

To maintain Hong Kong’s high standard of racing, and in particular to
incentivise owners to keep on investing in quality horses, the 2019/20
season will see overall prize money rise to HK$1.3 billion.

This includes significant increases for the three international Group 1
races run on our newest international raceday, FWD Champions Day.
The FWD Queen Elizabeth Il Cup will rise by HK$1 million, while the
FWD Champions Mile and Chairman’s Sprint Prize will each receive
an additional HK$2 million. The BMW Hong Kong Derby, Hong Kong’s
most important domestic contest, will also rise by HK$2 million.

ARREBEFERERSKE  EBE
g L Lengkong Cup HISES.000,000 8 B e TP
LONGINES Hong Kong Mile HK$25,000,000 BESHBRSRME13EET ©
S EE o & . =
fvioioﬁlg E%ﬁfth Ilc HK$25,000,000 AR SFEARERREENTRE
et M FE - BASEER-RENRSYEX
LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint HK$20,000,000 BRI SEREZSENBRDRRN
SREXERIDREE 10088 - MEFRREE -EEMNE
LONGINES Hong Kong Vase HK$20,000,000 FRERNBREEDF LFH2008EE T °
REREBE o BEEBITUABEAETBREE
FWD Champions Mile HK$20,000,000 HAMEE  TEEEWARESIEIE
EFERBEE-—2E 20088 T -
BMW Hong Kong Derby HK$20,000,000
EEFBITHAE

Chairman’s Sprint Prize HK$18,000,000
TEERR

Stewards’ Cup HK$10,000,000
EER

Centenary Sprint Cup HK$10,000,000
BRFLSERR

Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup HK$10,000,000
EERITEEER

Queen’s Silver Jubilee Cup HK$10,000,000

Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup HK$10,000,000
B BEEER

Prize money for group races, 2019/20 season

2019/20 FEEZ=oRERSE




These increases mean that our two international racedays, the SENTEESRESEFGM  MAERR
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races and FWD Champions B RERABENEEREFHRETE

Day, now rank among the world’s top five race meetings in prize ESANERS  BRoui2REaf -
money. The LONGINES Hong Kong Cup (HK$28 million) will HAREREBENRREIZ28008B T
continue to be the world’s most valuable 2000m Group 1 race on MAEEBRESRSM2000KEH —HE -

turf, with the FWD Queen Elizabeth Il Cup (HK$25 million) being the =~ ME#FRBRLZEHEMBEREH2,5008E T -
third most valuable. In addition, the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile BRRE=S o i REREEB—EHZ
(HK$25 million) and the FWD Champions Mile (HK$20 million) will MEHREEE-EELERESRSNW
be the world’s two most valuable Group 1 mile races on turf, while HEH—H—18E > #E55H2,50088
the LONGINES Hong Kong Sprint (HK$20 million) and Chairman’s TR 2,000&E T MREXREBEERIRE
Sprint Prize (HK$18 million) will rank among the very richest Group MEFERRIEHBEHESNHEHPMIEE
1 sprint races on turf. h—RIERE > ReDHIB2,0008B TR

1,800&8 7T °

LONGINES HONG KONG INTERNATJ == 77" =200

Class 25 =3 HKS$2,100,000

_~E g % _ E \ ZE-Jll Class3®=3  HKS$1,450,000

Class 45EMU¥E HK$967,000
| Class5%AM  HK$725,000

Mr and Mrs Michael Kwan Wing-lok (centre) celebrate Glorious Forever’s victory in the LONGINES Hong Kong
Cup with jockey Silvestre de Sousa and trainer Frankie Lor.

(BRI NREXRBBERT  SERKREAA(R) - BOFCENRTMES ZERHER -
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(left to right) Alfred Chan, Vincent Ho and Matthew Poon.
() PREERE ~ MIEFRIEAIE -

APPRENTICE JOCKEY DEVELOPMENT

REBEEmE

The Club’s Apprentice Jockeys’ School, part of the Racing Development Board,
enjoyed a landmark year as current and former pupils continued to thrive.

Matthew Poon (35 wins) and Dylan Mo (25 wins) both graduated
from the apprentice ranks by passing the career mark of 70 wins.
Poon also celebrated his first Group race win in Hong Kong, riding
Jolly Banner to victory in the Group 3 Bauhinia Sprint Trophy.

Alfred Chan returned from a successful spell in New Zealand and
Australia in March, riding nine winners in his debut season. Victor
Wong’s second season in Hong Kong yielded 38 winners, leaving
him sixth in the overall standings, until he was injured in a trackwork
accident in May. Meanwhile, former Apprentice School graduate
Vincent Ho enjoyed a breakthrough year, recording his 250th
success in April and a career-best season tally of 56 winners.

SENRERNERRBESITIIRER
Bg —REESEXRREERS LB -

BRBEDEREISET0ERE KA
EXERT > FRD RIS H ISR 255EE -
BRRFEEEEBEIRE  BiAlHE
BB T ZREFERAERBE

PRERZEARENENES - I
RPEH  SEIAQBRE  HBLH
SBEE Z—RERMERE _FEBHR
5% SESAEERPEZE  ZERAHE
153815 E » TERAMAEHER SN o M
BRSERARY > SF4RREEBE
2503555 - EITREASEFHEELE -
ZRNEBE5615HEE °
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CONGHUA
RACECOURSE

e b 5%

THE MAINLAND’S FIRST WORLD-CLASS
THOROUGHBRED TRAINING CENTRE AND RACECOURSE

PR 3t et SR AR AR AR S TR B AR PO K S35

With the official opening of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Conghua
Racecourse on 28 August, Hong Kong racing entered a new era. With its
state-of-the-art training and horse-care facilities, Conghua will enable the
Club to take its world-class racing to an even higher level of excellence.

But the vision for Conghua is greater still. As the Mainland’s first
international standard thoroughbred training centre and racecourse,
Conghua is ideally positioned to support the development of a
world-class equine industry in the Greater Bay Area.

38

BEESERICESNEFS A28 RIERM
7 EREDERERREBENER - BR
R SR SR B TSR I RE - BB
SEE—SPRAURRBESEHHIKT -

FEARLESRARENRRES -
LSRR EEERBRRRENARES
LI POKFS  AEXENEERERE
HRRFCERNTERS ©



STATE-OF-THE-ART FACILITIES
JCE R It

Spread across 150 hectares, Conghua Racecourse (CRC) offers
some of the most advanced thoroughbred training facilities anywhere
in the world. Its four training tracks include an 1100m turf uphill
gallop, which is the first of its kind in the Mainland and Hong Kong.
Extensive grass paddocks enable horses to graze during rehabilitation
or spelling, while a specially designed equine swimming pool helps
maintain horse fitness. Horses also have the benefit of the Mainland’s
most advanced equine clinic and farrier forge, both facilities being
significantly larger than those currently available in Hong Kong.

Operationally, CRC functions as part of a dual-site model together
with the Club’s Hong Kong training centre at Sha Tin. This is facilitated
by CRC'’s location in the Mainland’s only large scale and multi-
purpose equine disease-free zone, as well as by special arrangements
for the cross-boundary movement of horses to and from Hong Kong.

RALSIBLH 150 ALE » AshiE SRR
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AN IMPRESSIVE DEBUT
% E le\ \'_' ﬁ”{ "‘4\

The response from owners, trainers and jockeys has been universally
positive, with nine trainers — Tony Cruz, Caspar Fownes, John Moore,
Paul O’Sullivan, Danny Shum, John Size, Chris So, Me Tsui and
Dennis Yip — currently training horses at CRC. Four more trainers —
Frankie Lor, Ricky Yiu, Jimmy Ting and Benno Yung — will be using
CRC by the beginning of next season.

The benefits of Conghua were amply demonstrated by the 109
victories notched up by 78 horses immediately after their return to
Hong Kong. CRC’s current horse population averages over 200, but
with a total capacity at present of 660, many more will be able to
benefit from its world-class facilities.

il
The Haong Keng fickis Clih

—FREE - REEMEELH LS HREERT
BIEH - BEENURTMERLRE &
BERRE - BEH - WBED - HRE L
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CONGHUA RACECOURSE EXHIBITIDN RACEDAY

T R L

A 2

THE ERA OF WORLD CLASS RACING IN GREATES

23/03/ 2

Club Chairman Dr Anthony W K Chow (first row, fifth from right), Club Deputy Chairman Lester Kwok (first row, fourth from left), Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges (first row,
second from right) and Club Stewards (back row) toast a successful Exhibition Raceday with officiating guests, including Carrie Lam Cheng Yuet-ngor, Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Chief Executive (first row, fifth from left); Zhang Xiaoming, Director of the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council (first row, fourth from
right); Ma Xingrui, Governor of Guangdong Province (first row, third from right); Wang Zhimin, Director of the Liaison Office of the Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (first row, third from left); Chen Jianhua, Chairman of the Standing Committee of the Guangzhou Municipal People’s Congress (first row, first on
right); Ouyang Weimin, Vice-governor of Guangdong Province (first row, second from left); and Patrick Nip, Secretary for Constitutional and Mainland Affairs of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government (first row, first on left).

(FIHR) BSEXREAKREL (GHR) - BIEFEHEMN (£MW) -
EMBARE(ER) - BB AR EERER(AD) - I‘gﬁééﬁ%ﬁifﬁ(EE) PEREEESR(E
URBEBBHTRERHRAMEERRREERE(E-) °
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Nordic Warrior wins the historic first race, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Trophy.
[EE%E | BHH LS SE5HE — SEEFER -

EXHIBITION RACEDAY SHOWCASES POTENTIAL
OF CONGHUA
RESMLEERRIGCERED

The quality of Conghua Racecourse, as well as of Hong Kong racing,
was on impressive display during its inaugural exhibition raceday, held
on 23 March.

The first time Hong Kong horses have raced competitively on Mainland
soil, the day saw 15 top Hong Kong jockeys partner 44 horses in five
races, including the feature Hong Kong Jockey Club Trophy.

Witnessing this historic day were some 2,000 guests and visitors.
Among the distinguished guests attending were HKSAR Chief
Executive Carrie Lam, Director of the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs
Office of the State Council Zhang Xiaoming, Governor of Guangdong
Province Ma Xingrui, and Director of the Liaison Office of the Central
People’s Government in the HKSAR Wang Zhimin.

SH#3A230 SEEEERILESENR
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DEVELOPING EQUINE SPORTS
AND EQUINE INDUSTRIES IN THE
GREATER BAY AREA
EBAREESFTEHREXER

The Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, announced by the Central Government
in February, includes goals for further developing equestrian sports
and related industries through strengthening co-operation between
Hong Kong and the Mainland.

In line with this, the Club believes there is great potential to develop
equine sport and equine industries in the Greater Bay Area, bringing
both employment and economic development to the region. Potential
activities include horse and stables management, veterinary services,
equestrian competitions and exhibition racing.

Indeed, the Club has been a strong supporter of equine sport in

the Mainland for many years. The Club provided the venues and
logistical support for the equestrian events of the 2008 Beijing
Olympic Games. It did the same for the equestrian events of the
Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games, which were held at Conghua and of
which Conghua Racecourse is a legacy.

Also in Guangdong, the Club has been Principal Partner of the
Guangdong Provincial Equestrian Tournament since 2017. The final
round, the Hong Kong Jockey Club Final and Youth Championship,
is held at the Guangdong Huangcun Sports Training Centre, where
the Club has funded the construction of an international standard
equestrian competition arena.

Conghua Racecourse, with its world-class facilities, internationally
recognised equine disease-free zone and highly skilled workforce,
90% of whom are recruited from the Mainland, is ideally positioned
to support the development of a world-class equine industry in the
Greater Bay Area.
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The visitor centre provides an insight into CRC’s operations.

RIEFSREHERL  NAFEER -

SUPPORT FOR CONGHUA DISTRICT
TRt EERE

Conghua Racecourse also has great potential to support the
development of Conghua District. With its hot springs and superb
natural scenery, Conghua is a fast-developing tourist destination,
and CRC can help raise its profile both nationally and internationally.

This includes a new visitor centre at CRC, which introduces the racecourse’s
operations as a legacy of the Guangzhou 2010 Asian Games. A viewing deck
enables visitors to get a glimpse of the stables and training area.

In support of Conghua’s wider development, the Club has been pleased
to support a number of community sports initiatives in the district. These
include the renovation of two sports parks, which are the latest of five
Guangdong sports parks renovated with Club support. To celebrate, a
youth football exchange programme was organised, with the Hong Kong
U18 team on hand for the opening, and the Guangdong U17 team visiting
Hong Kong for the second Jockey Club Youth Football Academy Summit.

To further develop youth football in Conghua, the HKJC Guangzhou
Conghua District Schools Football Development Programme was
launched in March. Building on the Club’s successful Youth Football
Development Programme, senior football coaches from the Hong
Kong Football Association and Manchester United Soccer Schools
are providing training to youth football coaches in Conghua.

Meanwhile, Conghua’s junior high school students had the
opportunity to learn more about equestrian sport by joining a special
programme at the Guangdong Huangcun Sports Training Centre.
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The Club is supporting youth football development in Conghua.
BEXBRIENSIEERERE -

43



LONGINES HONG KONG
INTERNATIONAL RACES

REXRBBERES

44

The 2018 LONGINES Hong Kong International Races
(HKIR), held in December, attracted an exceptional

mix of Hong Kong stars and international raiders to the
Club’s annual week-long festival of international racing.
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Highlights included the LONGINES International Jockeys’
Championship, won by three-time British champion jockey Silvestre
de Sousa, and the HKIR Gala Dinner, which each year sees the
crowning of the LONGINES World’s Best Jockey. This year the
honours went to Frankie Dettori.

Alongside these sporting and social events were important industry
gatherings. These included a meeting of the executive council of the
Asian Racing Federation, chaired by the Club’s CEO, and several
International Federation of Horseracing Authorities committee meetings,
among them the Equine Prohibited Substances and Practices, Horse
Welfare, and Harmonisation of Racing Rules committees.

But everything was leading up to the HK$93 million showpiece. And
it did not disappoint. A crowd of 96,000 spectators witnessed racing
history as Hong Kong-trained horses recorded a clean sweep of all
four Group 1 contests.

Exultant, ridden by champion jockey Zac Purton, got the better of a
thrilling duel with Japanese filly Lys Gracieux in the LONGINES Hong
Kong Vase. Mr Stunning under Karis Teetan gave second-season trainer
Frankie Lor a first HKIR success by landing the LONGINES Hong Kong
Sprint for the second year running.

Beauty Generation cemented his status as one of the world’s elite
racehorses with a dominant second successive win in the LONGINES
Hong Kong Mile, while Lor gained a second Group

1 success as Glorious Forever led all the way under
Silvestre de Sousa to land Hong Kong’s richest race, the
HK$28 million LONGINES Hong Kong Cup.

Turnover for the ten-race meeting was HK$1.6

billion, the highest on record for the LONGINES Hong
Kong International Races, while commingling turnover
was a record HK$258 million. Of the 48 runners in the
four feature races, 21 were international Group 1 winners.

Silvestre de Sousa, winner of the 2018 LONGINES International Jockeys’
Championship.
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE

HONG KONG
VASE
&l

€ Winner: Exultant
BT ¢ [ RrRFAEAR
@ Owner: Eddie Wong Ming Chak
& Wong Leung Sau Hing
B THEHEIRSFM
@ Trainer: Tony Cruz
HEE : HRE

@ Jockey: Zac Purton
FRAD &

€ Winner: Mr Stunning
B BT [ALRERRS ]

€ Owner: Maurice Koo Win Chong
Bx  BEK#E

@ Trainer: Frankie Lor
HEED - BEER
€ Jockey: Karis Teetan

Bl - HRZR
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HONG KONG
CUP
REREBBR

€ Winner: Glorious Forever

BT  [Eg 2 ]

€ Owner: Michael Kwan Wing Lok
B Bk

@ Trainer: Frankie Lor
REE - BER

# Jockey: Silvestre de Sousa

BRED - ARIKHE

HONG KONG
MILE

REREFBERET

€ Winner: Beauty Generation

BB - [ XEBEA

€@ Owner: Patrick Kwok Ho Chuen
BEx  BHER

@ Trainer: John Moore

ARSED - AEE

@ Jockey: Zac Purton
Ba6T : BIE
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE

STEWARDS’ CUP
E5h

mn
Hong Kong’s Horse of the Year Beauty Generation recorded his fifth Group
1 success with an easy all-the-way defeat of rising star Conte. It was a
sixth consecutive success for Beauty Generation, prompting John Moore to

salute him as the best he has handled in his four decades in the top flight of
Hong Kong trainers.

EBEI[XEEA | UERIENZE ERNEEHEUTHE | BHES
& NESHBERFAE-RETE - ZRSH - [ZEER] CHEEEER
7B TR AR 55 B A0 S R S0 A R U B R A A AR 40 S BURER B Y BB o

€ Winner: Beauty Generation @ Trainer: John Moore
BB : [ XEEE] BRITED - NEEED

€ Owner: Patrick Kwok Ho Chuen @ Jockey: Zac Purton
BE:BER EaEm : B
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Winner: Beat The Clock

CENTENARY BIRET : [$2ED]

Owner: Merrick Chung Wai Lik

SPRINT CUP | ¥

Trainer: John Size

HRAFELSERR RS B

Jockey: Joao Moreira

Run for the second time as an international Group 1 contest, the
Centenary Sprint Cup provided a thrilling finish, with the John Size-trained

Beat The Clock finding just enough under Joao Moreira to hold former
stablemate Mr Stunning by a neck.

It was Moreira’s first Group 1 success for Size and his first at the top level
in Hong Kong since Seasons Bloom’s victory in the Stewards’ Cup on the
same card last year.

SERBEFLCEZREARRER - RBNE—F ENPFEHN[F2EY | H
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE
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® Winner: Exultant

CITI HONG KONG __- BRI : [ BERAEAR )

GOLD CUP g, o
CHERITEEER

Leung Sau Hing
BE: THEEIRFM
@ Trainer: Tony Cruz
BISET : BRE
Fresh from victory in the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase ® Jockey: Zac Purton
over 2400m and the Centenary Vase over 1800m, Exultant ESED : 3BiE
confirmed his status as Hong Kong’s new star stayer with
an emphatic defeat of Southern Legend, winner of the 2018
Singapore Group 1 Kranji Mile. It was a third Gold Cup win
for jockey Zac Purton and a sixth for trainer Tony Cruz, who
also won the race twice as a jockey.

[EFEIEAR | LR TRERB BN (2400K) R BB EL 4RI

(1800K)BE » S EBK2018FH K —RERHS —BELTE
DITES | BHEERTESSE  E-—SHRIYHEREEHE
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e EPmASMRESEES o
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QUEEN’S SILVER

JUBILEE CUP
ZERERSE

Hong Kong’s sole Group 1 contest over 1400m produced a rematch
between the first two home in 2018, but this time the result was much more
decisive as Beauty Generation forged clear to master Beat The Clock by a
length and three-quarters. It was Beauty Generation’s sixth successive win
of the season, all of them in elite contests.

LERBLCSHERNBRE ——THRRER 1400/ —RE  ZFSE [ XBEHAH
DEFOEY | BERSRE  BRLSHARBEAREEE  [XEEE] KLU
—XED=FUzEER[FIEY | RYER  BAKREERDRATNES -

@ Winner: Beauty Generation @ Trainer: John Moore
BSHHB T [ R BRISED © AR

€ Owner: Patrick Kwok Ho Chuen @ Jockey: Zac Purton
BE  EER ERET - EIE
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GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
TRBEERE

BMW
HONG KONG

DERBY EEEBIMAE

One of Hong Kong’s most cherished prizes, this year’s Derby
was billed as a master versus apprentice contest. And the
pupil triumphed as Frankie Lor’s Furore quickened smartly
to hold the John Size-trained Waikuku. It was a second
Derby win for rider Hugh Bowman, who scored on Werther in
2016. An elated Lor reflected on “a dream come true” as he
celebrated his first Derby win in just his second season since
leaving the stable of friend and mentor John Size.

EERBTHABRABREBRSNES 22— SHEERTH
BUGENBERENES2MEHE  ZFREE2EENHR
BIEBXBE TR ES MR  BRENBETH[ERRIE
B X E2016FBHBFATEI & - FTRWMEULIRBRER -
BREZEASNESREIRZ T MABRTEMTR - HREER
E-FEERTIIHAR  BEE2EEXRR[E8RE]-

€ Winner: Furore @ Trainer: Frankie Lor

BHET : [HwRE] REE  BER

@ Owner: Lee Sheung Chau € Jockey: Hugh Bowman
BE  F=HA
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FWD

CHAMPIONS
DAY E#RBEEESA

This season saw the second edition of Champions Day. The Club’s new
spring showpiece combines three elite Group 1 contests on one card - the
Chairman’s Sprint Prize, the FWD Champions Mile and the FWD Queen
Elizabeth Il Cup. This year it attracted high-class raiders from Japan,
Australia, New Zealand and the UK.
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€ Winner: Win Bright
BHBT [ AR

€ Owner: Win Co Ltd
B : Win Co Ltd

@ Trainer: Yoshihiro
Hatakeyama
TR BUER

€ Jockey: Masami
Matsuoka

FuEm - AR IEE

FWD
QEIll CUP =&zmaes

Exultant and Lys Gracieux renewed their Hong Kong Vase rivalry
only for Win Bright — least fancied of three Japanese raiders —

to prove just too strong in a pulsating finish. A searching gallop
brought out the very best in Win Bright, who beat eight Group 1
winners as he broke the Sha Tin 2000m track record with a new
best of 1m 58.81s. Winning trainer Yoshihiro Hatakeyama and
winning rider Masami Matsuoka were competing in Hong Kong for
the first time and celebrated accordingly as Japan recorded a fifth
success in this hugely prestigious contest.

[RFESAEAR | B [ER O | #EBMRBERBRE - HAASMER
[BHXR | RESRERRRBYHER - 125881 WERESE  BHE
SN\L—RBEE  BEEFHRMBLEER - RRFRIFYHEES2000 KM
SIACSRATRE o RARB=RUE  REMEB LT EREMAMESER
FESREHRNE  ERAAFLERSERERARTE -




GROUP RACES - HIGHLIGHTS
DRBEERE

FWD

CHAMPIONS MILE
EfRREEE-—EH

Records stood to fall if Beauty Generation could repeat his 2018
Champions Mile success. And Hong Kong’s master miler — by now

the highest rated turf horse in the world following the retirement of
Australian superstar Winx — lived up to his billing in style, easing clear of
Singapore Sling and Simply Brilliant. John Moore’s gelding became the
first horse in Hong Kong history to win eight races in a season and also
surpassed Viva Pataca as Hong Kong’s all-time highest prize money
earner with a career total of HK$84.8 million.

BEMBERERE [EALF I RIRE - BB —EFE [ XEEHR | S B AEERT
PERENEMRES  BEUHKNEEEE 2 - EERIHZIRLCE [ XBE
B SO - BRI 2MNAS | M G771 86 - mEEiTE -
ERAEBERECAIT —Z/ BN ER - SIS T ARASEDIIR - 2
EEBRRSRZSRENERN  REREH8480EB T - ITH B2 | (VELE -
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Winner: Beauty
Generation

BHET [ XEEE

Owner: Patrick Kwok Ho
Chuen

BX  BHR

Trainer: John Moore

ARSED - A FEEEE

Jockey: Zac
Purton

Fifm &R

@ Winner: Beat The Clock
BHET  [F9EY

CHA' RMAN ’S 4 Ov;le'r;ﬁl\gfrrick Chung Wai Lik
S P RI NT PR |ZE L 2 :Igfain(-ar: Jfﬁ Size

ERERE

RESED - BENE

@ Jockey: Joao Moreira

Fifh - EEAL

Australian visitor Santa Ana Lane lined up as the world’s highest-rated sprinter
after a commanding Group 1 success at Randwick but could never quite land
a knock-out blow, running fourth as Beat The Clock pounced on front-running
Rattan close to home. It was a first success in the race for jockey Joao Moreira
and a third for trainer John Size. Beat The Clock, who had finished third behind
stablemate Ivictory a year earlier, recorded his second Group 1 success and
has now finished third or better in all of his 21 career starts.

[FREY | ZFREFEBREERE[ATAR] 2T  BEFE  SERERNE
THEGZRELRN [ KEE | SHE-E-LETE - ERETNEARSGE
FREER REMFNBAF=EER - [F2EW | ESHE21R  2EUHI=F

&R AZFIREMNR R [ERHE | RERNZHFTIRSNERESR - 25 —LEH
HEH-RE - SHEEED -
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STANDARD CHARTERED

CHAMPIONS
& CHATER CUP
T8 B G

Hong Kong'’s final Group 1 of the season provided notable milestones

as Exultant galloped on relentlessly to beat Rise High and Dark Dream.
Winning trainer Tony Cruz collected his sixth Champions & Chater Cup in
seven years. Zac Purton, who rode six winners on the day, became the first
jockey to record seven Group 1 wins in a Hong Kong season. And Exultant,
having already won the Hong Kong Vase, became the first horse to land
both of Hong Kong’s Group 1 prizes over 2400m in the same season.

[ | R AT T HBME - NETEEEET BB T —H - LR%iE
SENBHER|NEERN] BHASFERER 588 RHHRBRLE
AT % —IREE - RATBERETEHNE—Z=E HMIE2400°RHI—4R
B MABAERELFRNESEZBIERE - EFSH - HENEEER
HRENEES  FREVRNETENE S5 REES -

€ Winner: Exultant
B ETUT : [BEEFREAR

4 Owner: Eddie Wong Ming
Chak & Wong Leung Sau Hing
B THEERIRER

@ Trainer: Tony Cruz

RESED - HRE

@ Jockey: Zac Purton
Fahm : BUE
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A YEAR OF CHAMPIONS
BEAEEESF

Records tumbled as Beauty Generation ended a flawless campaign,
becoming the first Hong Kong horse to win eight races in a season,

among them four international Group 1 races. Viva Pataca’s career
prize money record was also eclipsed as the six-year-old took his
Hong Kong earnings to HK$84.8 million. There were international
accolades too. Having been rated the world’s joint best miler on turf
in the 2018 LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings, Beauty
Generation went on to spend the first six months of 2019 at the top
of the world rankings. So it was really no surprise when he took the
honours in the 2019 Champion Awards, being crowned Hong Kong
Horse of the Year and Champion Miler for the second year running.
He was also voted Most Popular Horse by the racing public.

Exultant made striking progress during his second season in Hong
Kong, winning four of eight starts and becoming the first horse to
land the LONGINES Hong Kong Vase, the Citi Hong Kong Gold Cup
and the Standard Chartered Champions & Chater Cup in the same
season. His exploits saw him proclaimed Champion Middle-Distance

(left to right) Zac Purton gives the thumbs up as he celebrates his
third Champion Jockey title with Joao Moreira. Champion Trainer
John Size. Patrick Kwok Ho-chuen and family celebrate Beauty
Generation’s three Champion Awards.
(ER)BESEE=ERETESRN - MEMETRSREN ; 8
NERESETEERENM  FEPERELXZFHECTEAFREE
232 B[ XBER ] RE=EAE -
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Beaut Generation
EEEE

Champion Middle-Distance Horse

RIEFERS

Exultant
RFRFAE 4K

Champion Miler
%{d’- ui/\

Beauty Generation
EREE

Champion Sprinter

REFRS

Beat The Clock
EPEW

Champion Stayer
BRERRES

Exultant
BFRFRE 4%

Champion Giriffin
BREFHS

Champion’s Way
B REE

Most Improved Horse

BRAESEET

Champion’s Way
R

Champion Trainer

BEHRTE

John Size

Champion Jockey
o E R

Zac Purton
B

Tony Cruz Award
HRER

Vincent Ho
£

Most Popular Jockey of the Year*
BB *

Zac Purton
B

Most Popular Horse of the Year*

RZELET -

Beauty Generation
SR

Most Admired Overseas Horse of the Year*

REXBEREREBIHFT

Winx
EHTF

* public vote A ARIREREH

EBOE 8BS NESRE

XBREAISEATHBNERE  RIHZELE  RATBERECRE—
ZNBHER  HhMUBRER—RE BEEAREMRBERE8,4808
B REEBERBERZSRENER - TR RS ] WERLHE - 1t

XBEEIBREN  R2018FREXRTRAFEFLHEE - AIHE
RIS HRESNEL—1EEE  ER2019 ¥ FEREHEEE - [XBE
AJBRENLESR ROZETEAGRERACRF=-BAR  UTFEE
B BRER[BBEEE IRIEE—EEIIN  [ZEEE] FTRARKE
TEE&RIBLET]-

[FFSER | E-FHBHE  SERBARE - \BDE  ERECERN
E—ZFBHREXREBMN  BERTEESENRE TEBET R - BAM
KEREPERS IR RERRS ] [F2EY | BER [RERES ]
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- X -
Thirteen-time champion jockey Douglas Whyte receives his Lifetime Achievement Award.
13ECERMEBESTRBR I HHE -

Horse and Champion Stayer, while Beat The Clock’s international
Group 1 wins in the Centenary Sprint Cup and Chairman’s Sprint
Prize earned him the Champion Sprinter title. Champion’s Way was
another to be saluted in two categories. John Size’s three-year-old
won six from seven, progressing from a rating of 52 to 108, and in
doing so became Champion Giriffin and Most Improved Horse.

Zac Purton secured his third Champion Jockey title in dominant
fashion. The Australian fell two short of Joao Moreira’s single
season record of 170 winners but did break two of the Brazilian’s
previous bests, winning seven of Hong Kong’s twelve international
Group 1 contests and ending the season with a record of just under
HK$235 million in prize money. Unsurprisingly he was also voted
Most Popular Jockey. Vincent Ho received the Tony Cruz Award for
leading homegrown rider after a breakthrough season which saw
him finish fourth in the table with 56 wins.

The race for Champion Trainer dominated headlines in the closing
weeks. John Moore launched a persistent challenge to his old rival
John Size, drawing level briefly during the penultimate meeting at
Happy Valley. However, Size drew three clear with a double at Sha
Tin’s Season Finale, ending the season with 78 winners and an
eleventh title.

The season closed with a dramatic last-race success for Vincent Ho
and Fast Most Furious, followed by trophy presentations including a
Lifetime Achievement Award to mark Douglas Whyte's spectacular
riding career. Turnover for the final day exceeded HK$1.96 billion,

a new record for an 11-race meeting, while the total attendance of
over 51,000 was the highest for a season finale since 2012.
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Vincent Ho, winner of the Tony Cruz Award.
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KO BSNFHRE

HONG KONG-TRAINED HORSES THAT ACHIEVED AN
INTERNATIONAL RATING OF 115 OR ABOVE IN 2018/19
201819 EERBBR IS 1150 H U ENEBEE

127
V'S BEAUTY GENERATION
EBER
¢ Patrick Kwok Ho Chuen
SpER
J Moore

HEEEED

IVICTORY
XTFHH
Michael T H Lee &
Dr Henry Chan Hin Lee
FFEERITERE
J Size
\¢ 245

MR STUNNING
AR

Maurice Koo Win Chong
K

F C Lor

EER

120
. BEAT THE CLOCK
EoEY
. Merrick Chung Wai Lik
EREE
J Size
¢ 8245

120
EXULTANT
B RS AR
Eddie Wong Ming Chak &

Wong Leung Sau Hing
THEEIRFM

120
* TIME WARP
¢ Martin Siu Kim Sun
wmBIE
A S Cruz
* ERE

119
D B PIN
* )
¢ Samuel Wong Yin Shun
BER
J Size
® sow

119

* GLORIOUS FOREVER
Bmegzx

¢ Michael Kwan Wing Lok
Bk B

F C Lor
* EEZR

118
V'S HOT KING PRAWN
FESRE
Lau Sak Hong
* 2I85E
J Size
® sow

RATTAN
REE

Wong Ting Bor
EFER

R Gibson
=k i

117
¢ RISE HIGH
BEHi BB
¢ Au-dela Syndicate
BrHE AR

C Fownes
\¢ FEMH

116
CONTE
\4 LEAE
* Philip Chan Kwok Chung
o B B
J Size
* L

LITTLE GIANT
NEA

Wizard Syndicate
BAmER

D J Hall

HE

116

& PAKISTAN STAR
BEZE

€ Kerm Din

P O’Sullivan
g F iRz

116
* SOUTHERN LEGEND
JIsTE 5
* Boniface Ho Ka Kui
AR
C Fownes
4 T EH

BEAUTY ONLY
E: PN
Eleanor Kwok Law
Kwai Chun & Patrick
Kwok Ho Chuen
EEYEIER
A S Cruz

* HRE

115

¢ DARK DREAM
=R
Albert Hung Chao Hong
ik
F C Lor
* E=2

115

V'S EAGLE WAY
i

Siu Pak Kwan
¢ ®mEE

J Moore
¢ omegn

FIFTY FIFTY

At+ET

Lee Wan Keung & Lee
Wong Wai Kuen
FERETEHR

L Ho

AR

NOTE: All ratings to be ratified by the
LONGINES World’s Best Racehorse Rankings

A S Cruz Conference in December 2019.
HRE B RIS ASER 20195 12 BETHR
ERUAFTEFRPFLETERER -
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RACECOURSE ENTERTAINMENT
HIRIR g

At the heart of Hong Kong’s world-class racing are its two
racecourses at Sha Tin and Happy Valley, where the focus is on
creating a unique social, sporting and entertainment experience.

Sha Tin, home to all 12 of Hong Kong’s international Group 1 races,
marked its 40th Anniversary this year with a special raceday and

a series of events celebrating its close relationship with the local
community. This was in addition to such marquee events as the
LONGINES Hong Kong International Races, FWD Champions Day
and Chinese New Year raceday, which brought over 96,000 fans to
Sha Tin in search of a lucky start to the New Year.

Happy Valley, whose Wednesday night parties have made it a top
tourist attraction, continued to offer an exciting mix of racing action
and themed entertainment. Alongside the traditional festivities

at Christmas, Chinese New Year and Easter, fans celebrated
Octoberfest, Valentine’s Day and St Patrick’s Day. There were also
Australian, Japanese, Korean, French, Brazilian and Bollywood
nights, not to mention the ultimate thrill of the International Jockeys’
Championship, featuring some of the world’s best riders. All this
and the second edition of the Hong Kong Airlines Million Challenge,
where the honours went to the John Size-trained Country Star.

Both racecourses have been substantially revitalised as part of
the Club’s HK$7.0 billion Racecourse Master Plan, with boxes

and restaurants customised to meet the needs of different market
segments. Several venues have won accolades, including the
Owners Box 1/F at Sha Tin, which won a record eight awards at
the 2019 International Property Awards. This year saw the opening
of The Farrier at Happy Valley, with further venues to be opened at
both racecourses next season.
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FEATURE RACEDAYS
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FEATURE RACEDAYS
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SEASON FINALE 1
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This year saw good progress on the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, which
together with the Old Clubhouse forms The Hilltop in the Valley. This is

just part of a comprehensive development plan to improve the portfolio

of clubhouses and the overall membership experience. New programmes,
facilities and services, all supported by new technology, will create more
rewarding and enriching experiences. Together with the opportunity to pursue
thoroughbred horse ownership and to contribute to the Club’s purpose of
society betterment, this is what makes membership of the Club truly unique.

SH > BELHSHFIRERRY - HSMERES A [ The Hilltop in the
Valley | - SEHNEITEZEMNBRRENS 0 TESHRENRSE - URREASERER -
BRIEMIRESN  BSEHERHMBHL  HHENED  RENRE  AEERIEES
LERTNER - I/ EESEAREZTRFETY  T2REESEREXFHEEN
T E—SPTRETSSENEET -
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THE HILLTOP IN THE VALLEY

At more than double the existing space, the new Hilltop in the
Valley, which comprises the existing Old Clubhouse and the New
Clubhouse under construction, will offer a signature destination for
members to pursue personal fitness, spend time with family and
friends, and enjoy a wide range of dining choices.

Rising from a podium with car parking beneath, the New Clubhouse,
due to open in 2020, comprises eight floors of dining, recreation and
social space. This will be connected to the Old Clubhouse via a link

building which will itself accommodate a wine bar and shop, as well

as an expanded LEVADE retail outlet.

A 50-metre swimming pool, a 2,200 square metre gym and four
rooftop tennis courts will offer new and challenging fithess options.
The expanded children’s play area, relocated from the Old Clubhouse,
will encourage children to explore, develop and learn. Dining capacity
will increase by half, with a range of options to choose from, including
live kitchens offering a choice of cuisines, healthy eating, and a
Chinese restaurant serving provincial cuisine. On the top floor, a bar,
restaurant and games area will be the perfect place to socialise and
become immersed in a world of sporting entertainment. All this can be
enjoyed in a building which commands spectacular views over Happy
Valley and to the newly renovated Shan Kwong Road Park below.

Meanwhile, the Old Clubhouse, with its classic ambience and
tranquility, will also see some physical and service enhancements.
Indeed this has already begun, with new menus being introduced at
The Gallop and Six Furlong.

OPERATIONS REVIEW Membership
X¥omE 28
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ENHANCING THE MEMBERSHIP EXPERIENCE

RASERR

This year saw several improvements to communication channels.
The membership website was enhanced, giving more flexibility
in searching for events and offerings by member need. A new
chatbot function also enables members to obtain personalised
online assistance.

In April, a new-look badges was launched as a single-language
edition, with members invited to choose between an online or a
printed version in either English or Chinese. This “go green” initiative
will cut paper usage by an estimated 38%.

To provide for faster and more convenient payment, all membership
cards are currently being upgraded with a contactless payment feature.

From 2020, RFID technology will be implemented in car parks,
which will allow for faster entry and exit and also simplify the car
park label process.

Closer to nature at Beas River
BRonE X BRER—BIIFENER

|

Beas River Country Club (BRCC) has always been the perfect place to
connect with nature. Thanks to improvements in the Members’ Garden
there are now many more opportunities, with a greater variety of birds,
butterflies and dragonflies.

Members can also join the BRCC Nature Discovery and Nature
Explorer programmes, a series of workshops and activities,
including bird and butterfly watching and Geopark tours, which
introduce the natural beauty of the New Territories.
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(above and right) The Owners’ Lounge at Conghua Racecourse
(ERABEVRILESEEREE

HORSE OWNERSHIP

The opening of Conghua Racecourse last August means that, together
with the existing amenities at Sha Tin Racecourse, members now have
access to some of the finest thoroughbred training facilities anywhere in
the world. These include a dedicated Owners’ Lounge, with relationship
ambassadors on hand to assist with stables and trackwork visits.

To learn more about Conghua Racecourse, as well as the outstanding
natural scenery of Conghua District, members were able to enjoy a
series of exclusive tours throughout the earlier part of the season.

As always, members celebrated their shared passion for racing
at Members’ Day, which this year carried the theme, “Celebrating
the Spirit of Champions”. In July, the year’s best horses and their
owners were honoured at the season-end Champion Awards.

MEMBERS 1A

OPERATIONS REVIEW Membership
X¥omE 28

RALFHEN2018F 8 ARLA - ERWHESE
SHRARRE  AEERHEERE—H=
MERAEERIIRRNE - EPEESE
BEER  THEBAESEZHTEISHE
FEMBEFTIR -

EREERR  BERARET RN
SEESEZ2HEE  EEEE—IRAR
5%  ERRERICERENEARASH -

M—F-EESEHEESCLNEER
S LA [ Celebrating the Spirit of Champions ]
AEHE FERE7TABSERERTEA
B EXAEARREFNENRSE
AESErREAE -

il
e



— - L =
Club chefs celebrate their success at this year’s HOFEX.
SEEMESFEHOFEXRREHREEERREVERT - WSS @E%E -

AWARD-WINNING CUISINE
R RERERS

Aside from the pleasures of cuisine crafted by the Club’s top chefs,
this year saw members enjoy award-winning dishes from some of the
world’s leading culinary masters.

Our Greatest Chefs Series brought no less than six Michelin 3-starred
chefs and one Michelin 2-starred chef to the Club, where they shared the
delights of contemporary American, Catalan, Basque and French cuisine.

The continuing Asian Chefs Series saw members enjoy the subtleties
of rare dishes from Japan, Singapore and Thailand. There were also
opportunities to enjoy Chinese cuisine from Yunnan, Nanjing and
Yangzhou.

Alongside these were celebrity guest appearances by Hong Kong
masters Dai Lung, Chan Sui-kei and Chan Kwok-keung.

The Club’s catering team also garnered awards and recognition
this year. Club chefs participated in the prestigious Villeroy &

Boch Culinary World Cup as members of the Hong Kong Chefs
Association culinary team, bringing home gold, silver and bronze
awards. In this year’s HOFEX, Asia’s leading food and hospitality
trade show, Club chefs came away with an impressive 21 medals
from the Hong Kong International Culinary Classic and took the
championship and runner-up spots in the ltalian Cocktail Challenge.
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Christopher Kostow was one of six Michelin
3-starred chefs featured at clubhouses this year.

Christopher Kostow 5 F B ZI S & FTME
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Membership
XBOomE 28

THE MEMBERSHIP HOSPITALITY ACADEMY

SEREEHER

In support of its membership development plan, the Club has
established the Membership Hospitality Academy to provide
professional development and qualifications to its membership team.

All three of the Academy’s programmes have been accredited by The
Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational

Qualifications, with two being at QF Level 5, this level being equivalent
to the QF level of a Hong Kong Bachelor's degree. The Club is the first
member of Hong Kong’s hospitality industry to offer such a qualification.

CARING HEARTS
BAE 1L AT

Since its foundation eight years ago, the Members’ CARE@hkjc
Volunteer Team has grown to 1,050 members and contributed over
17,000 hours of community service.

This year, team members took part in 16 activities. They worked
alongside special education students to create decorative art works,
helped senior citizens make mooncakes and celebrate Chinese New
Year, joined community visits to exhibitions and museums, learned

how to assist the visually impaired, and took part in outreach visits to
elderly homes and a rehabilitation centre. Through these and many other
activities, Club members have shown their support for Hong Kong’s most
needy, and for the Club’s commitment to the betterment of society.

Equally impressive is the charity commitment of Beijing Clubhouse
members, most especially through their annual charity wine dinner,
which has raised more than RMB47 million over the last 11 years.
Funds raised through the wine auction and other activities have
supported a number of projects for underprivileged children in rural
and inner city areas of the Mainland. In recognition of its work, the
clubhouse was honoured in the 2018 China Charity List and by the
2018 China Annual Conference on Philanthropy.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Responsible Sports Wagering and Lottery

Overall wagering and lottery turnover for the financial year was
HK$247.5 billion. Racing turnover, at HK$125.0 billion for the financial
year and HK$124.8 billion for the racing season, exceeded last year’s
record high. Football turnover was up 10.7% on last year to HK$114.1
billion, partly due to the impact of the latter stages of the 2018 World
Cup and this season’s highly competitive Premier League. Turnover
on the Mark Six lottery, at HK$8.4 billion, was up 4.3% on last year.

As a result, the Club was able to provide a record HK$28.9 billion to
the community in terms of betting duty, profits tax, Lotteries Fund
contributions and approved charitable donations.

COMMINGLING

Ay
E SR

The high quality and integrity of the Club’s racing and the strong
liquidity of its betting pools continue to be a major attraction for
overseas customers. As a result, commingling turnover was up
13.5% on last season to HK$18.8 billion.

Notably, this year saw the Club launch the new Ascot World Pool
on Britain’s Royal Ascot in partnership with Ascot and Totepool.
The first time the Club has offered commingling on an overseas
race meeting, this further strengthened Hong Kong’s position as an
international commingling hub.

With additional partners in Denmark, Norway and Grenada joining,
as of next season the Club will have over 40 commingling partners in
14 countries and jurisdictions.

EBOE AEHlEE B LIS
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: e The Ascot World Pool on Britain’s Royal

—"== Ascot was the first time the Club has offered
commingling on an overseas race meeting.
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ES¥it
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SIMULCASTING
HFEBRES
As evidenced by the 14.6% increase in simulcast wagering turnover,

Hong Kong racing fans are increasingly keen to watch and wager on
the very best overseas racing.

This season, fans were able to enjoy the simulcast of 23 overseas
meetings plus 10 individual overseas races. These included Dubai
World Cup Day, the Prix de I’Arc de Triomphe in France, British
Champions Day and, for the first time, all five days of Britain’s Royal
Ascot. Other top-class overseas events were Melbourne Cup Day
from Australia, Sprinters Stakes Day from Japan and Kraniji Mile Day
from Singapore.
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DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION OF = .

THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE
RABEEERER

When it comes to innovation in digital wagering entertainment, the
Club is an acknowledged leader, and this season saw yet further
enhancements to digital products.

Two new features were added to the popular HKJC TV app. Utilising
digital watermarking technology, Live Position enables customers
to follow the performance of selected horses during a race with
respect to their running position and distance behind the lead horse.
Meanwhile, a multi-angle camera second screen gives customers
additional options to view horses in the parade ring and as they
enter the track.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Responsible Sports Wagering and Lottery
EKERE BHf8EIEY RS

From February, daily trackwork videos were made available on SE2AR  BRITEFEN—UXES
Racing Touch, the Club’s one-stop racing information and wagering B R REEARER [Racing Touch | B &
app. For ease of access, the information is available by horse and in BHNERE R WHEBRIRBE
calendar format. BrERUBAEEERERER -

RETAIL RENOVATION
SIMNOEEEIF T

The Club’s rolling programme to renovate Off-Course Betting SREBZSTHBIMNGIE =9 &

Branches continued, with five new-look branches opening at the ﬁ RS IMRFE TR BT TR U2 HH

beginning of the season. KA -

The largest of these, the Nathan Centre OCBB in Mong Kok, ERRAN—BEE2NEABRIENIRE

includes a media hall with age-friendly facilities, a 120-seat theatre, B RERKRERETFRAEZRE  BE

and a Caring Hearts community service counter. 120fEEEFERISBR » DAR [ & Uik | 1B AR
BKiER o

ANTI—I\/IONEY LAUNDERING
fORBER

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being EESMHFLEERNBESLBZENEE
used for money laundering. It has an Anti-Money Laundering RIBE AT S BB TEIER
policy and framework, which makes reference to the internationally AN EBERERNRESIR  HIFTREZ
recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and SEPUR R AESR o

industry best practice.
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Under Hong Kong’s system of responsible gambling, the Club, through its
wagering subsidiaries, is authorised by the Government to provide horse race
and football betting services and to operate the Mark Six lottery. In so doing, the
Club provides a regulated channel to meet gambling demand and works with the
Government to advocate responsible gambling and to protect the public from the
dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling and associated crimes. It also ensures
that any proceeds benefit the community, whether in the form of tax and duty to
the Government or through the Club’s own charitable donations.

RESBRITHENEHHEL L  SERETRE  ZEBXNBATNEHRES -
REEERAERRSRYE - SERMRBCNELRE  WEHREEREDNER
R EBFRESE  EER ’éﬁ%ﬂﬁ  BURE T RS REE R - IBAMEERE LM
ITENBASERNER - WEBEEXTRRBERETEBBRAREE SENES
B mERE -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Responsible Sports Wagering and Lottery

RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING POLICY
BEIHIERBUR

The Club advocates responsible gambling and has established
extensive measures under its Responsible Gambling Policy. The
Club is also a major contributor to the Ping Wo Fund, which finances
and co-ordinates preventive and remedial measures to address
gambling-related problems. By the end of 2019, the Club’s total
contributions will have exceeded HK$360 million. Starting from July
2019, funding will be extended for a further four years, with the Club
contributing HK$45 million per annum.

The Club’s support for responsible gambling is widely recognised.

In 2011 the World Lottery Association granted the Club Level 4
accreditation, the highest possible, under its Responsible Gambling
Framework. This was renewed in 2015 and 2018. The Club is the first
operator in Asia to receive this accreditation three times in succession.

EBOE AEHlEE B LIS

CERTIFICATE
Henponsiste mlﬂ.-- ﬂ;l| ;r,u-u work

Heng Keng Jockiey Club. Hong Kang

Level & of tha
naibla Jaming Fremework
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RESPONSIBLE GAMBLING
ADVOCACY AND EDUCATION
BEIFIBR ERR A

The Club has an active public education programme. This includes
its Responsible Awareness Week campaign in selected Off-Course
Betting Branches, which this year was extended to a further 40
branches.

In the run-up to the 2019 Copa America Tournament, the Club also

launched a citywide responsible gambling campaign. The television
commercials have since been taken up by the Education Bureau for
use on its e-learning platform.

More broadly, the Club supports initiatives to promote healthy
lifestyles, with responsible gambling being part of the overall
message. In April, with the support of community partners, the Club
launched the Family Volunteer Academy, which includes topics such
as family psychology and counselling, parenting skills and financial
management. Around 8,000 families will benefit each year.

In a similar initiative, the Club joined hands with the Kowloon
Women’s Organisations Federation, the Hong Kong Micro Movie
Institute and media partners to launch the Family Cinemography
Contest. The contest saw participants create audio-visual stories
featuring positive lifestyle and responsible gambling messages.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Responsible Sports Wagering and Lottery
EKERE BHf8EIEY RS

HAZTERNEBEHFEY  BEBE
RNARFLEBEEINERZARZ— -
TR ERELERER R FERE
ABoEHREEABFEREE -

FEBBRATBRRS - SFE - #$R -
MR - RS RRILIER o LS

FEHBREEZEERE REEHR
ERERREEENE B ERRERE

BE o
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IILLEGAL GAMBLING - 3=
A THREAT TO THE COMMUNITY lﬂﬂéﬂa%

FEHERELS g Eﬁ ‘ﬁ'ﬁ ﬁ

While the Club makes every effort to promote responsible gambling,
there is no question that Hong Kong remains a major target for illegal RS 58 BE 1@ & &

gambling operators. Many of these are international and offshore,
and most are linked to organised crime. ] 8 3 4 6 3 3

The proceeds of illegal gambling fund criminal activities such as

. . . . (above and left) The Club supports public information
drug smuggling, loan sharking, extortion, money laundering and campaigns warning of the dangers and consequences of
. .. . . illegal gambling.
bribery. Furthermore, the provision of credit by illegal operators has (LRER) ERT e g BHNAREE T/ SRR

a highly negative impact on society, encouraging excessive and BURE -

pathological gambling.

The Club is making every effort to tackle and raise awareness of
illegal gambling. It supports the Hong Kong Police and collaborates
with international law enforcement agencies. It also chairs the Asian
Racing Federation’s Anti-lllegal Betting Task Force. For illegal
gambling requires action both internationally and in Hong Kong,
with regulators, law enforcement, sporting bodies and financial
institutions working together to protect the community.
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For over a century, The Hong Kong Jockey Club has been contributing to the betterment
of society, both directly and through The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.

Over the last 11 years, the success of the Club’s business strategies has enabled the
Charities Trust to quadruple its charity donations. In 2018/19, the Club donated 95%

of its annual operating surplus after tax to the Trust. Over the same period, the Trust
approved a record HK$4.3 billion in donations to a record 294 projects. The Trust is one
of the world’s top ten charity donors.

BZFER FE—HEEKZBEBESSREGTES  BHARREXHEBIFLHER -

EREEEXBRBIERERR  SEEEAESNEZSZSHRINEEZ 1 FHELAZTE - 2018/19
FE - B85 % B EAKERMBIBASERES  EERPATIF24EER  RIFLHE - M
CEAERBHETBANG » Z43RBT - It FEEESETESEER T REERYBBZ— -
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community
EXBOmE 2=t

The Trust’s support covers ten areas of need: arts, culture & heritage; ELZENERRETESE  9iF8

education & training; elderly services; emergency & poverty relief; ML RRE ~ ZBE) - RERDS « ¥
environmental protection; family services; medical & health; EE i“—"i;d% - REEFRES - BOEREAL -
rehabilitation services; sports & recreation; and youth development. EERYE BREEERSEHRE -

Over the last five years, the Trust has placed particular focus on BERF  BSSREHFE]-[RE]
four strategic areas: youth; the elderly; sports; and arts, culture (B85 | ML - XERRE | MAEHE

and heritage. MEESITHE-

Full details of the Trust’s approved donations this year can be found HSFRAMNE FMIBIEB F R KR
on pages 99-120 of the Financial Report. HEEI9E120H

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS (HK$B)
EEEREAEERESER(TEER)

* For construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum

XEEE [HERELEYE]

INVESTING FOR IMPACT

flEtENE

The Charities Trust is always striving to ensure that its funding support EE2ZEETEL TR TS TEHEN
has maximum impact in the community, whether be it through targeting ~ #&FE - EEMEESERE —Z5ES

areas of specific social need, developing its own Trust-initiated projects FEIER  URURIF G A BB AEEIR
(TIPs) in collaboration with partners, or finding new ways to strengthen  FHEHEREFE - HRIBFIE B LR FE

and maximise the effectiveness of its partner agencies. HEME  BNEEFEAMENES °

In particular, thanks to the Club’s positive business performance ERESYERIFTENEBRE  SESEE
in recent years, the Trust has been able to maintain its support ZER  EREIBTREEMEEENRE
for a broad range of social needs while also focusing on four B RAILURREM M BREE [EF ][R

strategic areas: youth; the elderly; sports; and arts, culture and E | [8B | F &7 - MLRFRAE ] OAE
heritage. These were identified through discussion with community BSMVZaE T1E o AT LA U KERE - 2IRIE
partners, Government agencies, field experts and academia as RIEAL RS - BUTHEIE - 2RERM
being emerging areas of need where the Trust’s resources could EEFEMNER  LUEFEENERESNE
be utilised with particular impact. Approximately half of the Trust’s R BELESEE - BEESNE —¥NE
annual donations are allocated to these strategic areas. ERZ AN i E R EIENEET/E -
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In addition, while not neglecting support for the “hardware” of

infrastructure, equipment and facilities, more funding is being allocated
to “software”, that is to the skills development and capacity building
which are essential for the sustainability and enhancement of service
provision. With the aim of fostering the NGO sector, more funding is also

being allocated to first-time grantees and smaller NGOs.

Many of the Trust’s initiatives are pilot projects, which seek to pioneer
new approaches or address new or emerging needs. Encouragingly,

several such initiatives have been taken up by the Government.

Examples include the Hong Kong Jockey Club Life-wide Learning Fund
and Youth Development Programme, which are now being fully funded
by the Government; the Hong Chi Jockey Club Glass Bottle Recycling
Project, which has been adopted and scaled up to all 18 districts by
the Environmental Protection Department; Social Career, an online
volunteer matching platform, which has been appointed by the Social
Welfare Department to manage its Volunteer Movement platform; and
the Jockey Club Cyber Youth Outreach Service, where bridging funding
from the Trust has enabled the NGO to complete its pilot project and

make a successful transition to Government subvention.

FOUR STRATEGIC AREAS OF FOCUS
PN S0

YO UTH are the future of our city.

We want to help young people achieve
their potential — acquiring the skills and
aptitude to be successful in the future
and so contribute to the betterment

of our society.

BEadenrrae Bt 58
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BRI - BEFIE - BRSNS
Bl BRTEAUE o

—

S PO RTS are important not

only for health but in fostering positive
attitudes and values and building
social cohesion. We support
programmes to help citizens of all
ages benefit from participating in
sport and exercise.
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THE ELDERLY are Hong Kong’s

fastest-growing population group. We are
encouraging and supporting ways to help
senior citizens stay active and healthy and to
make our city more age-friendly.

EEersAnuEREaR0sa -
BRRY BEEXEZMEER  SBHEERR
RERERE - BREBREHT

ARTS, CULTURE
AND HERITAGE

enrich community life. Through our
support we seek to build a culturally
vibrant city, to promote social
inclusion, and to ensure that the
lessons of the past are not lost as
we advance into the future.
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d| Jockey Club Online Youth Emotional Support

PROMOTING INNOVATION
HBRIFT R

The Club is keen to support innovative service models and to explore the
potential of new technologies as a means to create greater social impact.

For example, to address the growing demand for elderly healthcare,
the Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project is promoting
preventive healthcare for senior citizens. Since its launch in 2016, it
has established ehealth stations in 80 elderly centres for real-time
monitoring and follow-up by healthcare professionals.

This year also saw the launch of Jockey Club Online Youth Emotional
Support “Open Up”, Hong Kong’s first 24-hour seven-days-a-week
online crisis support service for people aged 11-35. Recognising that
this age group is more familiar and often more comfortable with social
media it offers an online chat room and provides support through a
number of popular messaging apps. Demand has been high, with over
19,000 online counselling hours provided and over 14,000 unique
cases served in the first eight months.

CAPACITY BUILDING
RIS

Capacity building is a key component for all major projects
supported or initiated by the Club. The aim is to help service
providers develop effective service models and build their
capabilities such that they can continue to benefit service recipients
long after pilot projects have concluded.

The Trust is also supporting initiatives to promote innovative thinking
and to introduce NGO professionals to new types of service provision
and new ways of managing and monitoring delivery and impact.

These include InnoPower@JC, a fellowship programme to develop
the innovation capacity of teachers and social workers; support for
NGO managers studying for an Executive MBA at the University

of Chicago Booth School of Business in Hong Kong; and the
Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum, which brings together thought
leaders from around the world, with the second edition being held
in 2018.

- OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community
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TAI KWUN - CENTRE FOR HERITAGE
AND ARTS CELEBRATES

FIRST ANNIVERSARY
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community
EKERE &= hitE

On 25 May, the Club celebrated one year since the opening of Tai
Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts.

The product of a ten-year collaboration with the Government, the
project sought both to conserve the 16 heritage buildings of the
Central Police Station compound and to revitalise them as a unique
and distinctive platform for the development, appreciation and
promotion of heritage and the arts in Hong Kong.

Drawing on the expertise of top international and Hong Kong architects
and conservators, Tai Kwun’s heritage buildings were restored to their
former glory. Alongside these, two new buildings — JC Contemporary
and JC Cube — were created to serve as an art gallery and auditorium
respectively, their design crafted to reflect the character of the site.
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HONG KONG’S MOST VISITED HERITAGE SITE

I B 2 A BIEn Y i e

The response since opening has been overwhelming. In its first year of
operation, Tai Kwun received over 3.4 million visits, making it the most
visited heritage site in Hong Kong. It has also been widely recognised
as a model of heritage conservation and a must-see visitor attraction.

REBARBLURRAZHER RN - &8
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A VIBRANT CENTRE FOR HERITAGE AND ARTS

AEERBREWHRIENE T

Essential to Tai Kwun’s success has been an active programme of
heritage tours, exhibitions and performances. The aim is to bring
both the best international talent to Hong Kong and to provide a
platform for Hong Kong artists and performers. In total, Tai Kwun
held some 750 programmes and events and ran over 800 heritage
docent tours during the year.

Heritage exhibitions included Salute to Kwan Kung, an exploration
of the historical figure and deity General Kwan Kung, and Tai Kwun
101, which charted the story of Tai Kwun through 101 artefacts
closely associated with its history.

Among the contemporary art exhibitions, MURAKAMI vs MURAKAMI
presented a major survey of Japanese superstar artist Takashi
Murakami. There were also opportunities for Hong Kong
contemporary artists, with 36 showcasing their work alongside
respected international artists.

In the performing arts, the award-winning Tai Kwun Dance Season
brought six programmes to Tai Kwun, featuring both international
and Hong Kong dance talent. And Circus Plays presented a fusion of
traditional circus with conceptual performance in an interactive and
family-friendly programme.
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Visitors enjoy the magical world of MURAKAMI vs MURAKAMI.
(WL B8 N EE) RERGFREBN EEAENTIHR -

REACHING OUT TO THE COMMUNITY
BEELE

Tai Kwun is strongly committed to sharing its heritage and making
its programmes as accessible as possible. Education and outreach
programmes accompany major exhibitions and activities, including
for schools and the underprivileged. There are also special tours for
senior citizens and the differently abled.

Tai Kwun has also forged a close connection with its neighbourhood,
recording and sharing the stories of Central district, most notably
through its opening exhibition, 700 Faces of Tai Kwun.

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION
BEREE

Tai Kwun is operated and managed by The Jockey Club CPS
Limited, a not-for-profit company under The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust. The Club provides funding support as necessary,
with the ultimate objective of Tai Kwun becoming self-funding.

Tai Kwun’s management team is assisted by an advisory committee
comprising individuals from the heritage, arts, community, education
and business sectors, as well as members of the Central and Western
District Council. Two working groups, the Heritage Working Group

and the Art Working Group, advise on heritage and art programmes.

REFNETRIZLERBENWER - &
EZmRSEHES - KEERHAERE
MEBRBIRBAETE  SBMBENS
BuE2n . FRARENGEALENE
M -

REEEGBEY T BERHE - HhiEBH
ERE(RE—BE) £HISZEEBRE
SEEETE o

RERSEEEETESRINFELFILTE
[BEREXMRBEERAR | EEREE -
AENWRELEAEEZEAEEE  BHS
SERFERHESXE -

ESEXMREERATDRABAZES
BERBLERE - &1 - HE  BER
BRERA - TEETARBERS - A
ZEEEOAENEEERRMABERR -
BEoh - M@ TAE A — [ X TR/ NE ]
R TENE ] FEFMAEHEL L
{EMEHMTE B R HEE -

95



s

Convened by

r !“‘ f[ ..-J'
¢ Hong Ko'=

The Hong Kong

Lhanties [rust

Professor James Heckman
James Heckman #(#%

PHILANTHROPY FOR

BETTER CITIES
FORUM 2018 [ &=+ ﬁIJ B B EE
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Today, over half of the world’s population live in urban
environments, many of them being in Asia. Public health,
environmental protection, social welfare, education and ageing
populations are just some of the challenges they face.

To discuss these and other issues, and the role of philanthropy
in addressing them, this year the Charities Trust convened the
second Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum. This followed the
success of the inaugural forum in 2016, which was the first of its
kind in Asia. Participants included charity foundations, policy-
makers, academics, social investors, social entrepreneurs, NGOs
and service providers from around the world, especially Asia
Pacific and Greater China.
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(left to right) Club CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, Michael
Phelps and Yao Ming
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community

FACILITATING COLLABORATION
AND PARTNERSHIP
TREZTE BABHER

Aside from raising awareness of the social issues facing communities
in one of the most rapidly urbanising parts of the world, the forum

aims to facilitate cross-sector collaboration and to cultivate long-term
partnerships and engagement, all in the hope of creating better cities.

To this end, this year’s forum focused on five themes: leveraging

the market, sustainable development, maximising impact, youth and
creativity, and health and well-being. Through keynote presentations,
plenary discussions and track sessions, delegates explored ways to
create social impact, drawing on international case studies as well
as perspectives from Greater China.

DISTINGUISHED SPEAKERS
HMEBE

Over 1,400 delegates attended along with 67 distinguished speakers
from international foundations, academia and NGOs. Leading speakers
included Nobel Laureate in Economic Sciences Professor James
Heckman from the University of Chicago, Nobel Peace Prize winner
Professor Muhammad Yunus, and renowned political philosopher
Professor Michael Sandel from Harvard University. There was also
strong participation from Hong Kong, including the Chief Secretary
for Administration and two Government secretaries.

FOUNDATION CIRCLE
HEESSEEDR

Prior to the forum, the Foundation Circle brought together over 40
Hong Kong and overseas foundations to discuss funding objectives,
share experiences and identify possible areas for collaboration.

Feedback on the two-day forum was overwhelmingly positive,
with a highlight being the closing discussion on the role of sport in
promoting social progress, featuring contributions from the Club’s
CEO Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges, multi-Olympic gold medallist
Michael Phelps and NBA basketball star Yao Ming.
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TRUST-INITIATED &&=
PROJECTS

Trust-initiated projects (TIPs) are major initiatives developed by the Trust

in collaboration with community partners to address current and emerging
community needs. Many are pilot projects, aiming to raise awareness of issues
and/or pioneer new and innovative approaches to social needs. In 2018/19

thirteen TIPs were in progress.
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Jockey Club Age-friendly City Project
EEgRITHMTE

With Hong Kong’s population rapidly ageing, the Jockey Club Age-
friendly City Project seeks to build momentum for an age-friendly city
through a bottom-up, district-based approach. An AgeWatch Index for
Hong Kong has been established to monitor the social and economic
well-being of older people. Baseline assessments have been carried
out in all 18 districts, with three-year action plans put in place. A total
of 107 programmes have been implemented to date. Complementing
these are citywide publicity and public education programmes.

Highlight impacts to date:

HORRBE :

@ All 18 districts accepted into the WHO Global Network of Age-
friendly Cities and Communities.

@ Over 80 private and public bodies have pledged to adopt age-
friendly practices through the project’s City Partnership Scheme.
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Jockey Club Community eHealth Care Project
EES (e | ETREEETE

With the aim of promoting preventive healthcare for the elderly
and empowering them in health management, the Jockey Club
Community eHealth Care Project is the first citywide elderly care
project to integrate health management technology, community
care and professional support. Twice a week, 5,000 elderly people
have their health measured at 80 elderly centres, the data being
transmitted to a nursing team for follow-up. In addition, an in-depth
survey of health and social needs aims to reach 10,000 elderly.
Building on this are active ageing and healthy lifestyle activities,
while big data analytics is providing a broader understanding of
elderly healthcare needs.

Highlight impacts to date:
HORRBE :
¥ Percentage of known hypertensive participants keeping their

systolic blood pressure within a controlled range increased from
71% to nearly 86% within one year.

® More elderly participants have joined exercise classes (43%
increase), cognitive training (24% increase) and chronic disease
self-management activities (48% increase).
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Jockey Club End-of-Life Community Care Project

K-y -t

The Jockey Club End-of-Life Community Care Project aims to improve
the quality of end-of-life care in residential care homes and in the
community. It involves the pilot of new service models in the community,
the implementation of capacity building programmes for social and
healthcare professionals, and public education. Following its pilot in 36
residential care homes, the programme has been extended to additional
homes. Phase two will establish an integrated community end-of-life
care service model, providing tailor-made physical, psychological and
practical support to elderly in need.

Highlight impacts to date:
HORRRBE :
& Terminally-ill patients and their family members report an

improved quality of life, with patients showing lower levels of
depression and family members less stress.

& Elderly home-based patients report less physical discomfort.
Hospitalisation of elderly home residents in the three months
prior to their decease fell by an average of 13 days.
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JC JoyAge: Jockey Club Holistic Support Project for Elderly Mental Wellness
BERSRERETTE

JC JoyAge seeks to tackle elderly depression by means of an [BEFSHRETE B NBEBEILIU

integrated community-based support network. It is currently being HEARNGREZERL  BEHRENE
piloted in four districts. The programme comprises capacity building FERE o sTEIB AIUANEEAERE 0 AR
for service providers, a new collaborative model for the medical BIEAREHEASRMEEZEET - HED
and social sectors, and the training of peer supporters to identify BENTERELIZHHIEES RS
and support vulnerable elderly. A public education programme [t 2 & | IRMEIED > B R X ES
aims to improve mental health literacy and enhance support in EENRE - sTEITRRATHE RS -

the community. To date, 76,000 outreach visits and engagement HEERMERENE - MELEXRE - 512
sessions have been conducted for 3,700 at-risk or depressed elderly £5358 76,000 X HNEIRE R BIEES -
people. A total of 242 peer supporters have been trained. EBT 3700 ESRRMERE 1o -

o HE242 8 [ Sz & | TRIEF ©
Highlight impacts to date:

BORRBE :
& Surveys show a significant decline in depressive symptoms and ¢ FAEETRBEHRNINEREER
improved social connectedness among service recipients. D HRBERBRKRE -

@ Social workers and peer supporters show a significant increase & IR 2R ]| SEEI® KK
in understanding of elderly mental health after training. IRE RE R REARE -
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Mindful of the challenges young people face in transitioning to
adulthood, CLAP for Youth@JC is helping youngsters make
informed choices through the development of a career and life
development intervention model. More broadly it seeks to widen
the discourse and influence practices related to success, work, and
talent. Engaging teachers, social workers, parents and employers,
the programme aims to benefit 20,000 students and 9,400 non-
engaged youth. CLAP initiatives include a first-of-its-kind career
and life planning e-portal; a career and life development curriculum
and education framework for schools; capacity building for teachers
and social workers; a parent education framework; an innovative
employment training programme, Generation X CLAP; and a new
curriculum vitae, CV360.

More than 50% of Hong Kong secondary schools have joined.
Over 85% of 19,000 students participating to date show a clearer
understanding of career and life planning.

Over 87% of 8,000 non-engaged youth participating to date show
positive growth, e.g. returning to school or finding meaningful
employment.

Over 2,100 community and business partners engaged, with
approximately 100 using the CV360 in recruitment events.
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CoolThink@JC
[ BEESEERHHE | 518

Seeking to inspire the digital creativity of primary school children and (EEoESEANE |FTE2BLEER -

to better prepare them for the digital economy and society of the A/ EEMREERERRREHNSRE
future, CoolThink@JC is piloting a computational thinking and coding  SERMEESEB I WEIISAIE » Bih{HpE

curriculum for upper primary schools. In total, 32 pilot schools and HARREIH ENSBER L SRR ERE -

18,000 upper primary students are participating in this four-year TEIABME - HE32BEEZERM

project. To embed learning and build support, the programme 18,000 B &/ NEE B - FTEITMEEEM

includes extensive teacher training and stakeholder engagement R EmEDl  UREBHBEIEE &

with educators, parents and opinion leaders. Mt BEMEFMOERBSHE » FEIINE
o BEFUFLIE -

Highlight impacts to date:

BORRBE :

@ 89% of student projects have demonstrated innovation, ¢ B89N HELBREXRITWIEEREY
with a third-party evaluator deeming the early impacts of the BRI B4 - BRI AEERRTENE
programme to be “very promising”. HAR A [FEFIEAR | o

@ 85% of teachers in pilot schools report adopting a more & B85% FEBRNHEIRT » EHIIR
student-centric approach to teaching the CoolThink@JC FTEIRRER  ERZIUBEARHHE
curriculum, with over 90% of principals planning to continue Tﬂ'ﬁ ; TEI90% MR R E A LB T2
using it beyond the pilot. RREBTRANETERRE
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C-for-Chinese@JC
[BEEEe BB |5HE

C-for-Chinese@JC aims to help non-Chinese speaking kindergarten
students develop Chinese language skills with a view to making a
better transition to primary education and more effective integration
into the community. To achieve this the project is piloting a home-
school-community collaborative service model, with Chinese learning
methodologies and resources being developed, and capacity building
provided to parents, kindergarten teachers and social workers. A
total of 20 schools are participating. Essential is the recruitment and
training of 60 multicultural teaching assistants (MTAs), to which end a
specialist early education diploma has been implemented.

Highlight impacts to date:
HORRBE :

© 90% of participating kindergarten students show increased interest in
classroom learning and significant improvements in Chinese proficiency.

¥ Provided a progression pathway for MTA graduates, with 80% pursuing
further qualifications and 20% employed in the education sector.

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Scholarships
BEESGRES

Celebrating their 21st anniversary this year, The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Scholarships were launched in 1998 with the objective of
nurturing compassionate, community-minded leaders. Initially
supporting undergraduate students, the Scholarships have since
expanded to include vocational and special educational needs
students, and postgraduate students studying at Oxford and
Harvard universities.

Highlight impacts to date:
BOMRBE :

¥ More than 600 Jockey Club Scholars supported since 1998.
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Fun to Move@JC
EEEXREEH:TE

Recognising the importance of exercise for health and well-being, BERNEDHRREENEEYE  MEEE
and that habits of exercise are best formed at an early age, Fun to HEEBREUHRINER  [EESRREEH
Move@JC seeks to motivate children to engage in more physical TEEBBRESSHEA TR - FTEI5IA
activity. Encompassing 35 primary schools and aiming to reach EBRYE BENEEEE  BeER
over 30,000 children and 30,000 parents, the project is introducing BEER - Ko|35R/NELE  FEFTENER
fun and engaging physical activities as a supplement to regular 830,000 2 E 30,000 EXR K © 5T &I
physical education classes. Family activities encourage parents and BERFETH > HEARREFZEBER
children to adopt healthy lifestyles together, while technology is BESITHER - FEE AR ERlith e
monitoring activity rates, both to motivate children and to facilitate EFE  BUBBEE  waARAKEE
big data analytics. DT o

Highlight impacts to date:

EORRBE :

# Over 1,000 activities for students, parents and families in the ¢ N2018/19BFABE RREKESE
2018/19 academic year #%1,000 ZIEEE ©

& 94% of participating schools have increased weekly physical & HUU%MNBERERKINESENEAEEZE
activities to over 70 minutes. BRI E 70D EELL L o
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OTHER TRUST-INITIATED PROJECTS
HitnZEEFERE

JC A-Connect: Jockey Club Autism Support Network

BEEEEHETETE

Launched in response to the increasing number of students

with autism spectrum disorder (ASD) in mainstream schools, JC
A-Connect is the first initiative of its kind in Hong Kong. Adopting a
holistic approach, JC A-Connect combines school-based support,
support for parents and families, and public education. With the
demand for ASD support accelerating, the programme has been
extended for another three years, with more schools participating.
To date, 503 schools and more than 6,000 students and 40,000
parents have benefited. Training has also been provided to 20,000
teachers and NGO professionals.

Highlight impacts to date:
HOMRBE :
® Approximately 90% of participating ASD students have shown

significant improvement in various skill domains, e.g. adaptation
and communication skills.

& Participating schools commend the programme as “effective”,
“timely” and “comprehensive”, with 98% of principals considering
it worth recommending to other schools.

¢ Government policymakers have supported the project’s
continued implementation and are considering ways to integrate
the project framework into the local education system.
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EBOEE %= Mtm

InnoPower@JC: Fellowship for Teachers and Social Workers
[EESHEMEIRIF HE | 5TE

Recognising the vital role that teachers and social workers play in
the community, InnoPower@JC seeks to foster innovation and new
thinking. Through paid study leave, facilitated study sessions and
cross-sector exposure, the programme aims to bring new ideas and
fresh thinking to schools and the social service sector.

Highlight impacts to date:

HOHRBE

& Over 70 teacher and social worker fellows have participated, with
some 40 educational and social service projects incubated.

¥ The Education Bureau recognises the potential of the initiative
and has sent officials to join and observe the implementation of
the third cohort.
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Jockey Club SMART Family-Link Project
EFSEXRYETE

This four-year project utilises information and communications
technology (ICT) and data analytics to help 26 NGO-run Integrated
Family Service Centres and Integrated Service Centres enhance the
quality and efficiency of their family services. It also facilitates their
early identification of at-risk families. Public education programmes
are promoting the importance of family harmony. The project is
expected to benefit 75,000 individuals and 1,000 social workers,
with a further 170,000 reached through public education activities,
online platforms and social media.

Highlight impacts to date:
HORRBE :
@ i-Connect Service Management System developed to minimise

the centres’ administrative work and enable data-driven service
delivery.

@ i-Action intervention programmes with innovative ICT elements

developed and implemented, so far benefiting over 10,000 users.
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KeySteps@JC
EEgERE

Recognising that the early years of a child’s life are vital to its future
wellness and development, KeySteps@JC aims to help children

from disadvantaged backgrounds build a strong foundation for their
future growth. Focusing on 32 kindergartens in Sham Shui Po and

Tin Shui Wai, a cross-disciplinary team of educational psychologists,
early childhood educators, social workers, speech therapists and
healthcare professionals is providing support to children and their
families. In addition, two community hubs serve as a platform for
early stimulation and family networking, and to promote parent-child
interaction. Approximately 6,000 children and their families will benefit.

Highlight impacts to date:
HOMRBE :

¥ On-site coaching provided to principals and teachers in 16
schools.

& Databank developed to track development of participating
children and to provide data for activity design.
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CHARITIES TRUST HIGHLIGHTS
ZEETESERIEE

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust supports
a wide range of community needs encompassing ten
different areas. The following are just some of the
highlight activities this year.

EEESELEETESNIBRTERRE HELHE - 30 RE
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Education and
Training

OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community

EKOREE &S NtE
= x
_—
Arts, Culture and
eritage Conservation
HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB UNIVERSITY OF
CHICAGO ACADEMIC COMPLEX
BEEFESINTREHERE KE
The academic complex, which officially opened in November, was BEeZ=CTES R FE iR E34008
partly funded with a HK$234 million Social Impact Grant approved by  &7xF [ &Mz51B8EE | - WigEEE
the Trust. This included support to restore the former Victoria Road [BEAEEGEMSARERERERE]

Detention Centre, a site of considerable historical importance, which DR EENEICRBEAN=HRFELEEE
now forms part of the university campus. The University of Chicago [EIEZAENERL | WBLER - 474
Booth School of Business is delivering The Hong Kong Jockey Club KEREFE 11 BEXBEE - MK
Programme on Social Innovation, which includes an Executive MBA HEBERERT [ EEEESHIAIN
scholarship programme for NGO leaders. T8l BEFEEREESERIFBUTH
BHEBEAS  BEZZERABRNITHEA
“f" %o e ETRHEERELRE



JOCKEY CLUB
50+ STARTUP PROJECT
EEE50+8| 25T E

The Christian Family Service Centre has
implemented the Jockey Club 50+ Startup Project
to help seniors remain active after retirement.

Retirees receive training to develop start-up ideas
and support to turn them into reality as services
benefiting the community. Eight “startupper” teams
taking part in the first phase were announced at the
launch ceremony in July last year.
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Poverty Relief

o
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SUPPORT FOR SUB-DIVIDED FLAT
RESIDENTS

The Concern for Grassroots’ Livelihood Alliance is implementing the
Jockey Club “Good Home” Sub-divided Units Residents Support Service.
The service, which was officially launched in June, will benefit 22,000
residents of sub-divided flats in five Kowloon localities. The service aims
to provide residents with a basic knowledge of fair tenancy agreements,
enhance living conditions and build their positive social identity. The Trust
has also extended its support for the Jockey Club Sunshine Project,
operated by the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady Maclehose Centre,
which provides support to sub-divided flat residents in Kwai Tsing.
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JOCKEY CLUB NATURE
CONSERVATION CENTRE ‘W’I
%% E /\\\1%)3 EFI/L,\ Environmental .

Protectlon .
-,

The Jockey Club Nature Conservation Centre at
Kadoorie Farm and Botanic Garden in Tai Po is
being constructed with the help of a HK$130 million
approved donation from the Trust. Targeted for
completion in mid-2021, the multifunctional centre
will be a base for environmental conservation,
sustainable living and nature education, with more
than 42,000 visitors expected each year.

BERECRESRAREEER1183,0008 8T » ZiF
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REDEVELOPED CENTRE IN

TSUEN WAN OFFERS MULTIPLE
COMMUNITY SERVICES
SIFEESERBDL RES T ER

Redeveloped with the support of a HK$140 million approved
donation from the Trust, the new Caritas Jockey Club Tsuen Wan

Social Service Building, which officially opened in September,
offers a variety of community services and facilities. Over 200,000
individuals, families, deprived groups, people with disabilities and
the elderly will benefit each year. The 10-storey building is designed
with environmentally-friendly and energy-saving features.

SRECTESRFEMRT1E400088 T XHEEPAEEERE
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NEW COMPLEX SUPPORTS
CHILDREN WITH
INTELLECTUAL DISABILITIES
a1 K R EREAE
XEBRAREETENRE

The Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill Pre-school and Children
Service Complex, which opened this year, forms the second
phase of the Hong Chi Jockey Club Pinehill Village development
project. The Complex provides places for 204 children with
intellectual disabilities and includes a special child care centre,
an early education and training centre, and a children’s home.
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JOCKEY CLUB “WATER
SPORTS 4 AL’ PROGRAMME
BEES [ 89E®T ] KBS

To promote the pleasures and benefits of water sports,

the Trust is supporting a three-year programme run by

the Hong Kong Playground Association. Featured sports
include canoeing, stand-up paddling and windsurfing.
At-sea training, a train-the-trainer scheme and water safety
ambassador training are also provided. Some 40,000
students and members of the public are expected to benefit,
with approximately 7,000 being from underprivileged groups.

RBBARBEKLES  FEAEFTESIFEBELS
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Rendering by
AGC Design Ltd.
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COMMUNITY #&

The Club connects with the community and supports its development in many different
ways. Through its pioneering Best Foot Forward community football programmes

it helps young people develop physically, mentally and socially. Through its public
riding schools and support for equestrian athletes it builds the quality of Hong Kong
equestrian sport and raises its profile on the world stage. Each year the Riding High
Together Festival brings the community together in a celebration of Hong Kong’s “can-
do” community spirit. And together with employees and in partnership with Hong
Kong’s 18 districts, it reaches out to local communities. Through these efforts the Club
reaffirms its purpose of acting continuously for the betterment of our society.
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THE RIDING HIGH TOGETHER FESTIVAL
(R OEZRIZE ]

This Easter, Sha Tin Racecourse and Penfold Park once again
played host to the Riding High Together Festival. With the theme
“Let’s have fun across generations”, the three-day event promoted
intergenerational harmony through more than 70 edutainment activities.

The festival kicked off with a new Guinness World Record being set
for the “Largest origami lesson”. More than 1,000 people took part,
demonstrating the power of can-do in the community.

Among the many activities on offer, Easter-themed arts and crafts
workshops and STEAM (science, technology, engineering, arts and
mathematics) programmes were especially popular, encouraging
collaboration between children, parents and grandparents, and
helping to improve children’s problem solving abilities.
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Meanwhile, equestrian demonstrations and pony rides saw festival —
goers get up close and personal with horses, while children had lots of
opportunities to enjoy the fun of football under the direction of coaches
from Manchester United Soccer Schools. Lucky fans also had the
chance to meet and greet Manchester United legend, Andy Cole.

A memorable highlight was a model of the racecourse’s parade ring,
created in celebration of Sha Tin Racecourse’s 40th Anniversary and
its strong bond with the local community over the past four decades.

Underlining its contribution to the community, and in support of
intergenerational harmony, the Club announced the donation of
HK$62 million to four charity projects. These will benefit some
78,000 people, bridging generation gaps and facilitating the
community’s long-term development.
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COMMUNITY FOOTBALL
HEE IR

Over the last seven years, the Club has pioneered the use of football as
a means to create social value in the community, in particular to help
young people develop themselves physically, mentally and socially.

One of the most successful initiatives, the JC School Football
Development Scheme, provides advanced football coaching to
school teachers and coaches. Run in collaboration with Manchester
United Soccer Schools (MUSS), it has benefited over 200 teachers
and coaches and 3,500 students from 85 primary and secondary
schools, as well as two post-secondary institutions.

This year, with the opening of Conghua Racecourse, the Club
implemented a similar scheme in the Conghua district of Guangzhou,
with 30 teachers and coaches joining a three-day workshop run by
the Club, the Hong Kong Football Association and MUSS.

Meanwhile, the Youth Football Leadership Scheme, which aims
to develop leadership skills through football, saw its 45 young
participants take on new challenges, including rope skipping and
cycling at the Hong Kong Velodrome.

This year, the second JC Youth Football Academy Summit brought
together young players from different backgrounds for a week of
football and cultural exchange. This culminates in a mini-tournament,
which this year saw the Guangdong U17 team compete against a
Manchester United U16 Academy team and a U17 Academy team
and District All-Star team from Hong Kong.

Also in its second year was the JC Pass It On Parents Workshop,
which seeks to promote positive-parenting skills through football.
With the assistance of The Education University of Hong Kong a
child psychology session was introduced into the curriculum. A total
of 60 families took part.

At the senior level, the JC Pass It On Elite Coach Workshop saw 30
coaches nominated by 18 district teams receive advanced coaching
from John Peacock, a world-renowned coach educator.
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Hong Kong and Manchester United youth teams compete at the JC Youth Academy Summit.

FEREVEREHRSBSFTHN [BEESETOFRIPBRE | RS -




OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community
XBOE ZE MR

EBECFRE  FERAILT  EBRR
HEAEMEEE  UHEDFEANS
R ER ©

Hp—ERKINEER [EFE2RE
WBReTE ] - sHEEEHERERENE
RHEREMRBRIRHERZERIIGR =
Res5EFP/NERMEAZRR - EHE
200 BB R HER » LAk 3,500 BELE o

FR - BERMCEESHE  BEEEMNK
LB HEERRT S FEEEBER
REREHEREREIE  AI0BEMK
HURER B = R T/EL -

AN - [BEDF R EMTE | SEEBR
RIZEREEED - A5 BFRBMEEET
HRE - AR BEHES MEEMPEE
B RBEHK-

FEFRENRE_E[BEEEFLFERK
BHRE | ERTRETRESHFER
8 ETAH-ANEREIULRR 5
BN ERBESERESL BRUITE
FHRESHEUI6TFE  BBUI7TEEK
REBWERBRABIERE

SEFREBETTE_EERESRSEE
IBMEAR ] BT REREUARIE - BB RIRE
BIEMA R - EEBHEXENHE
T SENHRMEHET REVEER
12 o B HBE60ERESM -

s [ EBEBAITITIES ] ARE
A 18 @ /Y 30y BB ARIR (P 1 3
FBERIRA BB ERER T (John
Peacock) E 55872 o

121



EQUESTRIAN SPORT
STE D

This was a year of success and celebration for equestrian sport in
Hong Kong. Competing against 25 dressage riders from across Asia,
Jacqueline Siu partnered JC Fuerst On Tour to win gold at the 2018
Asian Games. This was not only Hong Kong’s first gold medal of the
2018 Games but also its first ever Asian Games equestrian gold medal.

Jacqueline, along with fellow members of the Hong Kong team,

is part of the HKJC Equestrian Team, established by the Club to
develop equestrian sport in Hong Kong. Riders, including para
equestrian riders, benefit from high-level coaching under the Hong
Kong Equestrian Performance Plan. The Club also helps source
competition horses and provides professional support during major
events like the Asian Games and the World Equestrian Games. It
was therefore particularly pleasing this year to see equestrian sport
recognised as a Tier A sport by the Hong Kong Sports Institute.

Alongside its support for Hong Kong riding talent, the Club is developing
Hong Kong as a regional centre for equestrian sport. Notably the Club

is a Founding Partner of the LONGINES Masters of Hong Kong, which
each year brings world-class riders to Hong Kong. This year, to provide
more opportunities for Asian riders to showcase their talent, the Club
introduced the HKJC Asian Challenge and two junior competitions: the
HKJC Asian Junior Challenge and HKJC Asian Junior Grand Prix.

Further raising the profile of Hong Kong was the second Asia Horse
Week, of which the Club is also the Founding Partner. Close to 50
representatives from leading equestrian federations, regional horse
clubs and the equine industry gathered to explore opportunities in the
sport and the industry at large.

Meanwhile, the Club continues to build popular interest in equestrian
sport through its three public riding schools, which each year receive
some 82,000 visits.

Looking ahead, the announcement in February of the Outline

Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area was particularly encouraging. With equestrian sport and related
industries being identified as areas for further development, the Club
looks forward to supporting their progress within the Greater Bay Area.

Jacqueline Siu won Hong Kong’s
first-ever Asian Games equestrian gold
medal at the 2018 Asian Games.
WAZBE2018FTES SN 2EB
EREERESMEMR
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CARE volunteers show support for Together We Care 2018, an annual home visit programme.

BEETIRXE—F—ENB0XBTE2018]  2EEFFHIH -

COMMUNITY RELATIONS
BRI

In working for the betterment of society, the Club is keen to engage with
the needs of local communities, in particular through close partnership
with district stakeholders. This collaborative effort is celebrated annually
at the 18 Districts Cup race meeting, which this year focused on the
importance of social inclusion in building a more harmonious society.

Integral to the Club’s community outreach is the CARE@hkijc
employee volunteer team, which supports a wide range of community
services, including for the elderly, children, students, youth, women,
people with intellectual disabilities, and ethnic minorities.

This year, CARE volunteers participated in more than 400 activities.
These included Together We Care, an annual home visit programme
targeting the elderly and low-income families, and the Hong Kong
Flower Show, where they introduced nature conservation to children
at the Club’s green playground. As always, CARE volunteers were
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CARE volunteers join activities supporting social inclusion.
FEEINSHEHSELETEH SHESHR -

on hand at major district events, including the Sha Tin and Wan Chai
district festivals, both of which are sponsored by the Club.

In support of social inclusion, the team has organised activities

for ethnic minority children and families in Hong Kong in recent
years. This year, CARE volunteers led outings to Tai Kwun — Centre
for Heritage and Arts and to the Track Cycling World Cup. During
Chinese New Year, they joined over 1,000 ethnic minority adults and
children for a special celebration at the Hong Kong Well Wishing
Festival in Lam Tsuen.

The CARE team also supports educational initiatives for ethnic
minorities. For the second year running, in partnership with the Sir
Ellis Kadoorie Secondary School, the team supported a fashion
course for ethnic minority secondary students, the aim being to
showcase their creativity and widen their future career opportunities.

OPERATIONS REVIEW Charities and Community
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Employees
REOE 8T

The Club is committed to developing an engaged and talented workforce. In doing so
it seeks not only to support its world-class operations but to create a positive working
environment where employees can grow, develop and flourish. In pursuit of these
objectives, human resources initiatives over the past year have focused on engaging
and developing employees, promoting the Club’s core values and enhancing
organisational capabilities. In particular, initiatives are in progress to support the new
Conghua Racecourse and in preparation for the opening of The Hilltop in the Valley.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
ETEE

Being both a large employer and dynamically changing organisation
means the Club provides many opportunities for employees to grow
and develop. Indeed, building the Club’s leadership strength and
promoting a culture of continuous development are imperatives.

In doing so, the Club is keen for employees to take ownership of
their development in partnership with their managers. In support of
this, the Club launched a career development conversation process
this year. Systematic talent review and succession planning was also
initiated with the aim of identifying engaged and talented employees
who can be developed for future leadership roles.

Essential to the Club’s organisational growth is a comprehensive range
of competency-based training and development programmes and online
learning resources. These include a management level Leadership in
Action Programme, run in partnership with Harvard Business School,
with the third wave of classes being launched in October.

Management and leadership training is also provided to assistant
executives, while a supervisory programme helps staff grade
employees manage the transition to leadership.

In 2018/19, full-time and part-time employees received approximately
248,000 hours of training.
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BUILDING CAPABILITY FOR GROWTH

BEZTRE TEERRE

In support of the new Conghua Racecourse, which opened last
August, and The Hilltop in the Valley, due to open in 2020, a major
effort is in progress to implement human resources systems and
processes and develop employee capabilities.

Conghua Racecourse operates as part of a dual-site model alongside
operations in Hong Kong. To facilitate the effective operation of this
model, a comprehensive human resources programme has been put
in place, covering such areas as training and development, processes
and policies, system implementation, and employee engagement. All of
this is based on industry best practice and on the Club’s core values.

Conghua Racecourse currently has a full-time strength of 590
employees, the majority of whom are recruited from the Mainland.
Comprehensive induction is provided to all new employees, with
tailor-made development programmes provided for key racing-
related positions such as work riders, stables assistants, farriers, track
assistants and veterinary surgeons. In addition, a Personal Development
Plan has been launched to enhance the capabilities of team leaders.

To support Membership’s development plan, which aims to enhance
the membership experience at clubhouses and racecourses, the
Club has established the Membership Hospitality Academy. The
Academy will provide professional development and qualifications to
the membership team and has been granted QF Level 4 and Level 5
accreditation by The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications. The Club is the first member of Hong
Kong'’s hospitality industry to offer such a qualification.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Employees

¥%OopE 8T
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The Club well understands that effective two-way communication EerAENNEnERESNEERE
is essential for efficient operations and employee well-being. This I%xb\ﬁzﬁii%ig » Btk BIERREEZRET
starts from the very beginning of the employment relationship. Vi EE—HERERER
To help new employees adapt and integrate into the Club, a AHBHETERERS AKE SR
comprehensive induction programme has been developed. In TEAEMNHRBEE OFEEINGES
addition to introducing the Club and its core businesses, the REZOER WS EENEESA ©
programme includes visits to key operational venues. It can be STERETERNEINEEMES
customised to suit the needs of different levels of employees. HE:)
To enhance Club-wide communications, the employee intranet AIEEEZRNER  BETAEE
MyJC.com has also been revamped and relaunched. The new site MyJC.comFEf 7% - WE EHHES o
features enhanced functions, a contemporary design and an intuitive  ##EEE 7 A H&IHEE - BRIRTRE
navigation experience that can flexibly deliver content to employees. B LB seR TR E TEENE
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This year’s graduate trainees. The Club aims to recruit the very best talent.
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EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING
BT HUMEE

Employee health and well-being is very important to the Club. The
Club supports and promotes work-life balance and regularly reviews
its staff welfare policies.

This year, as part of its family-friendly policy, and in line with market
trends, the Club extended several leave entitiements for eligible
employees. Marriage leave was increased from three to five working
days. Paid maternity leave for mothers-to-be was increased from 10
weeks to 14 weeks, while new fathers can take up to five working days
of paternity leave. Eligible employees can also apply for compassionate
leave in the event of the loss of grandparents or grandparents-in-law.

Two new types of leave were also introduced for eligible employees,
namely for employees adopting a child and for those engaging

in voluntary work in the community. Employees are particularly
encouraged to participate in Club-sponsored voluntary work.

In support of work-life balance, the Club has a longstanding
Corporate Wellness Programme, which this year saw the launch of
iCareU@hkjc to promote mental health awareness.
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The Staff Social Club is a popular
way to relax and socialise outside
of work.
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The Leadership in Action Programme, run in partnership with Harvard Business School, is developing the Club’s management talent.

SERXAMAFERSMTHREIRE  FEREAT -

A RESPECTFUL AND VALUES-BASED WORKPLACE

HEEE - BEATHIIFEE

Underpinning the ethos and conduct of the Club are its four

core values of world-class leadership, uncompromising integrity,
continuous development and serving the community. These are
values which the Club expects its employees to embrace and
practise in pursuit of its overall purpose of working for the betterment
of society.

To this end, all employees receive a copy of the Club’s Code of
Conduct, which provides guidance on workplace behaviour and
ethics. The Club also has an anti-bribery policy in line with its status
as a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

The Club is strongly committed to providing a positive and inclusive
working environment for all its employees. This includes the
provision of equal employment opportunities and ensuring that the
workplace is free from discrimination, harassment and victimisation.
The Club’s Policy on Equal Employment Opportunities sets out its
standpoint and requires full compliance from every employee. Where
necessary the Club has taken, and will take action to ensure that a
respectful and tolerant work environment is maintained.

To help employees better understand the relevant ordinances and
familiarise themselves with the Club’s related policies, the Club
has launched mandatory e-learning courses. Subjects include anti-
bribery and integrity management as well as guidance on how to
ensure a discrimination and harassment-free workplace.

SENESNEESEERNNEZE
B SHEE - BIRIE - FEESRR
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==}
~B8 °

REFU-BE FEAMBETIKE(E
IR ERETEBNITAMNERRT
85I o WO - RIB P BRG] - BE
BROE®E Bt RMERE—EN
EEEFEANERBACHIREREBR -

HILER - SERNRABNETIRERY
RABNWTERE  BEREHETFERER
ERBRTERRARE BENNET
B FENTESREHSBXMATEN
N5 WERMBEETET - MEFE -
FSEEERTE  UESEHEERE
BHITARE -

RBBETINRT BERKRHIRAESFE
MR - SEEHRFMAE EEER
B AREREREREHEEE  UKkE
RIERIR BB RMEBENES

131



Y,
4
e
.m..
_..\. r
i)

Y o«

W‘ 7S

ENVIRONMENT

5

"



OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment
¥XKEE R5R

The Club is committed to working for a greener future. By reducing our
carbon footprint, making optimum use of our resources and working hand-
in-hand with our many community partners, we aim to improve our business
performance and contribute to a greener, more sustainable society.

FEFIMBRATE » BREERRE - RPBERIBRED - ERMER - URE-F
HEBFEFEF BREEAZZEN  BEDRRFR BRUKEZRNLSFLER -

GREEN GOVERNANCE
REEE

Leading the Club’s drive towards more environmentally sustainable
operations is a Sustainability Committee on which all major
operational divisions are represented. It is responsible for overseeing
the Club’s environmental policy and practices, and reports directly
to the Club’s Board of Management.

An Environmental Committee has also been established at the
Club’s new Conghua Racecourse (CRC). The governance at CRC
accords with the international standard, ISO14001.

Over the past year, the Club has been adapting its environmental
policy to CRC, with a specific focus on training and equipping new
staff to deliver environmentally responsible operations. It has also
begun monitoring environmental performance as operations have
come on stream. This data will be added to the scope of reporting
once it is fully available.

With respect to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course,
the Club’s public riding schools and Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage
and Arts, these are reported under “Other Operations” in this section
of the report.

SEERREEEHE T REENM
MRRAN  TEFESERELELRE
RAFERRES ZZES8ERES
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» B AT A1S014001 HEIBZXE -

BE—F FEEERLSSHER - B
BRAREK - AHEFERIHET - BR
HITHBRERRRREM - BEERLS
SRAEF - FETRREEFSNRR
AN RERXEBEE - HEEASAA
HREEE -

EREFEEAMNABRSHEARRES  FE
BRIMERRAE — HEREMNENEER
B BIRTX [ EMZER | 2EihER -




HKJC ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS
BERFEA

Complying with applicable legal requirements and other
environmental requirements to which HKJC facilities subscribe.

Educating, training and motivating Y ERE AR RS R RN RRESR -

employees to carry out tasks in an
environmentally responsible

and proactive manner.
AETREHBREI . SEBM
TEREEEEBRRET-

Encouraging the same level of environmental
performance among our business partners,
suppliers, contractors and sub-contractors.
SREEBEN - HED APPRIHBES
R HRRKF

Integrating environmental

considerations into the delivery of our
services and the planning, design,
construction, operation and maintenance
of our facilities.
EFERERBURRIENES - Rt
2 BEFENEELE BARRTE-

Supporting community-based
environmental efforts, conservation and
programmes.
TEHHERRIERRBE -

Preventing pollution, minimising waste through source reduction
and recycling, and conserving natural resources.

Bl | EBRERER QW EE  BEEDRERS
UREBERARENR

MANAGING OUR HOOFPRINT
BIRFRAFIAY [ EHED

While the Club continues to address all aspects of its hoofprint, its
main objectives are to improve energy efficiency and manage other

SERBENSTERD [ 8]
REAERNE - WERRMEER KRS

resources needed to deliver its products and services.

The Club tracks performance and drives improvement by setting key
performance indicators for each area of its operations and reviewing
them half-yearly. These environmental targets cover a set of sustainability
indicators related to electricity consumption, managing environmental
risk, improving air quality and reducing consumption and waste.

It strives to achieve high environmental standards. For example, the
New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, due to open in 2020, has been
awarded a BEAM Plus Provisional Gold certificate by the Green
Building Council in recognition of its world-class environmental
design and planned operational efficiencies.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment

¥R RR
Ll AY

Hiz BERR
In 2018/19, the Club’s total carbon footprint was essentially E2018M19FE - BEmBIEEEEAF X
unchanged from the previous year and was 6.3% lower than the B8R - MEZ2009/10 EAEFEMEEMLL -
base year of 2009/10. As noted, this excludes Conghua Racecourse,  BIE46.3% o t0_E X Fritt - BIRALESH
where full data is not yet available. FERBB ARG - BN ARIIAGTEEE
Overall, the decrease in CO,-e emissions over the past nine BREME  —SthIENEEERENTF
years reflects smart investments in energy efficiency in the face BEFTY  JRRMEEREERERZ
of expanding business operations. With electricity accounting for B DEEMBERMREHAERE - FTE
more than 90 per cent of reported emissions, efforts have focused HOBEHED - BiB0% REE LM
on improving the energy efficiency of buildings, including via more Bt BMZERSERENE HUE
efficient air conditioning systems, lighting and IT infrastructure. BiEEEFAESMENTZ AR - B

REMBZREERNE

CARBON EMISSIONS (CO; - e in tonnes) FxBE (=St fBER

2009/10
Baseline
2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 HEFE

110,009 109,896 111,836 116,434
7,357 7,451 7,599 8,765

" Historical data revised in alignment with financial reporting. /&5 8% € 1% #8 BT 15 E SRS (5K o
@ Includes Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2016/17. Data for 2009/10 baseline updated with adjustment in emission factors. B¥%:% 24t & Fr (H 2009/10
FE)RRYIPAE (B2016/17 FE) HEE - 2009/10 B EFENHIECRBHHRAZHEMEL -

The Club is increasing its usage of electric and hybrid vehicles.
FEEESENEAEEERBAE -
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ENERGY EFFICIENCY
RETR W 2

The Club is continuously seeking to improve its energy efficiency.
For existing buildings, long-term investment plans have been
established, while new buildings are designed to achieve high levels
of efficiency. Sha Tin Communications and Technology Centre,
which was designed as a green building, was awarded a BEAM Plus
Gold certificate after opening in 2015.

Measures to improve the energy efficiency of existing properties
include the installation of LED lighting and retro-commissioning
to optimise performance. For example, the fine-tuning of building
management systems is helping to optimise the performance of
cooling systems, where the aim is to improve energy efficiency by
between 2% and 5% by 2020.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION geJR{E A 1ER

Year FE

HONG KONG OPERATIONS " BEBERY
Electricity (kWh) EH (FREF)
Towngas (units) RR(E)

BS &S (A FH)
Sl (AaFH)
FOB(AF)
BHRR(AFH)

Aith 5 @
EH(FEE)
KAR(LFK)

Biodiesel (B5) (litres)
Diesel (litres)

Petrol (litres)

LPG (litres)

MAINLAND OPERATIONS @
Electricity (kWh)
Natural gas (m°)

0, Offices
15% ya=

Clubhouses

2018/19

174,006,240
873,354
217,691
273,910

53,238

7,965,973
228,808

ENERGY USE

BEREAER
(y Telebet Centres
0 gmrsn
0/, Staff Quarters and
3 A) Club Vehicles
EIEERESEHR
Off-Course
1 39 Betting Branches
BIMNRIER

0. Racecourses
50% Fe

BSE-HEHNEAERNE - KACHE
EEREYFERERETE > MPERMNE
FEYNRERIER SRR EAEZE -

D HBIAR R A ORARRRE 0 2015
FHREZCERRSERIN LA

RARBYHEERNENEREERE
LEDREARG R B - BREHEZE
B Pl BSEMRETEERRS U
Bz BEMS RERNEE - BEE2020
FHRZARABERYE2% E5% °

2009/10
Baseline

2017/18 2016/17 HEFE

174,290,097
873,496
222,180
181,759

62,514

- 6,881

171,690,670 174,835,923
857,637 798,673
200,424 =
164,258 420,343

70,647 77,833
12,462 11,685

8,056,567
236,587

8,212,671
232,993

9,383,904
230,748

O Historical data revised in alignment with financial reporting. Clubhouses include Beas River Equestrian Centre. /&% 85T 2RI K ERBEEL B R @ RSB LOTHM PO ©
@ Includes Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2016/17. #{%i% 21t =& FT (E 2009/10 ) BRI A ZE (B 2016/17 F ) W EISELE o
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WATER CONSUMPTION F7k&

Year

HONG KONG OPERATIONS ™
WATER - from municipal
source (m°)
MAINLAND OPERATIONS @

WATER - from municipal
source (m°)

FE 2018/19
EBERY
K — R B &K
A& (L HK)
it ¥ 78 @

K — RE#EH K
R (L FK)

2,017,023

100,712

' Historical data revised in alignment with financial reporting. B &% € & RIS E R LB
@ Includes Beijing Clubhouse from 2009/10 and office operations in Shenzhen from 2016/17. B(¥5% 2 1t TSP (B 2009/10F ) RFYIH A E (B 2016/17 F ) WEKBE -

AIR QUALITY

REFHR

The Club is committed to improving air quality, to which end it supports
the use of electric and hybrid vehicles. To lower engine emissions, the
Club has progressively tightened motor vehicle and fuel standards

in line with international norms and local market availability. It is the
Club’s policy to favour the purchase of only electric or hybrid vehicles.

Having set a target for 25% of its passenger vehicles to be
electric or hybrid by 2018, the Club surpassed this figure at

the end of March 2017. This year a new target was adopted to
convert 100% of all eligible passenger vehicles to either electric
or hybrid by 2022.

The Club is currently phasing out its Euro IV or earlier off-road
vehicles. As of this year, it has a set a target that all non-passenger
vehicles, including tractors, will have a minimum Euro V emission
control standard by 2022. Currently B5 (Biodiesel) is used for water
trucks, tractors, stand-by generators and other machinery at Happy
Valley and Sha Tin racecourses.

WATER MANAGEMENT
FKERE

The Club monitors water use rigorously, undertaking investigation and
repair as necessary. Water use has risen over the past year due to the
extension of the district cooling system at Sha Tin Racecourse, where
the volume of make-up water has increased.

2017/18

1,953,976

98,144

OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment
RBERE R5

2013/14
Baseline

2016/17 HEFE

1,898,235 1,738,946

99,012

FERNREZRER  BUEDHERE
BRBREE - BB SIEHRETRY -
FSECRBEIES R AT ISHHE
B BN ERBEHAMEHRE
Lo SERRELRBESIRES

BEERFETHEZ  £2018FHZASH
ABESREEELLFIEZE25% » BEAEE
ER2017F3AREBETK - EESFH
EHEZER  E2022EHZ AR IE
ERSAEREASHHRAE -

o SEEBRLEARBIESE R
BSRHIFERR B B - 38T - IBF R
DHEBSHKE - B - RERERR
HiEmMHIERBS £ - TBEES
FETER » sHESENESFRAFRA
BEWA2022F R 2 ELVETHBR RN
PERIE IR o

SEREEEAKER  BFRIETH
EREE - BE—F - PASSHNEEM
REPEBETIRETRE » SISAEHRAK
XU EFH - AXKETREAMBFEM -
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SMART PURCHASING AND WASTE AVOIDANCE
AR PR BB SRR

In support of the Government’s target of a 40% reduction in waste BEERFTBZTE 2022 F5 2 ATAS R
sent to landfill by 2022, the Club has adopted a four-part reduction HEBEYRED 40%  BSEEHMHLAE L
strategy of avoiding and reducing material consumption, reusing, WEEEE 0 DRl AERERIFAEE - BIR
donating and recycling. BA - BEREY -

In 2014/15, the Club conducted a waste audit to establish a waste B EN2014/15 FEEITREYERT » iR
reduction management plan. A further review in 2018/19, which HIE DRER EYEIETE]] - 201819FE -
focused on quantifying waste being sent to landfill, provided a EMEEEREYEERR  SE2RE
deeper insight into waste management. It is currently guiding the HIEBWEY  E—DRATHEYER -
Club’s preparations for the Government’s proposed waste charging B EZNAR B ETT BITEHK R 2020 F
plan, which is expected to come into effect in 2020. £ SEERMETEBINE  MBERA

BEHEERSERMMERES -

PAPER PURCHASED #RiiEE

2009/10

Baseline

Year FE 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 HEFE
HONG KONG OPERATIONS &H#B¥%%

BET SLIPS (Thousand sheets) ¥Z(FiR) 435,081 449,278 484,465 647,294

FSC paper RMEEZR 100% 100% 100% 18.6%
(FSC)R

8

FRRE

BET RECEIPTS BOEWIE 199 205 220 264
(Thousand paper rolls) (F%) (2011/12)

OFFICE COPY PAPER PAEITENA () 6,335 6,555 6,372 9,714
(boxes)

Paper Avoidance and Reduction

w KR R

The Club purchases both 100% recycled paper and paper from ESRENRAZAMEHYIE100% BiE4HK
sustainable sources for its office use. To reduce usage, the Club has S B AliFERE AL - D BEm
set a ten-year copy paper reduction target of 40% to be achieved 5 BEETTFER  sHEIR202157 8
by July 2021. Measures taken include a managed print system, the B2 AHEFTEN4EEE B 24 40% o Bt »
development of digital services, and paper reduction training for BESIATIHNEERSG  BRETFRE
high-usage departments. To date, consumption has fallen by 39%, WHZTERES AEHPIRERD RS
from 26 million sheets to 15.9 million sheets. e BERIF AL - HRARCHEFELN

2,600 &3k © B2 39% £ 1,590 &5k °
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e-channels are helping to reduce paper usage at Off-Course Betting Branches.

BN REBEFRERNER - HORK -

Paper Reduction at Off-Course Betting Branches
SIMEER D A4

The Club’s Retail Department has been steadily migrating customer
transactions to online channels. As a result of this, of green
messaging, and of other measures such as the redesign of Mark Six
tickets, consumption of betting receipts has fallen by more than 1.5
million metres since 2017/18.

Paper Reduction at badges Magazine
(badges) B E A TR A

In April, the membership magazine badges was launched as a
single-language edition, with members invited to choose between
an online or a printed version in either English or Chinese. This

is expected to reduce paper usage by an estimated 38%, or the
equivalent of 36 tonnes of paper per year.

Avoiding Food Waste
A ER

Food waste from the Club’s central kitchens, restaurants and

staff canteens is currently collected on a daily basis and delivered to
the Government’s new organic waste treatment facility, the
O-PARK1, for conversion into biogas and compost. Additionally,
food that is safe for consumption is donated to the Bo Foundation
and St. James’ Settlement to be converted into meals for the elderly
and for those living on low incomes.

OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment
¥KERE RIR

&

v

SETENEESHRERINBEM L
ST LR ARREN T R E
R ABRRRSHIE SYRARAR

B201718EERHABB 1508 K o

SHE4R > (badges) BEEATIUNE—FES
AR WBGES SIRBR IR AR © A
R ESRAENRIAE  FERESFRSA
#H38% » HHER 36 AMIALIR ©

B SESHgKREYRER - BERE
TEENEE  2EBUNHRNEHRERE
00 - PARKT » BB b A= YR TR -
o BETEHTZEZRANERBE TN
BEXZHSREREEHS  EREERER
FREMEBAAL ©
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Avoiding Single-use Plastic
BREAMNELER

The Club implemented a policy on avoiding single-use plastic in
September 2018. Seven categories of plastic are currently being
targeted, including single-use water bottles and utensils, drinking
straws and takeaway food containers.

In particular, this year the Club stopped selling or providing water in
plastic bottles, resulting in an avoidance of 300,000 plastic bottles
during the year. Water is instead provided via established water
points at racecourses, riding schools and in Club offices, with new
water points being added and others upgraded.

The Club continues to actively pursue ways to avoid or replace
plastic items. Departments have been invited to suggest potential
items, with some forms of plastic packaging and some types

of frequently purchased materials being phased out as a result.

In addition, personal care products used at the Club have been
reviewed to ensure they do not contain microbeads.

Meanwhile, at the Clubhouses, plastic bags are no longer provided
in changing rooms, while a new towel policy has reduced usage of
bath towels by 25%.

SOURCE SEPARATION, DONATIONS AND

Year FE

HONG KONG OPERATIONS EBER
DONATIONS, FOOD (kg) BEEM(Ar)
RECYCLING 51

BER (A T)

BEME (D)

WEB(AR)

BR(AF)

eBm(AF)

ETREEY (1)

Food waste (kg)
Paper (kg)

Glass Bottles (kg)
Plastic (kg)

Metal (kg)
e-waste (units)
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2018/19

9,501

1,051,662
576,923
121,319

91,967
17,465
3,298

EEnN2018F 9 BT R A FHENE
BBWEEK  BRRE L KENEZRE
HRl  BREEEKRER  REMNE
Bg2E o

Ef - FESFFLHERREHEREER
Ko FRGUBHEIOBERE - 55 - &
MERF TS MWD EIRRAKERE © R
IBEREKIES - BETEE D RAKRNE
TS o

SEREIHSRART  BREARIE
BRER BRASHMZREEREER
BERDBERIEBERER —LER
BENYH - I SECEREEMN
REANBEAEEER  BRTSWER
FEAL o

BEER - SEEMERETBRUBRE
WERHNEMEER » SENAERD
25% °

2017/18 2016/17

12,410 15,489
858,676
534,756
98,406
61,617
4,824
5,178

865,472
526,980
106,081
38,417
5,495
13,686

2009/10
queline
EREE




OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment
¥XKEE R5R

CONGHUA RACECOURSE

0 =

=3

The Club is very aware of the need to protect the natural environment BERH ILEENBERBRRXEZE
in which Conghua Racecourse (CRC) is located. RE -

Environmental monitoring was carried out throughout CRC’s RACBENEZBREY  FE—HEEREME
construction phase, with numerous environmental protection features BREEH EAIERPERAKRER
and devices being incorporated into its design. These include a RERREE  BEPEEEIFARKKRS
drainage system designed to separate storm water and waste water. KEVHEKZRL - REBLEMSKESSER
Equine-related waste water is treated at an on-site plant which utilises  EREA YR EERAREIIZEE » &
membrane bioreactor technology. The treated water is RIBENSKEERERERY - it -

subsequently reused for turf irrigation, floor washing, BEE R EAR -

ardening and flushing.
garcening 9 ERREEREE  WE - FAREND

RIRBHE - BRCFE2ERAEE
B IR S S F IV IRIR ARG o

The four key areas of air, noise, water and waste
continue to be monitored. The aim is to ensure that by 1
the time CRC becomes fully operational, it functions in
accordance with the commitments the Club has made.




OTHER OPERATIONS
H =755

Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course’s carbon emissions
decreased by 0.9% from the previous year, with emissions

in 2018/19 being 4,694 tonnes of CO;-e. lts consumption of
municipal water rose in the past year but was 68.7% lower
than its baseline year of 2013/14, with total consumption being
37,947 m® for 2018/19.

Carbon emissions for the three public riding schools in 2018/19
were 562 tonnes of CO.-e, down 2.9% from the previous year.
Though their consumption of municipal water increased last year,
this was nonetheless 16.4% lower than the baseline year

of 2013/14.

In its first year of operations, carbon emissions for Tai Kwun —
Centre for Heritage and Arts were 5,131 tonnes of CO»-e. Municipal
water use was 18,492 m®. This data is for buildings and public areas
managed and operated by The Jockey Club CPS Limited only. It
excludes restaurants, retail outlets and other areas managed and
operated by tenants, licensees and other operators.

Year
KAU SAI CHAU PUBLIC
GOLF COURSE SRS
Electricity (kWh) EH(FEME)
Diesel (litres) Sem(aF)™
S (D)
ARBRER
N (FRH)
B5 ¥ 4m (A F)"
RE — HER
E1figg @
B (FERAE)
Sl (AaFH)

FE
BEMNAR

Petrol (litres) "

PUBLIC RIDING SCHOOLS
Electricity (kWh)
Biodiesel (B5) (litres) "
TAI KWUN - CENTRE FOR
HERITAGE AND ARTS @
Electricity (kWh)
Diesel (litres)

“ Includes data since 2016/17. J&# E 2016/17 4 [ LARAIEIE o

® 2018/19 was the first full year of operations at Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts. Data is for buildings and public areas managed and operated by The Jockey Club CPS Limited

2018/19

5,269,113
655,013
28,346

992,384

BTN ARSEAIKENR2018/19FEM
B RE N 4,694 AW —ELBRHER
B8 BEFTE0.9% - BigF AT
KRG AKR201819FEERBFHRLEH -
SH3E 37,947 53K 0 {BE2013/14 %
EEHA68.7% °

=B A RBITERNA 2018/19 FE MY
HHEREN562 A SRR E
B BEFETH29% - HAR=RERM
HHHARGAKEEEGH LA » B&
201314 EEFEHL16.4% °

REE — HEE R BT B A& B F E A
HEHEERS 131 A _ALEHFHNESE
& KRG AKERIR 18,492 5K °
HEBERSETEXNREERAAE
BEREBNRENR AHZRE - WARETRE
P BRI ATREMEERAEERE
ENERE  TEERRESE -

2017/18 2016/17

5,189,831
680,152
31,218

5,138,762
682,981
30,952

1,034,662
3,458

1,135,878

3,884 3,063

6,412,017

483

only. 2018/19 R AfE — HEREMEEERRELENFE  HEBBRAREESEXNREFRLANEEREENEENR AHLZM -
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2013/14
Ba}seline
EEERE

5,075,433

780,391




WATER CONSUMPTION - from
municipal source (m®)

Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course

Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage

WATER CONSUMPTION F7k&

FE 2018/19

k& — RB#E™
FOKRBE (LK)
EEMNARERARE
DNREMTER
KREE — HER

Eifigg

Public Riding Schools

and Arts

ENGAGEMENT
BhSER

Through its engagement strategies, the Club seeks to embed
sustainability concepts among its employees and to contribute to the
wider community. In the latter respect, the Club shares its learning,
supports public and business initiatives, and forms partnerships with
NGOs to address sustainability issues.

Green Education and Action
FEHBERITE

Environmental education is provided to all full-time employees and,
where appropriate, to part-time employees. All new full-time employees
learn about the Club’s environmental commitment and initiatives
during their induction training. Two environmental e-learning courses
on policies and guidelines were launched in July 2018, with the policies
course being compulsory for executives and assistant executives.

In addition to these education initiatives, waste compliance
training is provided to staff in key roles, with some 100
employees being trained each year. Sustainability training has
also been developed for Membership’s new staff induction
programme.

To further raise environmental awareness, the Club organises
regular Green Action programmes, including recycling campaigns,
awareness programmes, training and eco-tours. This year these
included an eco-tour for staff and their families to Lamma Island,
where they learned about the island’s biodiversity and ecology.

OPERATIONS REVIEW Environment
RBERE R5

2013/14
Baseline

2017/18 2016/17 HEFE

@ 2018/19 was the first full year of operations at Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts. Data is for buildings and public areas managed and operated by The Jockey Club CPS Limited

only. 2018/19RAfE — HERBEHEXELENTE  HHEBEREEESETXREERANEEREENEENR AHEMY -

TEEBHERR  FERAETEATE
BRREUSKRERMULE - EERERLE
IS ZEBHERBETRNLRRE
®atE > EREFRFASSERE AR
BRRSBH -

BEEAAMMEEBEIRGENRIEBETR
HIRREE - MEFABNEZHET IS
EABSEIGTHREERENRRIER
EE) o BEM2018F 7 AEEMIERTRR
REERIESIMNMA LR » EPBERRE
AITBABRMBITRAESNHMERS °

BRTY EMBEBETEN  FERATREN
METRHENERSHRIZI - BF2M
BINETE10SE - 5—FH - FE
EASESKHIE T ARSI 2IMA
AR AVED -

RAE-—SRARRER - SENREHE
AAEHEBAENER - BELWES
BRRESEEE  BIIRERKES -
SEZHOEAETIRERBENEY S
LRI RES LNENSEERER

i -
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Nature Programmes for Club Members
FEgERAKREAR

Through its new Nature Explorer and Nature Discovery programmes,
Beas River Country Club is encouraging members to explore the
biodiversity of its grounds and learn more about the ecology of the
New Territories. Beas River is home to many rare species of animals,
butterflies, birds and plants.

Community Engagement
HEIEE

The Club actively shares best practice and engages the community
on environmental issues. For example, it has provided knowledge
and support to the Hong Kong Rugby Football Union for their
Reusable Cup Initiative, which introduced reusable plastic
beverage cups at major rugby events in 2019, including the Hong
Kong Rugby Sevens.

The Club continues to support #DrinkWithoutWaste, a cross-
sectoral group of corporations, NGOs and institutions. For a second
year, the Club also sponsored the Hong Kong Institute of Qualified
Environmental Professionals, which seeks to raise standards and
recognition of environmental professionals in Hong Kong.

With the aim of inspiring and informing the next generation, the
Club continues to provide tertiary students with tickets and access
to environmental seminars, workshops and industry visits. In 2019,
these events included the Chinese University of Hong Kong’s
Sustainability Conference.

For further details of the Club’s environmental commitment and
progress, please see its Environmental Reports, which are available
on the Club’s website.
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) is a world-class racing club that acts continuously for
the betterment of our society. Through its integrated business model of world-class racing and
racecourse entertainment, membership club, responsible sports wagering and lottery, and charity
and community contribution, the Club generates economic and social value for the community.

The Club, together with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), is Hong Kong’s largest single
taxpayer, contributing a record HK$23.3 billion in 2018/19. The Club allocates its surplus funds to
charitable and community projects via The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”),
which is one of the world’s top ten providers of charity funding. In 2018/19, the Trust approved
HK$4.3 billion in donations to 294 charitable and community projects.

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS FROM
THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS (HK$M)
ERAESEAECHESKRATAEREREANERNALZER(EERT)

1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000

Approved donations from The Hong Kong * Approved donation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Jockey Club Group to the Trust Group to the Trust for the Hong Kong Palace Museum

BEEEFTEREQGTESEHNER ERESERERFERNTLEY
EEREEESFHNER

Approved donations from the P Approved donation from the Trust for

Trust to charitable organisations
and community projects

FRESAESHER A58 B FHABR

the Hong Kong Palace Museum

ERESREBRE XL EYEEHHOER

GROUP STRUCTURE

The Club is a Hong Kong incorporated company with liability limited by guarantee. Through its
wholly owned subsidiaries, HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited, HKJC Football Betting Limited and
HKJC Lotteries Limited, the Club holds the sole licences for the operation and management of
Hong Kong’s horse race betting, football betting and Mark Six lottery. The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Membership Services Limited, another principal subsidiary, manages members’ social and
recreational facilities.

The Trust is a public charity and is primarily engaged in supporting charitable and community
projects in Hong Kong.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The Club has no shareholders and is governed by an elected Board of Stewards whose members
possess a wide cross-section of business and community experience and serve without
remuneration.
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In line with the Government’s policy of meeting public demand for gambling through a regulated
and responsible channel, the Club provides all on-course betting and has been authorised as Hong
Kong’s sole provider of off-course betting services on horse racing since 1973. It has been the
authorised operator of the Mark Six lottery since 1975. In 2003, to combat illegal betting on football
matches, it was further authorised by the Government to provide a regulated football betting service.
The Club’s betting licences are issued and overseen by the Home Affairs Bureau in consultation
with the Betting and Lotteries Commission.

In support of its commitment to promote responsible gambling, the Club engages with the
Government, police, gambling care agencies, customers, employees and international organisations
to establish measures to protect Hong Kong people from excessive and illegal gambling. In 2003,
the Club supported the Government’s establishment of the Ping Wo Fund, an independent body
which finances preventive and remedial measures to address gambling-related problems.

The Club’s wide-ranging role as Hong Kong’s largest provider of sporting and wagering entertainment,
major source of tax and charity funding, prestigious membership club and significant employer,
means that most individuals and organisations in Hong Kong can be considered as the Club’s
stakeholders. The major stakeholder groups include the Club’s customers, members, employees,
Government departments, local community bodies, the Legislative Council, District Councils and
the media. It also has extensive relationships with various governmental and non-governmental
bodies through its charity and community work.

Internationally the Club maintains wide-ranging industry connections through its membership of
the Asian Racing Federation (Chairman), International Federation of Horseracing Authorities (Vice-
Chairman, Asia), and World Lottery Association (Co-Vice President) amongst others. The Club also
hosts the Secretariat of the Asian Racing Federation. Through participation in these bodies, the
Club is able to shape international standards, policies and protocols for the benefit of the industry
and in support of its own business development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

This was the first full year of operation for The Hong Kong Jockey Club Conghua Racecourse
(CRC), the Club’s new world-class thoroughbred training centre located in the Conghua district of
Guangzhou, PRC. CRC functions as part of a dual-site model together with the Club’s Hong Kong
training centre at Sha Tin. This is facilitated by its location in the Mainland’s only large scale and
multi-purpose equine disease-free zone as well as by special arrangements for the cross-boundary
movement of horses to and from Hong Kong.

With nine trainers currently utilising Conghua, and another four to start using it before the start of the
2019/20 season, CRC has proven a great success. Indeed, as demonstrated by the exhibition race
day held on 23 March, which was attended by senior Mainland and Hong Kong SAR Government
officials, CRC has great potential to contribute to the development of the Greater Bay Area. In
this respect the Club fully supports the Outline Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area, announced by the Central Government in February, which includes goals
for further developing equestrian sports and related industries through strengthening co-operation
between Hong Kong and the Mainland.

The strength and quality of Hong Kong racing was underlined at this year’s LONGINES Hong
Kong International Races, where, for the first time, Hong Kong horses swept to victory in all four
international Group 1 races. The winner of the LONGINES Hong Kong Mile, Beauty Generation,
was subsequently rated the joint best miler on turf in the world in the 2018 LONGINES World’s
Best Racehorse Rankings. He joined a total of 25 Hong Kong horses rated 115 above, with Hong
Kong once again having the highest number of horses in the rankings relative to the size of its horse
population. Meanwhile, 11 of Hong Kong’s 12 international Group 1 races featured amongst the
World’s Top 100 Group 1 Races.
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Hong Kong’s newest international raceday, FWD Champions Day, was likewise a great success,
attracting strong contenders from four overseas jurisdictions to compete in its three international
Group 1 contests.

Fundamental to Hong Kong’s world-class racing are Sha Tin and Happy Valley racecourses, where
the focus is on creating a unique social, sporting and entertainment experience. At Happy Valley this
includes themed racenight parties, which have made it one of Hong Kong’s top tourist attractions.
Both racecourses are undergoing a major revitalisation as part of a multi-year HK$7.0 billion
Racecourse Master Plan, with one new venue opening this season and more to open in 2019/20.
Overall racecourse attendance for the season was 2.2 million.

Equally fundamental to the Club’s success is the strength of its wagering and information technology,
where it is a world leader. This season saw further enhancements to digital products, with new
features added to the popular HKJC TV and Racing Touch applications. A rolling programme to
renovate Off-Course Betting Branches also continued, with five new-look branches opening at the
beginning of the season.

The high quality and integrity of the Club’s racing and the strong liquidity of its betting pools make
it increasingly attractive to overseas racing fans, with commingling turnover increasing by 13.5%
this season to HK$18.8 billion. In particular, this season the Club hosted its first commingled
pool on an overseas race meeting. The Ascot World Pool, offered in partnership with Ascot and
Totepool, saw a notable increase in turnover across the five days of Royal Ascot. With additional
partners in Denmark, Norway and Grenada joining, as of next season the Club will have more than
40 commingling partners in 14 countries and jurisdictions; all of which gives added impetus to Hong
Kong'’s position as the global hub for commingling.

The attractiveness of Hong Kong racing overseas is part of a growing trend towards globalisation
in sport. In Hong Kong this is manifest in the increasing popularity of simulcast racing, with fans
watching and wagering on some of the best overseas races, with turnover increasing by 14.6% this
season to HK$4.5 billion. At present, the Club has 23 simulcast days plus 10 individual races on
local race days.

Overall racing turnover this season, including commingling and simulcast wagering, was HK$124.8
billion. Betting duty contributed to the Government was HK$13.0 billion.

With the objective of combatting illegal and offshore bookmakers, and to prevent the siphoning of
money from the community, in 2003 the Government authorised the Club to provide wagering on
football. Since then the Club has become one of the world’s largest and most successful operators,
generating substantial tax and charity returns for the community.

This year the Club achieved another record football betting turnover of HK$114.1 billion, representing
an increase of 10.7% over last year. This generated HK$7.7 billion in betting duty to the Government,
with a similar amount returned to the Club.

What makes this possible is the Club’s ability to provide timely information through digital and
mobile channels as well as to meet customer demand for wagering on a wide range of football
leagues and tournaments, including, this year, the closing stages of the 2018 World Cup Finals.

Mark Six lottery turnover, at HK$8.4 billion, was up 4.3% on last year. It is worth noting that despite
the slight increase in turnover, the game format of the Mark Six has not changed significantly since
its introduction.
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The Club’s members, most especially its horse owning members, are integral to the Club’s success
and to carrying forward its commitment to the betterment of society. To serve the needs of current
and future members, a comprehensive development plan is in progress which aims to improve both
the portfolio of clubhouses and the overall membership experience.

Most notably, work is well-advanced on the New Clubhouse at Happy Valley, which together with
the existing Old Clubhouse forms The Hilltop in the Valley. Due to open in 2020, it will provide many
more dining, fitness and lifestyle opportunities.

The Trust approved a total of HK$4.3 billion in donations this year, slightly above last year’s record
high. The Trust continues to support a broad range of community needs, with a record 294 charitable
and community projects benefiting. In addition, the Trust has four specific areas of focus: youth; the
elderly; sports; and arts, culture and heritage.

One of the Trust’s largest projects, the restoration of the Central Police Station compound and its
revitalisation as Tai Kwun — Centre for Heritage and Arts, celebrated its first anniversary this year. In
its first year of operation Tai Kwun received over 3.4 million visits, making it the most visited heritage
site in Hong Kong. It has also been widely recognised as a model of heritage conservation and a
must-see visitor attraction.

This year also saw the second edition of the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum. Inaugurated by
the Trust two years ago, it seeks to facilitate cross-sector collaboration and cultivate long-term
partnerships with a view to addressing the social issues facing 21st century cities, particularly in
Asia. Over 1,400 delegates and 67 distinguished speakers from around the world attended.

The Club is strongly committed to protecting the environment. In support of this, it is focusing
on reducing carbon emissions, improving energy efficiency and improving its management of
resources. The Club has invested in energy-efficient systems and IT solutions, notably to improve
the efficiency of cooling systems. The Club’s suppliers are expected to follow a set of sustainability
guidelines, while efforts have been made to enhance green awareness among employees. The
Club has established a waste reduction management plan, focusing on reducing consumption and
avoiding waste, with the most recent audit conducted in 2018/19. The Club has also incorporated
environmental protection features and devices into the new Conghua Racecourse. An environmental
committee has been established and staff are being trained to implement its environmental
management system. More details are provided in the environment section of this Annual Report.

The Club is licensed by the Government to provide betting services on horse racing, football
and the Mark Six lottery pursuant to the Betting Duty Ordinance. In doing so, the Club provides
a regulated channel to meet gambling demand, and works with the Government to promote
responsible gambling and to protect the public from the dangers of credit betting, illegal gambling
and associated crimes. Aside from implementing its own Responsible Gambling Policy, the Club
provides support to the Ping Wo Fund, which finances and co-ordinates preventive and remedial
measures to address gambling-related problems, as well as supporting public education initiatives.

The Club has an active responsible gambling education programme. This includes its Responsible
Awareness Week campaign, implemented in selected Off-Course Betting Branches in 2017 and this
year extended to another 40. Likewise, in the run-up to the 2019 Copa America Tournament, the
Club launched a citywide responsible gambling education and publicity campaign. More broadly,
the Club works with community partners to promote healthy lifestyles, with responsible gambling
being part of the overall message. This year, initiatives included the Family Volunteer Academy and
the Family Cinemography Contest, with participants creating audio-visual stories featuring positive
lifestyle and responsible gambling messages.
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The Club's support for responsible gambling is widely recognised. In 2011, it was granted Level
4 accreditation, the highest possible, under the Responsible Gambling Framework of the World
Lottery Association. In 2018, this was extended for the third consecutive period. The Club is the first
operator in Asia to achieve this three times in succession.

The Club is committed to preventing its operations from being used for money laundering and has
an Anti-money Laundering Policy and Framework, which makes reference to the internationally
recognised Financial Action Task Force recommendations and industry best practice.

The Club places great emphasis on developing an engaged and talented workforce. In doing so it
seeks not only to support its world-class operations but to create a positive working environment
where employees can grow, develop and flourish. In support of this, the Club launched a career
development conversation process this year. In addition, talent review and succession planning was
initiated with a view to identifying employees with leadership potential. Employees at all levels have
access to a wide range of competency-based training and development programmes and online
learning resources. In 2018/19, full-time and part-time employees received approximately 248,000
hours of training.

Employee health and well-being is very important to the Club. This year, as part of its family-friendly
policy, the Club extended leave entitlements for eligible staff taking marriage leave, paid maternity
leave and paternity leave, while two new types of leave were introduced for eligible employees
adopting a child and for those engaging in voluntary work in the community. Eligible employees can
also apply for compassionate leave in the event of the loss of grandparents or grandparents-in-law.

The Club has a longstanding Corporate Wellness Programme, which this year saw the launch of
iCareU@hkjc to promote mental health awareness. The Club’s Occupational Safety and Health
(OSH) management system, under the direction of its Corporate Safety Steering Committee,
regularly reviews policies and practices. In addition, employees receive OSH training as necessary.

To ensure open and two-way communication with employees, the Club utilises multiple channels,
including the employee intranet MyJC.com which was revamped and relaunched in August 2018.
The Club has also developed a comprehensive on-boarding programme to help new employees
learn about and integrate into the Club.

The Club is strongly committed to providing a positive working environment for all its employees.
This includes the provision of equal employment opportunities and ensuring that the workplace is
free of discrimination, harassment and victimisation. All employees receive a copy of the Club’s
Code of Conduct, which provides guidance on workplace behaviour and ethics. It also has an anti-
bribery policy aligned with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. As appropriate, staff receive training
in information security, data privacy, anti-corruption and anti-discrimination measures.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group’s total revenue increased from HK$39,475 million in 2017/18 to HK$41,129 million
this financial year, representing a growth of 4.2%. The increase was mainly attributable to higher
amounts wagered from all three wagering businesses. Net margin and commission was HK$12,910
million, HK$646 million or 5.3% higher than in 2017/18, in line with the revenue increase.

Operating costs of HK$11,754 million were HK$922 million or 8.5% higher than last financial year,
primarily driven by an increase in depreciation following the completion of capital projects during
the year, as well as by higher staff costs and increases in prize money.

The Group continued to invest substantially in operating assets and new technology platforms to
meet growing public demand and to improve asset health. During the financial year, total capital
expenditures of the Group amounted to HK$2,873 million.

GROUP REVENUE AND OPERATING COSTS (HK$M)
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The Group’s operating surplus after taxation for the year, before investment returns, gain on sale
of properties and donations to the Trust, was HK$4,522 million, HK$275 million or 5.7% lower than
last year, mainly owing to higher depreciation as a result of the completion of capital projects over
the past year.

The Group’s and the Trust’'s income statements reflect mark-to-market gains/losses on financial
investments. The Group’s investment portfolio, while not immune to volatility in financial markets, is
globally diversified across different geographic regions and asset classes, making it less susceptible
to sudden movements arising from any particular region or investment. In spite of volatility in the
financial markets in the past year as a result of various geopolitical events, slowing global economic
growth and an uncertain global outlook, the Group recorded a positive investment return of HK$1,889
million in the current financial year compared with HK$3,407 million in the last financial year.
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The financial assets of the Club and the Trust are managed under a rigorous framework, with
oversight provided by the Club’s Investment Committee, which regularly reviews and approves
all investment policies. These assets are managed by the Club’s in-house team and external
professional fund managers. The portfolios managed by the in-house team are primarily for working
capital and liquidity, and are predominantly invested in bank deposits and debt securities in high
credit quality. The portfolios managed by external fund managers are mainly for long-term capital
growth, and are invested in an array of asset classes diversified globally with the objective of
achieving consistent returns in the long run with prudent risk diversification.

The Group maintains sufficient liquid investments, cash and deposits as well as credit facilities for
business needs. The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity and
ensure that all due liabilities and known funding requirements can be met.

The Group continues to be Hong Kong’s single largest taxpayer, with total taxation (comprising
betting duty, lottery duty and profits tax) of HK$23,358 million in 2018/19. This was equivalent to
6.8% of the total taxes collected by the Inland Revenue Department during the year of assessment
2018/19. Due to higher amounts wagered and revenues, the Group’s total tax contributions during
the financial year increased by HK$712 million or 3.1% from last year.

TAX CONTRIBUTION (HK$M)
BR(AEBET)
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The Group’s net surplus after taxation, excluding donations to the Trust, was HK$6,411 million,
HK$2,107 million or 24.7% lower than last financial year, mainly owing to a lower mark-to-market
gain from the investment portfolio.

The Group has adopted operating surplus after taxation for determining its donations to the Trust.
During 2018/19, the Group approved HK$4.3 billion in donations to the Trust, which represented
95% of the Group’s operating surplus after taxation during the year.
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 14.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group approved donations of HK$4,300 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$92 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Anthony W K Chow and Mr Lester C H Kwok were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2018 Annual General Meeting. Dr Simon S O Ip retired as the
Chairman at the conclusion of the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Philip N L Chen, Mr Stephen Ip Shu Kwan,
The Hon Martin Liao and Mr Silas S S Yang will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. All four Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s business
to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 8, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 65.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the Club’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Anthony W K Chow
Chairman
26 July 2019
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB
(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 14 to 65, which comprise:

U the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

U the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong,
26 July 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWRER

BZEZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2019 2018
EEZHAHE Number of race meetings 1 88 87
iR R 4R Amounts wagered by local customers 228,639 218,126
ESUhEEBEIMNUTELE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 18,902 15,846
BT HER Total amounts wagered 2.2 247,541 233,972
BERESEA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 37,037 35,583
BERRESELH Betting and lottery duty (22,768) (22,025)
AT It B SRS Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (89) (77)
R"EES Lotteries Fund (1,270) (1,217)
@MRAREE Net margin and commission 4 12,910 12,264
Hpg A Other revenue 4,092 3,892
HEME K Gain on sale of properties - 314
17,002 16,470
KR Operating costs 6 (11,754) (10,832)
BETFEEESNRIERE Present value of donations to the Trust (4,333) (4,413)
HRBIBETESFEENKCE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 915 1,225
ERFE W Interest income from deposits 180 109
RERITESHIT AN (EE)/ B (Deficit)/surplus from investments and derivatives (306) 356
BERESRENREE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 521 858
MEEA Finance costs 21 4) (5)
1,306 2,543
it &E ARDER Share of profits of joint ventures 14 1,514 2,097
HIRBIIE AT B BR Surplus before taxation 2,820 4,640
EThE Taxation 7 (742) (535)
MREIBARERR Net surplus after taxation 2,078 4,105
BE#AT in HK$ million 2019 2018
HBRBIEEM KT REEDRK Operating surplus after taxation and before investment
HEMERRATNSE R returns and gain on sale of properties 4,522 4,797
REBER Investment returns 1,889 3,407
HEME KR Gain on sale of properties - 314
HBRBIBR R AT RBETESRERNER Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 6,411 8,518
BREFEEESHRERE Present value of donations to the Trust (4,333) (4,413)
BREZ N EER Net surplus after taxation 2,078 4,105

MBRBRERNRTRELBR EEM X BB NRE
Bty REESERBTEIESNIENEE -
REOBEEFRFEWE - BEXRENRPRKREH

EHEBR/FE  ERESRENRY/BE - MKEB
B AR FT4E Investment Trust 8953 K/ E518 o

Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is the

basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments and
derivatives, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance costs and share of profits/

losses of the Investment Trust.

B19OEES HNMEBAREMBBREN -2 -
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The notes on pages 19 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZERER

BZEZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June
BHEET in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2019 2018
MREBIB YRR Net surplus after taxation 2,078 4,105
Hin2mukz Other comprehensive income
FTEEFHERARRRKRWIER ltems that will not be reclassified to income statement
BREEANEBNENHE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 25 35 168
HETREHRIBRARRKNIER ltems that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
BEEHIBERE Currency translation differences 25 (97) 65
AEERBRENEM2E(ER)/ R Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
net of tax (62) 233
AEEZHERZEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,016 4,338
F19OBZESENMEFBRGESUBHRERN—ID - The notes on pages 19 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e T EAARR R

6 H30H at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2019 2018
FRBEE Non-current assets
W~ RERESEM Property, plant and equipment 10 12,351 12,080
EERNES L R T ERE Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating leases 1M 1,068 1,138
REYE Investment properties 12 21 -
‘BILEE Intangible assets 13 1,983 1,444
BERNTRE Investments in joint ventures 14 27,310 28,496
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 15 12,865 9,721
RERITESRBTEA Investments and derivatives 16 2,323 3,096
REATEIRIE Long-term prepayments 17 345 393
BEFFSHERE Deferred income tax assets 18 7 121
58,273 56,489
RENEE Current assets
B 5 R HEMERIE Trade and other receivables 19 503 503
HittRB&EE Other current assets 19 485 494
RERITESRMTIA Investments and derivatives 16 - 13
SHATERR Short-term deposits 20 6,419 2,825
ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 2,414 6,351
9,821 10,186
RBEE Current liabilities
EHEX Short-term loans 21 (84) (133)
B 5 RHEMENIR Trade and other payables 22,31.2 (10,936) (10,611)
FAWFKRIR Receipts in advance 23 (434) (455)
THREHAE Current income tax liabilities (666) (659)
fTEemI A Derivatives 16 (8) 3)
(12,128) (11,861)
REBBEFEE Net current liabilities (2,307) (1,675)
FERBEME Non-current liabilities
ELFEHREE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (585) (565)
PTHEEmIA Derivatives 16 (77) -
RERFEE Defined benefit scheme 24 (436) (429)
H T BRR Other payables 31.2 (2,237) (3,205)
(3,335) (4,199)
52,631 50,615
(E1E] Reserves 25 17,261 18,428
EBRES Contingency Fund 26 35,370 31,537
BRE® Development Fund 27 - 650
EEBE Total equity 52,631 50,615
- Anthony W K Chow
X2 Lester C H Kwok
EEMNT Stewards

E19RZ 5 ANMEBAREMBHRRN - -
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The notes on pages 19 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREREER

BERES BRES
f## Contingency Development RE

BEBT in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
20187 B 1 A&ehR Balance at 1 July 2018 18,428 31,537 650 50,615
BN REERG Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - - 2,078
TEERBENEMEEEE Other comprehensive loss for

the year, net of tax (62) - - (62)
AEEEEWNEHEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,444 31,537 650 52,631
R Transfers (3,183) 3,833 (650) -
20194 6 B 30 H#56R Balance at 30 June 2019 17,261 35,370 - 52,631
201757 B 1 BE& Balance at 1 July 2017 16,100 28,988 1,189 46,277
MRFLBIFERG Net surplus after taxation 4,105 - - 4,105
REERBENEEEEE Other comprehensive income for

the year, net of tax 233 - - 233
REEZHEKZEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,438 28,988 1,189 50,615
LS Transfers (2,010) 2,549 (539) -
20184 6 B 30 AH&EER Balance at 30 June 2018 18,428 31,537 650 50,615

E19EE65 HMMEEALRE BB MRMN — 3

7

°

The notes on pages 19 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

BZEZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2019 2018
BETH Operating activities
EETBMELENRS Cash generated from operations 28.1 2,911 6,417
EIAEH Income tax paid (602) (449)
EEIBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 2,309 5,968
RETE Investing activities
ZIH R A 3B A U LR REIERIE N Increase in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months (3,594) (1,161)
BEYE - REREMN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,007) (2,366)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (679) (733)
R ERENEE L SR Payment for leasehold land under finance lease (37) (148)
HEME Sale of properties - 314
HEWE -« RERSEM Sale of property, plant and equipment 1 1
EWERFIE Interest received 214 111
EUEURE Dividends received 8 -
HeEARMEEE Injection into joint ventures (2,315) (1,982)
EE—PNGILHE Redemption from joint ventures 4,430 2,976
BERANTEEEBERIIRNUEEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") (3,584) (3,469)
HERAFEEEREBRVIRNVKEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 503 1,808
HETE ST AT/ ((4) F8ERE Net receipt from/(payment for)
derivative financial instruments 5 (13)
RENFRRD Decrease in deposits held in investments 871 933
RETBFANFRE Net cash used in investing activities (6,184) (3,729)
REEE Financing activities
EXAFE Interest paid 4 (5)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (46) (11)
RAEEHE AW FERNEZE Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps ©) @7
METBFTANFERSE Net cash used in financing activities (59) (43)
BeRBRSSEWFECRLD) /LM Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,934) 2,196
FNEERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,351 4,183
HimEs Exchange losses 3) (28)
FRESRRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,414 6,351
ReRReEBYEED Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
SEHRTERR Short-term deposits 20 1,429 5,408
RITERRES Bank balances and cash 20 985 943
2,414 6,351

F19B R 65 BENMEBAGESHEHRERN
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The notes on pages 19 to 65 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on page 65.

The last five race meetings of the 2017/18 racing season were held on 1st, 4th, 8th, 11th and 15th
July 2018 (“July 2018 race meetings”) and the last simulcast day of the 2017/18 racing season
was held on 7 July 2018 (“July 2018 simulcast day”). The last five race meetings of the 2018/19
racing season were held on 1st, 3rd, 7th, 10th and 14th July 2019 (“July 2019 race meetings”) and
the second Hong Kong International Sale of the 2018/19 racing season was held on 5 July 2019
(“duly 2019 HKIS”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2018 race meetings and the July 2018
simulcast day have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2019 and the financial results of July 2019 race meetings and the July 2019 HKIS will be
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020. The 2017/18
and 2018/19 proforma consolidated income statements for the full racing season are shown on
page 66.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million),
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 14 to 65 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 26 July 2019.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(@) Amendments to standards and new interpretations that are relevant to the
Group’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property

K (IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above amendments and new interpretations did not have any significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting
policies.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify the transfer to or from, investment properties, there must be a
change in use. A change in use would involve an assessment of whether a property meets, or has
ceased to meet, the definition of investment property; and supporting evidence that a change in
use has occurred.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received
or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

Annual Improvements include changes from the 2014-2016 cycle of the annual improvements
project. These affect two standards.

(b) New standards, interpretations and amendments to standards that are
relevant to the Group’s operations but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2019.

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Leases

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or Its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

K (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these new
standards, interpretations and amendments will have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.



2 ESHEHEE) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.2 BOXHRHE 2.2 Amounts wagered
HEWBERIFNRIAED AR MERIRIMEER  The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
EeXBaEERMITEE- customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.
2019
EEEE BIEX
BZ6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 825 g
EX-3:- 7 in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
ibEER RO A Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
ESRhEE BB IMUTARE Amounts of non-local bets placed by
commingling partners 18,902 - - 18,902
125,002 114,074 8,465 247,541
2018
BZ6HA30ALEE BEEHEY EIREE
BEET for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 25 s
in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
i EEE LA Amounts wagered by local customers 106,929 103,084 8,113 218,126
ESWhEeEEEIMUTARE Amounts of non-local bets placed by
commingling partners 15,846 - - 15,846
122,775 103,084 8,113 233,972
2.3 BERESFBA 2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

SRR —VHAMBEERRSFTHEENFWRERE  The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
B HIERA > LSBERERURMERIREZLE  which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
WMEREREBIMAE SRS ETRNELSE - KR prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
ROTBEEBERESWANWHE  FRME4- is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2019,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Club on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. In
the Club’s statement of financial position, during the year, equity method of accounting was used,
which is consistent with the accounting policy of the Group. The comparative figures were restated.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s netinvestment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.5 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from betting
operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club or for the
Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial investment
in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed appropriate by the
Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency Fund investments
and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit,
revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”) are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in
the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and the
deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the financial assets of
the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.8.

2.6 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services
Limited, is held to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual
transfer from the net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration
the operating surplus, investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and
qualification fees of Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees
received during the year.

2.7 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the Investment Trust) are held for non-trading
purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting
investment and deposits in the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is
reinvested and the deficit absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial
assets of the investments and derivatives is stated in note 2.8.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or (ji) financial assets at amortised cost. The Contingency Fund investments
and investments and derivatives contain these financial assets.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Group holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.



2 ESHEHEE)
2.8 MBEEE)

(b) 3% ~ BUERER R 5 ()
HEBENGHER L SFUBEENSIBNOT ¢

() BATEEEBERIIRNUKEE

EERAVEEFEREUKEE  HERQATVEE
ERERVIRAENFRRIEE  BEREWAER
MEWE  BFEARBRNRERITEESHTIAENE
&/ BERIFEAESRENRLG/BIBET -

EMBABLREEFROTSHE  EMHSEBY
ESEEBEELDELEERENEE  URE
HATEE

(i) ABSERAFFIRNPHEEE
hEMEEENFRWETIEERE -

(c) IBEERIE

() ZATEEEBERIIGNIHKEE
BATEEERBSIIRNMBEELEBTME -

(i) ABERAFFIRNHBEE

BERNMBEE  REFSBUBRELENFEIRFR
BN EEBERAE - REMAERETML -

EREREZERERFE SERR/LEEFTERNY
BEARED - BENEAFRARIHEEERAETE

HPBEE  BEHGRENES - 7 B8F
FoURRERRESEEY  HEACETRREN
BHHE SERAUERZEFNERIEBER -
YHEBEEEBEIUXNENRER  MEERBRTE
K- BEEELN12EANENEEHEERE -

SESNE-HUKEENFERR  BOSHERAR
BEBKREEM  RAAERENEE - B —HIEKE
ENEMSNRESRCBHI0BRNL  EFEERZ
B BEENFEERR BOSHARS KEEM -
H-HMBEETATERKE - ARDBEERE -

FERRBNE SSEAZINEFFEFEREARE
Ko BE—REBR EENERERRE  TEATME
BASBRARCKBENEERRNEREE - AIF
RERENEBEHNERS  SHEAFRAETE
EFBERA12EAERGEESE -

EEAEBREMNEETTRE - ERNBAHEHE
H-R—IUMERFEZRER MEBRBETICEE
B EHEESEEE - SAEEMEREDHR
BB EWRSERANITHBTHR®

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement (cont.)

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets
that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and
interest income, are recognised in income statement. This information is shown under surplus/
deficit from investments and derivatives or surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments.

For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
(c) Impairment of financial assets

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS
9 on the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows, and
are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

The Group measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the other
financial assets as minimal.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance lease over the lease term

Buildings 25 to 40 years

Plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress
until they are ready for use in the manner as intended
by management. On completion, the project costs
are transferred to the appropriate property, plant and

equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.10 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease

Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their lease terms.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

2.11 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment properties
are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are depreciated on
a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at
the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.12 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.13 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or
the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, lease income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.
The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;
- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 Receipts in advance

Receipt in advance represented the contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period. A contract
liability is recognised when the cash that is prepaid by members on membership subscriptions,
entrance and qualification fees, horse imports and pre-sales amount exceeds the performance
obligations fulfilled, including the rendering of the betting or relevant services.

2.21 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised at the time when the
relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election of
members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised at the
time when the event is held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services and sale of souvenir items is recognised at the
time when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods have been sold.

Revenue from sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from stable and livery service charges and risk management service fee is recognised over
the time when the relevant service has been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised at the time when the
relevant service has been rendered.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the Scheme
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.24 Donation

Donation is charged to income statement and recognised as liability when the donation has been
offered to and accepted by the donee and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the legal and/or constructive obligation established.

Donations that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value of expected
future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.25 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or
using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation of
property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage
experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight-line method at rates
sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their estimated useful lives (notes 2.9 and
2.12).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuations of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 24(d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future
periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets, particularly
in assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

4  NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment
to the Lotteries Fund.

2019
EEEY BIREE

BZ6H30BILLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football % #azE
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
R EEEIREHEER Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
BEES  BNRESRS Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (88,298) (98,733) (4,571) (191,602)
BERIESKRA Betting and lottery revenue 17,802 15,341 3,894 37,037
BERRREFELH Betting and lottery duty (12,981) (7,671) (2,116) (22,768)
RARFIMEFEIE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (89) - - (89)
BEES Lotteries Fund - - (1,270) (1,270)
AR A Net margin and commission 4,732 7,670 508 12,910

2018
ENEE BIREE

BZ6H30RILEFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 825 FEEG
EX-3: 7 in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
R R R 4R KE Amounts wagered by local customers 106,929 103,084 8,113 218,126
BELE  BNkESFES Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (89,197) (88,965) 4,381)  (182,543)
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 17,732 14,119 3,732 35,583
B RS AR Betting and lottery duty (12,937) (7,060) (2,028) (22,025)
RFRF I EEHE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (77) - - (77)
RERS Lotteries Fund - - (1,217) (1,217)
#HARAEE Net margin and commission 4,718 7,059 487 12,264

A BEEEEHUEERARRER RGHE
2018/19F EK2017/18FENBECEEZRSN
75% ° RIREBERUBEBRANS0%FE - MAEF
BEEEBAREEEN25%TE -

Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2018/19 and 2017/18. Betting duty on football betting is
charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged at
25% on the amount wagered.
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B Rk MRt
5 HftgA 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
28 Membership fees 912 864
BRI E Charges for catering services 879 877
ESEUEEEXTNHRABERTTE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 791 685
BEERESRKEKE Stable and livery service charges 706 649
ESERNE Racing related income 183 178
HEBTEHEBRE Sale of horses 116 160
EREEREE Risk management service fee 88 106
SRR E Royalty income 43 34
HELSMAERE Sale of souvenir items 30 34
Hitp Others 344 305
4,092 3,892
6 REHR 6 OPERATING COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
BIA(KIEE9) Staff costs (note 9) 5,115 4,753
W2 - R REBRMTE (MiEE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,747 1,663
EERS Prize money 1,253 1,176
MR R A AR Supplies and utilities 751 701
HEMA Cost of sales 689 712
BIEREER Repairs and maintenance 582 464
EinEEERNES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 182 179
ﬂ%ﬁ}*ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ(ﬁfﬁw) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 140 52
R Donations and contributions 137 138
E%#ﬂ%’\]%ﬁﬁiﬂt&ii&ﬁﬁﬁffgﬁﬁ(I3ﬁ§1 1) Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights 28 28
under operating leases (note 11)
BHEMHE Auditor’s remuneration 9 8
REVERE (MFE12) Depreciation of investment properties (note 12) 1 1
FEME Stewards’ remuneration - -
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7 WE 7  TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018

EAFTS R Current income tax

-5#8 - Hong Kong 574 576

- BB - outside Hong Kong 40 43

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years (5) (3)

IEIEFR{SHE (FIEE 18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)

- BB - Hong Kong 21 48

- BBLUS - outside Hong Kong 112 (129)
742 535

BEBFNEHIREAFEMTERBEFIR16.5%
(20184 : 16.5% ) B R H o FBUINERBUEF A
EENAEH CREBLEEANBRELERME -

SERBABSRIEENERTIR  HRETEBANE
BIREAENBIRERNT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
HBRBIIE AT B8 Surplus before taxation 2,820 4,640
B ZE16.5% (20184 : 16.5%) 5T & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 465 765

HithFRFEAEBH{ENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 5 (10)
BARG SN RETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (383) (616)
FA0%iE H s Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 521 451

BEFERAE Adjustments in respect of prior years (5) (3)
Hith Others 139 (52)
BEZH Taxation charge 742 535
8 BN 8 DONATIONS

BETFEIEESNIE  REEELAGETESNE
R HERERE -

Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Trust for charitable purposes.

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
BEFEETESHRERE Present value of donations to the Trust 4,333 4,413
HIRENTE Present value impact (33) (13)
BRTERESHIE Donations to the Trust 4,300 4,400
9 BIME 9 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
HeREAMRAR Salaries and other costs 4,798 4,444
REMNKETE Defined contribution plan
RIRERA Pension costs 81 71
BB EMER Contributions to MPF scheme 115 109
RERRGTE — BARESRA(HiFE24) The Scheme — pension costs (note 24) 121 129
5,115 4,753
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BB HR AR E

10 #3% ~ RfEREM

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BB L
S+
Leasehold BER  EETH
land under g6 IRHEAR
finance #F Plantand Projectsin R
BEBT in HK$ million leases Buildings equipment  progress Total
20187 A1 BRRAE Cost at 1 July 2018 2,310 5,529 17,194 4,435 29,468
e Additions 48 58 791 1,297 2,194
it Transfers (90) 700 2,891 (3,603) (102)
BERITHE Disposals and write-offs - (1) (341) - (342)
BEMHIRERR Currency translation differences - (21) (99) (49) (169)
2019 6 A 30 A ANE Cost at 30 June 2019 2,268 6,265 20,436 2,080 31,049
201857 A1 HEBFERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2018 (1,065)  (3,466)  (12,856) (1) (17,388)
EEEE Depreciation for the year (25) (156) (1,566) - (1,747)
i Transfers 80 - - - 80
BERTH Disposals and write-offs - - 337 - 337
B HIAER Currency translation differences - - 20 - 20
20196 B30 H 2BIERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2019 (1,0100  (3,622)  (14,065) (1)  (18,698)
20194 6 A 30 HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2019 1,258 2,643 6,371 2,079 12,351
201747 81 BRAE Cost at 1 July 2017 2,164 5523 16,614 3,824 28,125
BE Additions 148 9 769 1,505 2,431
B Transfers - - 188 (951) (763)
BEREH Disposals and write-offs @ 3) (392) - (397)
EMHBRELS Currency translation differences - - 15 57 72
20185 6 A 30 HMAME Cost at 30 June 2018 2,310 5,529 17,194 4,435 29,468
20177 R 1B EBINEREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 1 July 2017 (1,041) (3,321) (11,742) (1) (16,105)
EEETE Depreciation for the year (26) (148) (1,489) - (1,663)
BERTHE Disposals and write-offs 2 3 387 - 392
B HBRERE Currency translation differences - - (12) - (12)
2018% 6 A 30 HZBINEREE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment at 30 June 2018 (1,065  (3,466)  (12,856) (1) (17,388)
20184 6 A 30 HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2018 1,245 2,063 4,338 4,434 12,080
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11 EEBPYHET MR T HFERE

11 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
UNDER OPERATING LEASES

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7HA1BEAE Cost at 1 July 1,358 1,320
B HIAERE Currency translation differences (52) 38
6 A30 B ANE Cost at 30 June 1,306 1,358
7R 1B RE#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (220) (187)
REEHE Amortisation for the year (28) (28)
EMHBRER Currency translation differences 10 (5)
6 A 30 B 2&E#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (238) (220)
6 A 30 BERERE Net book value at 30 June 1,068 1,138
12 REWHE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
781 BRAE Cost at 1 July 22 23
R Transfers 102 -
BE Disposals - ()
6 A 30 HAAME Cost at 30 June 124 22

7THR1BRERE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (22) (22)
AEERE Depreciation for the year (1) (1)
R Transfers (80) -
BE Disposals - 1

6 A30 HREINE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (103) (22)
6 A 30 HERMEFE Net book value at 30 June 21 -

REWECDR2019%F6 A30H K% 201856 A30H -
HBEYNSEREEEEMTERTERATETE
HitE - fTEREWEHINURESE - RERBK - &
BYENNTEBELAIE2,50088 T (20184 : 818
9,200&B7T) °

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2019 and 2018 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong.
The fair value of the investment properties was HK$925 million (2018: HK$892 million) at the end of

the reporting period.
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BB HR AR E

12 REYWEE)
TRAMBEESRBS - UAPREHFOREE -
AT EEHTH

M6 A 30 AUT AR HNAFEE

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT.)

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.
Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2019 2018

BEART BARH

BERASE BERASH

Significant Significant

unobservable unobservable

inputs inputs

BEBT in HK$ million Level 3 Level 3
AR EETE Fair value measurements

REYE Investment properties

- FE(B#H) - Residential (Hong Kong) 59 58

- BEEB) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 866 834

925 892

REMFEWAFEE  EREBETVIFLBYETCES
MZXEFNEREE  UERLEBRGEFHER - It
o FESMEME - N EREBEE S HEENAE
LB YFREERBYENMEBRHRRRE
MM EEEH QTR -

RPN ERERNTUIBREBAZY LR
VB HERTARBERZZFENSTARTS

EENHERRERBROEARERBLBLE
B RRATEEHEROBAREY, «

FRRANEERDLELZE -

MR2019F R 2018F » = AL FEEFERF ML
EITEYEER -
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The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been
made. Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully
weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at
the fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account of
location, size and pedestrian flow, etc..

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers of investment properties among the
three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.



13 BEE

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EETH
E S EIE I®EE

Computer Projects in #azs
BEET in HK$ million software progress Total
2018F 7B 1 HRAE Cost at 1 July 2018 575 921 1,496
7BE Additions 130 549 679
R Transfers 214 (214) -
20194 6 A 30 HHANE Cost at 30 June 2019 919 1,256 2,175
20187 A1 H B7&#isH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2018 (52) - (52)
NEEHH Amortisation for the year (140) - (140)
20194 6 B 30 A 27&i#ss Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2019 (192) - (192)
20194 6 A 30 HEREEE Net book value at 30 June 2019 727 1,256 1,983
20177 A1 BAE Cost at 1 July 2017 - - -
BE Additions 204 529 733
LLE Transfers 371 392 763
201846 A 30 H{ANME Cost at 30 June 2018 575 921 1,496
2017781 B 2B #H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2017 - - -
IE Y Amortisation for the year (52) - (52)
20184 6 B 30 H EE#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2018 (52) - (52)
20184 6 A 30 HEREFE Net book value at 30 June 2018 523 921 1,444
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14 BERQRRE
A2019F 6 B30 B A& RAFBUT ¢

14

Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2019 are as follows:

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

EERAREHMERAE

BERERB B B/ B R FTEER Authorised and FEAR
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation  Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
TRFBEEEERMEBRAT HPEARLNE REERKBHE - BMTEF AR L3
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic of China RBEEERZARSE 2{8208 T Equity

Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* provision of computer technology, Renminbi (“RMB”)

(“BJ CJV”) technical training and business 200.2 million

information consultancy

HKJC Investment Trust Fund HEHB REREREBKES FEA =

(“Investment Trust”) The Cayman Islands investment in equities and n/a Equity

A2019%6A30E %2018 6 300 ' £E@EIEFAL
FHERTEERMARATNESEEZS0% -
MR2019F KR 2018 5F » EEAMELEIRELEER
MIERATIMNEZEA0% o

M6A30H £@ EERHEEBEEREE Investment
TrustEEFENERES LNT ¢

debt securities

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group

shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2019 and 2018.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the

Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

2019 2018
ARESSE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 45.8% 47.0%
EEEREREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 51.8% 50.3%
EERESEETRIAERGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 2.4% 2.7%
100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 28,496 27,384
xE Injection 2,315 1,982
e Redemption (4,430) (2,976)
Frik &R Share of profits 1,514 2,097
ERTRABESELESTES Transfer to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (573) -
EWHRER Currency translation differences (12) 9
6 H30H At 30 June 27,310 28,496
*FERRXE * Unofficial English name
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14 SEQTFEREE) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
EEATBZECASOHIEMUHERBENT ¢ A summary of financial information of the joint ventures as of 30 June was as follows:
2019
T RPEBREEBRRIMTERLE #azE
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
£EBEFEN EBEFEEN £BEEN
EREIH EREI EREI
Group’s Group’s Group’s
BEAT in HK$ million 100% effective interest 100% effective interest 100% effective interest
Wz Income 285 114 3,475 1,498 3,760 1,612
> Expenses (236) (94) - - (236) (94)
nE Depreciation (14) (6) - - (14) (6)
PABSNLES Interest income 8 3 - - 8 3
BIEZ K Taxation expense (4) (1) - - @ )
MRE &R Surplus after taxation 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
MU HELE Total comprehensive income 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
FRBEE Non-current assets
M RIEREM Property, plant and equipment 32 21 - - 32 21
B EE Intangible assets 4 3 - - 4 3
BEERBEE Deferred tax assets 9 6 - - 9 6
RAFEEZEBRE Fair value through profit or loss
wHYIRNMBEE
BE Equities
EEBLTH Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,981 885 1,981 885
wsiLm Listed overseas - - 28,249 12,623 28,249 12,623
BREFS Debt securities
wgsHLm Listed overseas - - 18,665 8,729 18,665 8,729
LM Unlisted - - 11,894 5,616 11,894 5,616
fTHESmIA Derivative financial instruments - - 7 33 71 33
RENERE Current assets
B 5 R HEMERFIE Trade and other receivables 161 104 - - 161 104
HitRBEE Other current asset 2 1 - - 2 1
PTHEE®mIA Derivative financial instruments - - 126 59 126 59
pSEERER Short-term deposits 193 125 - - 193 125
ReREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 123 80 - - 123 80
REBEELE Total current assets 479 310 126 59 605 369
RBAE Current liabilities
BESREMEN Trade and other payables and (65) (42) (1,578) (757) (1,643) (799)
BRRFITE MR R IE receipts in advance
fTEe®MIA Derivative financial instruments - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
REMEEEEE Total current financial liabilities - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
(FEEESREM (excluding trade and other
BT ERRRFN2EHE) payables and provisions)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
fTEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (197) 92) (197) 92

InvestmentTrust WIREEF - BiE 225850088 T

Included in Investment Trust investments, HK$ 22,505 million (2018: HK$ 21,816 million) represented
(20184 : 218181,600 BB T WEAEERE -

Contingency Fund investments.
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B IS SRR EE
14 SEQTFEREE) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
2018
TEHBEEEE
TR AT] k]
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
@AM S@EEEN SEFEN
ERES EXESL EREIH
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
EX-3:- 7 in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
g Income 257 103 4,273 2,089 4,530 2,192
* i Expenses (225) (90) - - (225) (90)
e Depreciation (18) ) - - (18) @)
B Y as Interest income 6 2 - - 6 2
BEXH Taxation expense 1 - - - 1 -
BREE B Surplus after taxation 21 8 4,273 2,089 4,294 2,097
EHINHERE Total comprehensive income 21 8 4,273 2,089 4,294 2,097
FERBEE Non-current assets
M RBREM Property, plant and equipment 29 19 - - 29 19
BEEE Intangible assets 4 - - 4
EREREEE Deferred tax assets 13 - - 13
RAFEEERE Fair value through profit or loss
@Y RN EE
RE Equities
EEBLEWM Listed in Hong Kong - - 2,381 1,177 2,381 1,177
V=2 k) Listed overseas - - 30,209 14,941 30,209 14,941
BEXES Debt securities
wEhEm Listed overseas - - 16,391 7,212 16,391 7,212
el ) Unlisted - - 10,646 4,689 10,646 4,689
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - - 170 93 170 93
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 200 88 200 88
RENEE Current assets
B o R EMERFE Trade and other receivables 154 103 - - 154 103
HittRme&EE Other current asset 5 4 - - 5 4
THESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 162 72 162 72
HHTFR Short-term deposits 249 166 - - 249 166
BeRkBRSZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 64 43 - - 64 43
REBEELE Total current assets 472 316 162 72 634 388
REBE Current liabilities
B RHEMER Trade and other payables and
BRI TR R IR receipts in advance (80) (53) - - (80) (53)
PTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (75) (33) (75) (33)
REMFEEAE Total current financial liabilities
(TEFESRHEM (excluding trade and other payables
FE 1 B SRR and provisions) - - (75) (33) (75) (33)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
THESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - (83) (37) (83) (37
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14 SEQRKRE(E)

&% N TFlInvestment Trust FriFEHH S  RAEME
FHEEERZES.78% (20184 : 5.08%) ° Investment
Trust TISEBRESWIMETLHHRA A 45F (2018
FIB6HE) o

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 5.78% (2018: 5.03%) for
the joint venture under the Investment Trust. Their weighted average maturities were 4 years (2018:

6 years) under the Investment Trust.

2019 2018
BTREUTIERIE : Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
E United States Dollars("USD") 83% 83%
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 4% 5%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 3%
BzE Euro (“EUR”) 2% 2%
Hihg# Other currencies 8% 7%
100% 100%
15 EREERE 15 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
BEEHES Debt securities
1w L™ Listed overseas 715 -
SERE Alternative investments
¥t Unlisted 11,200 8,773
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 14 31
e Deposits 936 917
12,865 9,721

EEFMEEERSRERNMETHERANESL
2.59% (20184 : 2.06%) - EEFEAREFR
EESHWRMERHEAQATEERESE  MEBEFMSE
KEERERNMEFLIHREE 482 B (2018 4F : 29
B) e

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.59% for
the Group (2018: 2.06%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits

were 482 days for the Group (2018: 29 days).

BHEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
BERESREUTIIEHITE Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
EyM UsD 98% 98%
& EUR 2% 2%
100% 100%
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16 RERITEEMIA 16 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEES — LW Debt securities - listed 758 -
SERKRE — LT Alternative investments — unlisted 1,554 2,111
THEEmIA Derivative financial instruments
- =1 - Swaps - 101
BEERENES Funds awaiting investment 2 -
LEEN Deposits 9 884
2,323 3,096
REBEE Current assets
TEemI A Derivative financial instruments
- REINEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts - 13
RBAE Current liabilities
THEERIA Derivative financial instruments
- BHINEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts (1) @
- ¥EH] - Swaps 7 1)
(8) 3)
ERBERE Non-Current liabilities
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
- 28 - Swaps (77) -

EEFEEERRSEREANNMEFEZEERAZERE  The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.59% for
2.59% (20184 : 2.36%) - R REHFKRELEELWER the Group (2018: 2.36%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
HEEHEANFEEREE MEBMREGERESRT approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits

BRI 2640 B (20184 : 99 ) ° were 640 days for the Group (2018: 99 days).
BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
RERITEEMIAEREUTIERINE ! Investments and derivatives were denominated
in the following currencies:
ESH USD 97% 93%
BT HKD 3% 7%
100% 100%

17 RAAFNFIEA 17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

EENNETEAEt IS EEESemAERA T Long-term prepayments mainly included prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
Wi BYEEFNEAS  HEREREELTHEY Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
EWEFTAIERFEHULE G R E - estimated useful lives.
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18 BEFBHEE/(BE)
15 PO 30 A3 B AE ) — AU 1 I O 8K A R RO MR E T8
BAE/(RE)BBHNT

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:

BRI IEFE
BRI NS K%
Employee Pre- Accelerated
retirement operating depreciation Hith #azs
BEET In HK$ million benefit cost  expenses allowances Others Total
20184781 H At 1 July 2018 93 124 (697) 36 (444)
EA/(NE)WER Credited/(charged) to
income statement 8 (124) (30) 13 (133)
A/ 8)Hib 2w Credited/(charged) to other
comprehensive income (7) - - 6 (1)
201946 A30H At 30 June 2019 94 - (727) 55 (578)
2017%781H At 1 July 2017 117 - (641) 38 (486)
EA/NE)RER Credited/(charged) to
income statement 9 124 (56) 4 81
NBHEM2ERE Charged to other
comprehensive income (33) - - (6) (39)
201846 A30 A At 30 June 2018 93 124 (697) 36 (444)

19 BEFREMERFEHEAEMRE
BE
191 ES R EHMEWRIE

EEREMEWRESES8% (20185F : 79%) LB
TETE - HBUHMERITE - 5 REMEWRFIE
WEEEEEEEAFEEMRS -

19.2 EfERBEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

CURRENT ASSETS

19.1 Trade and other receivables

88% of the trade and other receivables were denominated in HKD (2018: 79%), the rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximated their fair values.

19.2 Other current assets

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
=78 Inventories 295 309
FESRIE Prepayments 190 185

485 494

45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR R M T

20 EHERRRERAEEEY

20.1 FHIER
SE B SE A7 SR IR T 19 BRI SR 5 2.37% (2018
F:2.26%) - EEFFEBERNEEMERL AT

20 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

20.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 2.37% for the Group
(2018: 2.26%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their

BEAE  MEMEFHHRAE122H (20184 : 150  weighted average maturities were 122 days for the Group (2018: 150 days).
B)e
2019 2018
EHERUTIEENE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:
BT HKD 90% 43%
AR RMB 5% 13%
EpM USD 4% 42%
Hih g Other currencies 1% 2%
100% 100%

202 HERBEELEEY
EEFEEHEAEB=ELUTHERNMET S ER
FIZB2.67% (2018 F : 2.208%) « E@MERWRE
EEREATEEMAE  MEMETHHRE73H
(2018 £ :63 H) °

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 2.67 % for the Group (2018: 2.28%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 73 days for the Group (2018: 63 days).

2019 2018
ZEHAABIEAUTHERATIERITHE ! Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
E3H uUsD 48% -
BT HKD 30% 80%
AR RMB 22% 20%
100% 100%

HZE2019 £ 6 B 30 Bl EENETHELTE
RLERNBETFOBEESRBSSEYHAEIRE
1,700 B850 (2018 & : 5 81,700 BB x) » UAR
BITE > WEHENIEEHRE -
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As at 30 June 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$317 million (2018:
HK$517 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the Mainland where exchange controls apply.



21 EHER
BEFAERAINZTHFRNENF1.45%H4.26%
(20185 : 1 F0.82% £2 4.35% ) MRS -

21 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loans were subject to floating interest rate between 1.45% and 4.26% per annum (2018:
between 0.82% and 4.35% per annum).

2019 2018
EHERUTIIERTE : Short-term loans were denominated
in the following currencies:
BT HKD 60% 38%
AR RMB 40% 62%
100% 100%

FRANERFNE X HA4008# 7T (2018 &£ : 500 &
BIT) o

22 BEEREAMENERR

ESREMEMNRREE  QREITESFELEEER
MEVER X B0EE T (2018 4F « 34188 t) - BEAMIES
REFBHREANELRURSES I (HIEE31.2) s &
(b)5EE23125,700 BB THEEIRF TR (20184%F : 26
8530088 n) - BERFERHEEERESRESE
BYREHERAERARENTHEEESHE -B5
REMEMRAAERENRAEERE A FEER
% - SENE SR EMBENIRAAETES » H96%
(20184 : 96%) LUBTTITE » HEAUHMEMEINE -
ER - B7E8,500 BB TNEERK CERERRE
EARZAT o

23 FEWFNIE
HZE2018F6H30H1ER2017F6 A30H LK
JEWFHE > 2815 4185,20088 Ttk 31/E6,8008
B EEREC2BNREE2019F6H30HIER
201856 A30 B ILFEEFHUWA -

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$4 million (2018: HK$5 million).

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust
amounting to HK$3,000 million (2018: HK$3,400 million), which will gradually be settled within six
months after the end of reporting period (note 31.2); and (b) customer accounts deposits for the
Group of HK$2,357 million (2018: HK$2,653 million). The customer accounts deposits was offset
by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which was included in cash and cash equivalents
and short-term deposits. The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables and accruals
approximated their fair value. 96% of the trade and other payables and accruals were denominated
in HKD for the Group (2018: 96%), the rest of the balances were denominated in other currencies.
During the year, HK$785 million of annual donation was settled by means of transfer of investments.

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HK$452 million and HK$368 million recorded in the receipts in advance as at 30 June 2018 and 30
June 2017 were recognized as revenue during the years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018
respectively.
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24 REBNGE 24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
HihBERIEEREMBERIRACERNER Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s
RERAGERAKRESEENT : Scheme recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position which were determined as follows:
STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,398) (2,530)
BFHERARESEE Present value of obligation 2,834 2,959
FEMBARRKRFMVIERESFERE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated statement of

financial position 436 429
AEBAFEFRESESENRELHRNOT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit

obligation was as follows:
7HA1H At 1 July 2,959 3,182
HIRREE HRENIRITIRIE KA Current service cost net of employee contributions 112 122
B A Interest cost 59 36
BHEE Remeasurement:
- REEKRSHCIRNEEESE - Actuarial losses due to liability experience 20 25
- RS EBREB I RNBEESE/ () - Actuarial losses/(gains) due to financial assumptions 30 (71)
BEREZAEF Actual benefits paid (346) (335)
6 A30 HANMWENKRSRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 2,834 2,959
FRFEEEATEEZHNOT ¢ The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of

the year was as follows:
7A1H At 1 July 2,530 2,605
FIE WA Interest income 50 30
BHETE Remeasurement:
- FFEEENERSRITRE - Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate 92 155
EEHR Employer contributions 72 76
EXEF Benefits paid (346) (335)
Bt B EERMANITHER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - 1)
6 A30 HWEtEIEE A FERE Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,398 2,530
BHEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
ERERPEERNRELT : The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
IR B AR A B A Current service cost 112 122
FRERMNEENFFEKAE Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 9 6
BEfBIEERINTERER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - 1

121 129
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24 SREBMEE(E)

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
EEHEAREREANEFTEZENT ¢ Remeasurement effects recognized in the statement

of comprehensive income were as follows:
HEELRSBIBNBEESE Actuarial losses due to liability experience 20 25
RSB 8c RN BERSE/ () Actuarial losses/(gains) due to financial assumptions 30 (71)
HAEENABEBEER/ () Actuarial losses/(gains) on liabilities arising during period 50 (46)
TEEENESRERITREE Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate (92) (155)
EE2HENERBERANERTESE Remeasurement effects recognized in the statement of

comprehensive income (42) (201)
BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
TEREREZNRERABEA (M 9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 121 129
EE2HERERBERNERTTESE Remeasurement effects recognized in the (42) (201)

statement of comprehensive income
RERBHARAE/ (KE) Defined benefit cost/(income) 79 (72)

(a) SREEF=HEIHFE R R AGE8 B i at

REBANFEURENELFHE  RUAERNK - &
W ERABBENREFHLSERTE  AHEH
—ERNENE -  AEBANFEATBEARNFABNIE
B - RERFBRE -—EETLHRY  WER
(B SR AGHERDD) R ETHM  ECRIMQIES
FE(HRIBRP)MBAETHRAERABERR;E -5
SRZHEAERA BN —(EE -

BRERAEBAEACETZANERER  FEUDHA
REBATENEL(WE) - WRBRERFTERE
HENERE  REBREXNHER - Rt S8
ZRIFE19 57(2011)5 64 RITEMNEELRRE R
(AR BRERBEESE)REE 14 SAHANKE
BEE2ER T EARAERBNTE - REBATE
HOESHBEERECGINERLTIEE 22
AEERERERFHIMNETA

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of
a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or
leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The Scheme was established
under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORS0”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption)
Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus
of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme. The Scheme is
administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited which acts as the trustee to the
Scheme.
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24 REGNGFE(E)

(a) SREBEF=HEIRYHE R R AGREE R 7 (A)
SEERAERMNABMARINEZRABOT :

) wERR

EREMBRY  AERFHABEENLOFEELS
7/ #MSUFRAEENEE/ EEFENRER
FEtBIMBRRBFRE - EREEDBFRERHERE
BRIESHBERRES -

RERTGFHEERENGEEBE2 AT TIENE
WZTEREAS  BERR TEEFRRET Y
HEL  URZAEE - STINEERFIRIBLED
o BPDBRERAFERENABERR -

(i) FIEE

REBANFEMALEEIRREBFESHHLERE
AER  UFREAE - BEFERETR - RER
st B REEESHEEM -

(i) FEmB

MRS ERFEEWEFEGH SHE - FTURERFE
BFrAREEDNSRNERERNFEE - EHFEMIE
BRESAS  RERANBAREESHELEEM -

(b) AIEEFAREF 22 9 E

MM 24(a) BT HREBEFTENE 19 5
(2011)55 64 BRFEMEE LREE B (BRI KRE
REZEE)REF 14 SHFENREESER » 57
BRARAEENTE  FIABEEETEHEANEE
Rz o

(c) REBFBIEENEH

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically expose the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset, whilst poor or
negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme investments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market yields of government securities. A
decrease in the bond yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24(a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because the
asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of HK
(IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
SHEIEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
K= Equities 877 36% 1,028 40%
EEEFRERES Fixed income securities and cash 697 29% 668 26%
ZREE Multi-assets 371 15% 428 17%
HHES Hedge funds 473 20% 430 17%
2,418 100% 2,554 100%

RERAFIRERMMEEILR  SEHHETE
ERBEY
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The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.



24 SRERAETE(E)
(o) EABERRR GBI

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BABERREROT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2019 2018
FR=E Discount rate 1.4% 2.1%
REBHFSERILE Long-term salary increase rate 4.0% 4.5%

M2019F 68308 » BIRWHWELFH/T0.25% -
HHMETEREYETTENERT  RER
MR ESENATEE  BE23RD /1
1.5% % 1.6% (20184 : DBIBE1.5% K% 1.6%) °

MR2019F6 A30H » ERPHFS LA/ T#0.25% -
HHMRETEREYESTENERT  RER
MR ESENATERE  BE23EMm/ mHD
1.6% 5% 1.6% (20184 : D BIEB1.7% K% 1.6%) °

(e) B L HR B FAL

BARAHASERME (RBRRITHRASRMKERG
ETHRBITHRAR)HERM - RBFIRE - &K
ENHADREEARFEUEENBOLLHE - FE
HERAE 2R (BERKE BRI MRE - BAFE
BEMETESHEMERE -

() FAFHEF

EEFEF 2020 F KA 56,8008 B T (20195 -
7,300E#T) °

(9) REBFIHEIFTAEEEHEIEER

REBAFBMAEEETEZ2019F6 A30HHM
REFIGHRB6F(20185F 1 6F) - TRIIBEZERE
RMNBEBRRAERNE  AATHBIWES
BB (BEGFTARBEERBRFSELENE

At 30 June 2019, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.5% and 1.6% respectively
(2018: 1.5% and 1.6% respectively).

At 30 June 2019, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.6% and 1.6% respectively
(2018: 1.7% and 1.6% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements.

(f) Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$68 million for the year 2020 (2019: HK$73
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2019 was 6 years (2018: 6 years). To
further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from the
Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

M) RE—SBERAERFTEFTRESEINED
&R o

AXMHEFEARE(EESRT)
HEABETNES Number of years after valuation date Expected benefit payments in HK$ million
145 1 348
2F 2 322
3F 3 232
4 F 4 322
5% 5 265
6 210 F 6to 10 1,237
11 FRAE 11 and over 1,133
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B Rk MRt
25 f#fE 25 RESERVES
B2HERB B 5%
Accumulated Exchange LG

BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
2018 7 A1 H At 1 July 2018 18,432 (4) 18,428
MREIB YRR Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - 2,078
ERTERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (3,833) - (3,833)
ERERRES Transfer from Development Fund 650 - 650
EMHBRERE Currency translation differences - (97) (97)
MREANBR R EFEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits

obligations, net of tax 35 - 35
2019 6 A30 A At 30 June 2019 17,362 (101) 17,261
2017 7 A1 H At 1 July 2017 16,169 (69) 16,100
R B IR Net surplus after taxation 4,105 - 4,105
BETHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (2,549) - (2,549)
ERAREES Transfer from Development Fund 539 - 539
BEEHIBELRE Currency translation differences - 65 65
REENBRBEENEENERHE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits

obligations, net of tax 168 - 168
20186 A30H At 30 June 2018 18,432 4) 18,428

BREAEARNET R > EFEASHEAMEESR
BREEINEN&EL10% BAEXERRLESE B
ERAREWAERESNTIMESNL0% HIL - EE
BEHAESREBERMER  ATANKERTES
B EMEARRET Y -

72019 F£6 A30 H EEEBLAEL£A56,500878
7T(2018 £ : 6,200 EHBT) °

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from Mainland entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the Mainland to the statutory reserve
fund until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to
increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2019, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$65 million (2018: HK$62 million).

26 EAES 26 CONTINGENCY FUND

BHEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 31,537 28,988
R E S Transfer from Reserve 3,833 2,549
6H30H At 30 June 35,370 31,537
27 BREES 27 DEVELOPMENT FUND

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 650 1,189
TS Transfer to Reserve (650) (539)
6 H30H At 30 June - 650
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28 HFEHRERERMEE

28.1 HIGRBIAR W BSREEEFRIE

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

28.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash

ENEREHER generated from operations
BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
HIRRBIIE ATV B R Surplus before taxation 2,820 4,640
FHE&E A RER Share of profits of joint ventures (1,514) (2,097)
RAFEEZEBERSIRNIEEE TG Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL (215) (1,214)
B Y zs Interest income (180) (109)
FEXH Interest expense 4 5
HEME KR Gain on disposal of properties - (314)
HEME  RERSEMWERE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 4
W - RIERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,747 1,663
REMETE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 140 52
EERAORE b - h{F FARE# Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 28 -

EELESEE Movement in working capital

FERD/(3Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 14 (64)

B 5 & HE A EREREE N Increase in trade and other receivables (1) (23)

FEAFRIEE AN Increase in prepayments (5) (10)

B REMEMRRCGAL) /M (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables ) 3,727

FEUWFERIE R ) /3 m (Decrease)/increase in receipts in advance (21) 84
REBBMARERD Decrease in long-term prepayments 48 19
REBAFEIE M Increase in defined benefit scheme 49 53
EETFHMEENRS Cash generated from operations 2,911 6,417

28.2 MEEREIELXNEBEYHER

28.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

PTESmMIA
EHER Derivative
Short-term financial #azs
BEET in HK$ million loans instruments Total
72018 6 A30 H As of 30 June 2018 133 (111) 22
HeRE Cash flows
BREEERE Outflow from financing activities (46) 9) (55)
FELEH Non-cash changes
SN H i B Foreign exchange movement (3) - 3)
NEEEEE Fair value changes - 205 205
72019 6 B30 H As of 30 June 2019 84 85 169
#2017 6 A30 H As of 30 June 2017 142 41 183
ReRE Cash flows
BRETERE Outflow from financing activities (11 @7 (38)
FESEH Non-cash changes
HMNEE 5 i B Foreign exchange movement 2 - 2
AFEEED Fair value changes - (125) (125)
72018 F£6 A30 A As of 30 June 2018 133 (111) 22
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29 A

29.1 B KIE
RERBPKR BT LENEREHEBNERAIHE
16{23,900 88T (2018 &£ : 29 {85,700 BB ) °

29.2 HERIE
M6HA30H  BIEBTAECHNWEXBENRAT  BEAE
THRHWREESEBENT -

29 COMMITMENTS

29.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$1,639 million (2018: HK$2,957 million).

29.2 Lease commitments

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018

BT Buildings
R—FR Within one year 115 111
RE_ZFHFRA In the second to fifth year inclusive 202 131
RERLFEHR After the fifth year 37 29
354 271

30 ETIRKEREE

EEAZBEERIY T —EAEEANTER—BERE
HAETE - METE YR E (BERKTEEH ) T
i THEBEYETIASE - It4 EBIFESE -1
ERETBRFEQAELE o LEFEBRE GREIME
DARELFTEEFY M IHAMXBILWREEES

31 BREMEALZRS
MRSEEERAETAREEERESEREA - 4
RESEEENARSEAREERAA(SEM)
NESEXNRESRAA(FEXNRE NESR
RE FAEREREES SENRERXURE
HERE -

BRTCHEGEMBRRAGBIKEEN)  KEES
EARAIRAEEALEETHNRINT ¢

31.1 EEEH

FR - SERREHRTERXERE  BETESRDRE
BEHMA 187,500 88T (2018 F : 185,900 BHET) °

31.2 ENFFERAESWIERD

REFHR  EAFETESNEFTB62E6,6008
BT (20184 : 681280088 T) r EEAFERAX
RFERFEIER - BREEEE : (RIETESE
HEEBRIGRI0EBT(20184F : 34FB ) »
ERRELSRERBAREANEARNURESES IS
(M3E22) s RO)AEXESBRBTIAALLEEE
B —%32186,100838 7T (20184 : 345100 &8
TUNRIE  EFAEZEBRE N EYERH - R
BHREITESHNES NS  ERREBRETEESSX
FEAAXCEEERNNARAER  UHEREY
o EEMAFETESNERRZF » HH 218,000
BBt (2018%F : 32850088 T ) AR BARKRK
128 A REE RRIEFRRBEE  mEGKKEA
FERBERE -
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related parties,
except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

31.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$175 million (2018: HK$159
million) to the Trust for the provision of administrative and support services.

31.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, payable to the Trust amounted to HK$6,266 million (2018:
HK$6,808 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included (a) the
remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to HK$3,000 million (2018:
HK$3,400 million), which will gradually be settled within six months after the end of the reporting
period (note 22); and (b) HK$3,261 million (2018: HK$3,401 million) for the donation from the Trust to
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA?”) for the construction of the Hong Kong Palace
Museum, which will be settled based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back basis
according to the mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust, HK$2,180 million
(2018: HK$3,205 million) was classified as non-current liability as such amount was not repayable
within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as current liability.
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31.3 T EEEEHMH

EEERECHESREE YHEBRZESHHE
B -EEREESRATEENERBEAHEREES
WER TERETEESEEEZ EHEESAS
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

31.3 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board
of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by
the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key
management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, and nine Executive Directors (2018: eight), are detailed on “Board of
Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation

Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BEAT in HK$ million 2019 2018
BEAE < Basic compensation 68 64
HEREHBNHNE Performance-related compensation 40 39
EARER Retirement benefits 14 16
122 119
AR BIT The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AH Number of individuals 2019 2018
AR A1 Remuneration bands
4,000,001 &7t £ 5,000,000 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 3 -
7,000,001 & 7T Z 8,000,000 & T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2 1
8,000,001 &7t £ 9,000,000 & T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 1 2
9,000,001 7& 75 10,000,000 /& 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 1 -
10,000,001 /&7t ZE 11,000,000 & T HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 3
11,000,001 /&7t 2 12,000,000 & T HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 2 2
13,000,001 /& T = 14,000,000 & T HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 1 1
26,000,001 7T £ 27,000,000 T HK$26,000,001 to HK$27,000,000 - 1
27,000,001 & T & 28,000,000 & JT HK$27,000,001 to HK$28,000,000 1 -
12 10
HKILETEEZEGAY Individuals who ceased to be members of
the Board of Management 2 1
10 9
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

32.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Investment Office of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Office of the Club under investment policies and
risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment constraints
and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set
according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(@) Market risk

() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The majority of
RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational requirements
in the Mainland. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in
equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2019 2018
FRKBIE FRKRBIE
BERK s BEARER
20/ ) #in/CRa)
HEEZRT Increase/ HEMIRTSI Increase/
B LR E (decrease) HBEADLLHIIEE (decrease)
g /8855 on post-tax 1o /HE 55 on post-tax
If currency surplus and If currency surplus and
strengthened/  equity for the  strengthened/ equity for the
BEET in HK$ million weakened by year  weakened by year
AR RMB 5% 17/(17) 5% 45/(45)
[1¢2:3 EUR 5% 10/(10) 5% 18/(18)
ES GBP 5% 4/(4) 5% 6/(6)
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to market
price risk as the value of its equity investments and alternative investments will decline if market
prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective financial instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$742 million (2018: HK$854 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of its
financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$179 million lower (2018:
HK$121 million).

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s Mainland operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Price risk
is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.
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(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group as at
30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

FRRAERE !
2019 2018
3EA 31E8A 3{@A 3{E8A
AT UEE1HF HUT HUEE1E
Upto >3months 1FH0E FLEEG Upto >3 months 1L R
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over1 year Total
ILTEBEAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EHIE R Short-term loans 84 - - 84 133 - - 133
B 5 REMEMIRR Trade and other payables 8,888 1,935 2,237 13,060 8,054 2,463 3,205 13,722
LUFRREELEN Net-settled derivative
FTEKERE financial liabilities 24 6 169 199 6 9 33 48
8,996 1,941 2,406 13,343 8,193 2,472 3,238 13,903

2019 £ 6 A 30 B KEMIFENREREHS
EedRsREEBEALES64(82,80088BT( 2018
F 1451 2,100 BBx) - TREEEEZE 2019 F
6 A30 HiEK 2018 %6 B30 BIEWAFEEHN
EANEHIN  BEANSREELEE > WIRHE
TEHNZHBE S EREHRAR - TRFTBEENIE
AEHNRITRBELSRE  BEASTHERRRAINER
AEBEEHE)RE -

As at 30 June 2019, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Group was HK$6,428 million (2018: HK$4,521 million). The table below
analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2019 and
2018 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted
cash flows, which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

2019 2018

3fE8A 3fE8A 3{EA 3{EA

HUT ULEZE1F FUUT LEE1F
Upto >3 months 1E0E FLEEG Upto3 >3 months 1HEUE RE
EX-3: 7 in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over1year Total months  to 1year Over 1 year Total

RHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts

Pl Outflows (5,993) (422) (13) (6,428) 4,110) 411) - (4,521)
TN Inflows 5,961 419 13 6,393 4,174 417 - 4,591
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets at amortised costs (such as trade and
other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment), alternative
investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities are carried at FVTPL fall due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to the credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of such financial assets recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position
less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.8.

Management considered the lifetime expected loss amount with respect to these receivables
as minimal as at 30 June 2019 and 2018. The Group made no write-offs or provision for these
receivables during the year.

32.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to

- provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

- support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated statement
of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form
of donations through the Trust.

32.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by utilising the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant
input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value as at 30 June. See note 12 for disclosures of
fair value measurement of the investment properties.

2019 2018
501 #H12 #5103 g 501 #il2 #7513 B
EX-3:- 7 in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE/(BF) Assets/(liabilities)
BEREERE Contingency Fund investments
BEXES Debt securities 715 - - 715 - - - -
SEKRE Alternative investments - - 11,200 11,200 - - 8,773 8,773
RERITEESMIA Investments and derivatives
BERES Debt securities 758 - - 758 - - - -
SERE Alternative investments - - 1,554 1,554 - - 2,111 2,111
THEERIA Derivative financial instruments - (85) - (85) - 111 - 111
1,473 (85) 12,754 14,142 - 111 10,884 10,995

EENHRERREHERNENHABERELBREE
B BRALFPEEFERINEAREDR -

72019 £k 2018 & SEE={ELAFEEFTERA
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date

of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Group.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities
measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 10,884 8,137
TEWRERER NS 2AE Total gains recognised in income statement 500 934
BA Purchases 2,834 3,469
des Sales (1,464) (1,656)
6 A30H At 30 June 12,754 10,884
FRFARBREIMERER Total gains for the year included in income statement and

TSR T ARG EEE presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 500 934
ERMRIFENEEREBERFEARNTTARER Total gains for the year included in income statement for

WHERERITE SR T ARSI EEE assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period

and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 393 1,333

(c) 2019 6 F30 HX 2018 6 H30 H ' &
RBI2 AR R FEEFEHF G ER TR EA
ST :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements

within Level 2 as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Etic) fR{ERKTS EXBAZE
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE/AE
Financial assets/liabilities
BHNEEHN FRRESRE ABEER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
=5 FRBEERE AERER  FRREHR
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and
swap rates
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were as

BASENEBEIERMT : follows:
ktid) fh{ERKTS ERBEBRHAZHY & (R 1T)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs  Range (weighted average)
BREE/AE
Financial assets/liabilities
BiEESRE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
AEREESRE EERE" TEA TER
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHEERE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EERE" TEA TER
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
LEERRE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

EERPIHIRER 3 WREWFEFRMIHETE
B UERENEENRBSESKLERRERNMRE
HNESHREICERRENERREREREZEH
WEREEMEE  SERAMEREEFERZ
ERENDTVEE-

(e) R2019 6 30 HK 2018 F6 B30 HiL &
FUBEEXREALFEEIIRK -
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*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2019 and 2018, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried
at fair value
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

SEUBERRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEBT in HK$ million Ff3E Note 2019 2018
ERBEE Non-current assets
W RERESEM Property, plant and equipment 6,988 7,624
REYE Investment properties 21 -
‘| EE Intangible assets 1,780 1,307
MEBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,011 1,017
—REEATNRE Investments in a joint venture 27,012 28,202
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments 12,865 9,721
RERITESRTE Investments and derivatives 2,319 2,360
REFFENTIE Long-term prepayment 7 7
52,003 50,238
REEE Current assets
EiE A B ERER Loans to subsidiaries 1,681 1,685
5 RHMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 387 287
HiRBEEE Other current assets 350 353
EWEHBATNRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,311 4,142
RERITESRMIA Investments and derivatives - 13
EEFR Short-term deposits 6,090 2,375
RekBEEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,736 5,665
14,555 14,520
REBE Current liabilities
E 5 RHEMERIRIK Trade and other payables (8,322) (8,067)
FE TR IE Receipts in advance (140) (128)
ERTFHEARMNRE Amounts due to subsidiaries (7,122) (6,718)
THAMBHRAR Current income tax liabilities (323) (263)
PTEERMIA Derivatives () ©
(15,908) (15,178)
REBETE Net current liabilities (1,353) (658)
FRBES Non-current liabilities
BIEFTEHARE Deferred income tax liabilities (527) (505)
RERAIGHE Defined benefit scheme (436) (429)
FEURFRIE Receipts in advance (759) (775)
Hoth FETBRIR Other payables (2,234) (3,205)
(3,956) (4,914)
46,694 44,666
i Reserves 33 (a) 11,324 13,129
ERES Contingency Fund 33 (b) 35,370 31,537
ERAE Total equity 46,694 44,666
5% Anthony W K Chow
Axe Lester C H Kwok
BN Stewards

63



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IR R M T

33 FEmBMRkk#FEES(E) 33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) EEREEE (a) Reserve movement of the Club
BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7TH1H At 1 July 13,129 12,336
BB EER Net surplus after taxation 1,993 3,174
ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (3,833) (2,549)
BRBENEBERANESNEHNTE Remeasurements of post-employment

benefit obligation, net of tax 35 168
6 H30H At 30 June 11,324 13,129
(b) FEERELEE (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club
BHEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 31,537 28,988
R e EE Transfer from Reserve 3,833 2,549
6 H30H At 30 June 35,370 31,537
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SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019:

Ff B 2 =]
7A2019 %6 B30 B  BENTEMB ARG :
EERENEREI L

Effective percentage
held by the Club

EEITRBERA/EMER
FEERK Issued and fully paid up share BHE i
Principal activities capital / registered capital Directly Indirectly
EEREESHEEERLA REBEHELER 288 T 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
EESERREEERLF R RIREEER 3BHETT 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
ERSERFERLA RENEHREER 100 & T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
EREREEESHERAR SEEESEE BN AEERLRIE 100 BT 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and HK$100
recreational facilities
ERESE(KE)BRAR ERHETRABRFENEEA 2087t 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff HK$20
retirement benefits scheme
HREERRAHE SEEERRENEY 1,000 &8 T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages The Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
EEEEEFRAR(FE)BRAF BHEEEBRAFERE 58T 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000
business ventures in China
ERESES(HB)BRAF REBBESSRAENEENREBAR - 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited BELEEEESSMAERARANKE
acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited,*
on behalf of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
LRESEERERAT SEEEE BN ERELRIE 6,500 £ T 100
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited* manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000
recreational facilities
EREREERMHABARAR TR I BARE A 2 BRAF YRR 0 B B I R R RS 1,0008% T 100
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and US$10,000,000
software technology development and
consulting services
BNEREESEFIRERAA TERL B R 8 B UL )| ARER E ARHE22/22,0008 T 100
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited* constructs and operates horse training RMB2,220,000,000
facilities in Conghua
RYNBREERIBBARAA R BRI R R BT BR B N AR AR TS 3008 %t 100
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and US$3,000,000

*REREXE

software technology development and
consulting services

* Unofficial English name
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

BE2ESEHRARER

BEBT in HK$ million 2019* 2018*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 88 88
At EE R R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 228,535 218,902
ESRhEeE BB IMUTEE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 18,822 16,577
BOTHAER Total amounts wagered 247,357 235,479
BEREZERA Betting and lottery revenue 37,037 35,741
BEHRESHEHR Betting and lottery duty (22,770) (22,144)
AT It B EHEAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (85) (77)
#EEE Lotteries Fund (1,270) (1,217)
MRAREE Net margin and commission 12,912 12,303
Hg A Other revenue 4,141 4,235

17,053 16,538
R Operating costs (11,800) (10,852)
BEFETESHNE Donations to the Trust (4,333) (4,413)
HREBEETESRBERENKSL B Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 920 1,273
FERAE WS Interest income from deposits 180 109
BRERITESRIT AN (EER)/ R (Deficit)/surplus from investments and derivatives (306) 356
BRESKRENRER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 521 858
MsER Finance costs 4 (5)

1,311 2,591

Frib & A TEF Share of profits of joint ventures 1,514 2,097
MBRFHEAT N B R Surplus before taxation 2,825 4,688
HiE Taxation (742) (540)
MREIBAEERR Net surplus after taxation 2,083 4,148

* E2HE19EMTEE

it
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* Refer to note 1 on page 19.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

RERBE

EBESEREBESRRIRE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING AND

BETTING FACILITIES

BEBT in HK$ million 2019* 2018 2017 2016* 2015
ESHHE Number of race meetings 88 88 88 83 83
AihEEEESRITEE Amount wagered by local customers

on horse races 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665 105,281
A BESEEE S REN Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (88,194) (89,815 (92,999) (86,026) (88,419)
At ESEZUWA Horse race betting revenue on

local bets 17,802 17,890 17,952 16,639 16,862
i B SR Horse race betting duty on local bets (12,983) (13,056) (13,105) (12,134)  (12,300)
AU IREFFTF It B FHEAE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (85) (77) (70) 47) (49)
7R ith 2R S T A R Horse race betting net margin on

local bets 4,734 4,757 4,777 4,458 4,513
BHRIREHEE Amount wagered on football 114,074 103,084 92,692 86,795 78,249
EREEYS Football betting dividends (98,733) (88,965 (80,217) (74,892)  (67,061)
EHREEKA Football betting revenue 15,341 14,119 12,475 11,903 11,188
RRETH Football betting duty (7,671)  (7,060)  (6,238)  (5951)  (5,594)
RIREEAAF Football betting net margin 7,670 7,059 6,237 5,952 5,594
BEERTHEE Amount wagered on lottery 8,465 8,113 8,014 8,548 7,780
BHES Lottery prizes @571)  (4,381)  (4327)  (4,616)  (4,201)
BHWA Lottery revenue 3,894 3,732 3,687 3,932 3,579
REBEHR Lottery duty (2,116) (2,028) (2,004) (2,137) (1,945)
BEES Lotteries Fund (1,270)  (1,217)  (1,202)  (1,282)  (1,167)
®EAE Lottery commission 508 487 481 513 467
HMFWA (MR EM R R) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,574 2,332 1,814 1,612 1,567
FEb GG Total operating income 15,486 14,635 13,309 12,535 12,141
HELKERAR Direct operating costs (8,692) (7,439) (6,889) (6,571) (6,227)
HIBRR Miscellaneous donations (50) (78) (44) (29) (60)
E - @ REREBEEXH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,615) (1,612) (1,580) (1,493) (1,202)
B A Total operating costs (10,357) (9,129) (8,513) (8,093) (7,489)
rEBE Operating surplus 5,129 5,506 4,796 4,442 4,652
BB Taxation (590) (633) (558) (538) (522)
HBRBEENEE Bk Operating surplus after taxation 4,539 4,873 4,238 3,904 4,130
BASSEYNNATRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 77 60 67 108 75

LRBFRENRBREBERAABRBELES - HE
MEWE  RECBNERTRAZSRBRESAH

P R o
F 2EREHBEN

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust,
gain on sale of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development

Fund.

* Financial data is for full seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
EBHE

EBESEREESRRIIRE (&)

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING

AND BETTING FACILITIES (CONT.)

BHEET in HK$ million 2019* 2018* 2017 2016* 2015
EEBYRTHEE Total amount wagered on horse races 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142 107,925
W ESENEEENESENEIIMNUIEE Less: amount of non-local bets

placed by commingling partners

on horse races (18,823) (16,577) (6,505) (3,477) (2,644)
AT ESEERTAMH Amount wagered by local customers

on horse races 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665 105,281
EHAESSSEEKAMRATEERE THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP
BEBT in HK$ million 2019* 2018 2017 2016* 2015
Wi Income
BES%E Membership subscriptions 310 302 292 282 263
BEASERSHEERE Members’ entrance and

qualification fees 156 124 111 114 104
BEUMEKER Catering deficit (32) (48) (52) (41) (27)
Hih 3B ERERK R Other non-catering income 20 32 43 45 50

454 410 394 400 390

SESHAEBETHREY Direct membership

administration costs (321) (309) (331) (309) (305)
ERBEXH Depreciation and expensed

project costs (45) (54) (64) (66) (76)

(366) (363) (395) (375) (381)

Ke Rt/ (FR) Operating surplus /(deficit) 88 47 1) 25 9
S EER/ (F5E) Financial surplus/(deficit) (177) 140 127 (188) 40
MRE AR/ (B518) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation (89) 187 126 (163) 49

EEEECSEENARATCT INREHELN -
BENERFEETEEEREEIETE RMAIE
PRZRERE - TESRIENFEEIE1/E9,30088
TL(201845 : FIRFE1/81,40088T) » BHZER =
EHENNAFLEEES  WYCEBEEFANTE
BEtR/(F8E) -

R2019F6A30R BEAEGEEEEKERAT
FEEH20E7,5008BT(20184F : 217,900 8
B TECEYE RERSVNEFLEE16E
4,3008;8 (20184 : 7{85,500 88 7t) » RE400
BB (20185 : 6183,500E87w)  kABFEMNR
B 785,900 88T (20184 : 7487,500& % 7T) -
DR REEES3E6,10088 T (20184 : 31852,900
BBn) BEE5E6E9,3008BT(2018F : 42
1,700887T) °

* BEHBENY -
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The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited entered into interest rate swap contracts
with the objective of hedging against the interest rate exposure of a loan drawn for funding of
the Happy Valley Clubhouse extension. Net losses of derivative financial instruments of HK$193
million were incurred (2018: net gains HK$114 million), representing change in the fair value of these
interest rate swap contracts, and were included in the financial surplus/(deficit) during the year.

The net assets of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2019
were HK$2,075 million (2018: HK$2,179 million), mainly including property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets of HK$1,643 million (2018: HK$755 million), investments of HK$4 million
(2018: HK$635 million), non-current prepayments of HK$759 million (2018: HK$775 million) and
current assets of HK$361 million (2018: HK$329 million), less total liabilities of HK$693 million (2018:

HK$417 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons



STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BATHFHE

= RACING
2019* 2018~ 2017~ 2016~ 2015

ESHYE Race meetings
HERE Day meetings 47 46 46 48 47
BERE Night meetings M 42 42 35 36
HRE Total number of meetings 88 88 88 83 83
B BERISE Races on turf 714 701 704 701 675
ERIFMEBETSH Races on all-weather track 98 106 102 83 102
BI5H Total number of races 812 807 806 784 777
B Horses
BT HBEHERE Total runners 9,765 9,794 10,003 9,840 9,755
BH—5ESETHA Horses winning 1 race 305 311 314 302 300
BFHmEESSE A Horses winning 2 races 152 131 144 134 129
BH=8EEFTHA Horses winning 3 races 38 51 38 47 44
BH=BU I EEETHE Horses winning over 3 races 20 19 21 17 20
BFHESESFTHE Horses with winnings 515 512 517 500 493
AEBHBEEEBANESTHA Horses not winning - placed 441 431 399 419 408
REBHESTEBANEFTTHE Horses not winning - unplaced 373 357 359 387 380
REHEFTHA Horses not raced 376 331 321 305 305
Brraag Total horse population 1,705 1,631 1,596 1,611 1,586
RERET Retirements 467 469 447 444 398
BEERS Prize money
REVEE(HEBTT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,252 1,190 1,140 1,064 982
FHEFHES (FET) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,542 1,474 1,415 1,357 1,264
BUrEFIES (FiExT) Average prize money per horse (HK$’000) 734 729 714 660 619
FRNERSREFTEFTAHE L Percentage of horses winning

prize money in the year 60% 62% 62% 61% 62%
FASRESREBFIEHESTAE AN Percentage of individual runners

winning prize money in the year 7% 77% 7% 75% 76%
FAROEAESERNESREFTAS L Percentage of horses recovering

basic costs or more in the year 37% 38% 37% 37% 36%
EEHFEHAEAE(F) Average attendance per meeting ('000)
St Happy Valley 19.0 18.4 18.1 18.1 17.7
WH Sha Tin 29.6 28.8 29.6 29.3 29.3
EERIE(EESRET) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
EiEEt Standard bets 107,952 107,528 101,517 91,204 92,730
FRIE Exotic bets 15,909 15,781 15,163 14,149 14,286
ElEBEL Fixed odds bets 958 973 776 789 909
e Total 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142 107,925

* 2EREHRTEN -

* Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BETBFHME
% FINANCIAL
EE-3: 7 in HK$ million 2019* 2018* 2017 2016* 2015*
EBBRBIR Duty and taxation to

Hong Kong SAR Government
ESEEN Horse Race betting duty 12,083 13,056 13,105 12,134 12,300
BRIEEH Football betting duty 7,671 7,060 6,238 5,951 5,594
REEEHR Lottery duty 2,116 2,028 2,004 2,137 1,945
FIEH Profits tax 609 626 544 528 518

23,379 22,770 21,891 20,750 20,357

REH ' BIBEBLES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 2

FIREBIE1993F4 A1 BB c EEEEHE
ERPBESASERNTREFTNAERESTEL
#® AH+HEZE2003F3H31H HEEHZE
2021%3A31H

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2021.

28 MEMBERSHIP
A6H30H as at 30 June 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ERESEERAY Number of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Members
2E28 Full Members 15,196 14,997 14,850 14,736 14,594
2EE5(S) Full Members (S) 197 194 195 188 181
EERHEMES Racing and other Members 9,968 9,610 9,279 8,993 8,690
REEE Absent Members 2,677 2,793 2,778 2,734 2,724
AAEE Corporate Members 184 187 186 189 186
28,222 27,781 27,288 26,840 26,375
HEREEE AR Number of Racing Club Members
BmHREEs Racing Club Members 1,295 1,230 1,139 1,071 962
RLEE A Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 998 975 958 908 828
AFEE Corporate Members 105 109 109 107 105
30,620 30,095 29,494 28,926 28,270
£BEES GROUP EMPLOYEES
A6H30H as at 30 June 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
2 Full-time 7,258 7,015 6,605 6,469 6,101
£ 37 Part-time 14,563 14,403 14,982 15,793 18,308
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* Racing statistical data is for full seasons.






REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
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The Trustees have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited financial statements of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Trust was primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and
community projects in Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed.

RESULTS

The results of the Trust for the year are set out in the income statement on page 76. All figures in the
annual report and the audited financial statements are expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars,
unless otherwise stated.

FUND

Movements in fund of the Trust during the year are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Trust allocated HK$4,277 million for charitable purposes, as detailed in the
“Charities Trust Donations” section of the report.

TRUSTEES

The Trustees of the Trust are the twelve Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) as
listed in the “Board of Stewards” section of the report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Trustees and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Anthony W K Chow
Chairman
26 July 2019
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TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE HONG KONG
JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST

(established in Hong Kong)
OPINION

What we have audited

The financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (the “Trust”) set out on
pages 76 to 98, which comprise:

. the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019;

. the income statement for the year then ended;

. the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
. the statement of changes in fund for the year then ended;

. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust
as at 30 June 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust, the consolidated financial statements of
The Hong Kong Jockey Club and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Trustees of the Trust is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the Board of Trustees determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Trustees is responsible for assessing the Trust’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Trustees either intends to
liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON’T)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Trustees.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2019
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INCOME STATEMENT
Wz &

BZE6 B30 ALLFE

for the year ended 30 June

BHEET in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2019 2018
REEBEFEREMBLR Donations from The Hong Kong Jockey Club and
(ATEE [ ERESEEE ) NEXK its subsidiaries (the “HKJC Group”) 10.3(b) 4,333 4,413

RERITESHMIENREE Surplus from investments and derivatives 533 1,040
FERF B W Interest income from deposits 65 46
Friba& A8% %U Share of profits of a joint venture 4 1,887 2,029
BARELERE Forfeited dividends and refunds 64 54
R R Operating costs 10.1 (176) (160)
g (&R /Wi Finance (costs)/income (109) 30
RETRBRAEWE R LB EIFEAI RS Surplus before allocation to charitable

organisations and community projects 6,597 7,452
5 R B AR Previous allocations not utilised 125 73
BiBREHERUL BT EINFIERE Present value of allocation to charitable

organisations and community projects (4,088) (4,115)
BAESHFERE Net surplus transferred to Fund 8 2,634 3,410
BEZERERMEFEINRERE Present value of allocation to charitable

organisations and community projects (4,088) (4,115)
HRENTZE Present value impact (189) (119)
BB EHERTETEINRIE Allocation to charitable organisations and

community projects (4,277) (4,234)

%81 HEE B EMNMEBALFE UHRERMN
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The notes on pages 81 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EFHEK@EER

BZE6 A30 HILEE for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018

RERE Net surplus 2,634 3,410

AEERHNFHLHE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,634 3,410
H81BEZSENMIFBRESUBHRERN—ID - The notes on pages 81 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ISR R

BZE6 A30 HILEE at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2019 2018
FRBEE Non-current assets
—REEQTANKRE Investments in a joint venture 4 30,586 30,174
BRERITESRBT A Investments and derivatives 5 16,563 10,252
BRREWFE Loans and receivables 10.4 2,180 3,205
49,329 43,631
REEE Current assets
RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives 5 - 3,341
BN YRR Loans and receivables 10.4 4,126 3,637
EHITER Short-term deposits 6 1,935 574
ReERESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 6 818 1,213
6,879 8,765
RBEE Current liabilities
i 1 2 A AU SRR Allocations awaiting payment (19,578) (18,400)
fTEemI A Derivatives 5 () -
HAbRESERRR Other payables - (1)
(19,579) (18,401)
REIBEFE Net current liabilities (12,700) (9,636)
36,629 33,995
e Fund 8 36,629 33,995
HEEFEA Anthony W K Chow
BK Lester C H Kwok
SBEMT Trustees

E81HE S HNMEBARE M BRRAN —8
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The notes on pages 81 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND
ES8BHR

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7 A1 B4k Balance at 1 July 33,995 30,585
FRARR Net surplus 2,634 3,410
AEFEEZHERZEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,634 3,410
6 A 30 B&EER Balance at 30 June 36,629 33,995
FB1EHZISEMNMIBARGREMBRERN -2 - The notes on pages 81 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERER

BZE6 B30 BLLFE

for the year ended 30 June

BEBT in HK$ million Ff3F Note 2019 2018
EETE Operating activities
BARBEELERENR Forfeited dividends and refunds 64 54
ARFREHBRILES Payments to charitable organisations and
community projects (2,894) (2,823)
EBESEEEBAKERRERD Donations from the HKJC Group and
decrease in receivables 4,090 1,038
H BRI (R ) /480 (Decrease)/increase on other payables (1) 1
EEENYRBERQTMEENR Loan made to The Jockey Club CPS Limited - (82
KA Operating costs (176) (160)
EETHMELS/(FIA)WERS Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities 1,083 (1,972)
REEE Investing activities
B A A =18 A L EREHRERR M) /R (Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits
with maturities of more than 3 months (1,361) 1,608
EUWEFE Interest received 65 47
H—RXEEQaMEEXE Injection into a joint venture (1,520) (3,516)
B—XREEARER Redemption from a joint venture 3,568 2,562
BERAFEEEBERIIRNIMBEEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”") (2,725) (4,577)
HERAVEEERERVIRNIKEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 779 1,594
EREEFRENES(EM) /B> (Increase)/decrease in deposits and funds awaiting
investments (291) 1,224
HETE M T AFTBCFERIE Net receipt from derivative financial instruments 13 3
RETBAMANFRE Net cash used in investing activities (1,472) (1,055)
RERASEZEMFRD Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (389) (3,027)
FYRERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,213 4,231
RIB(EE) /W Exchange (losses)/gains ) 9
FRESRBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 818 1,213
REeRRSEEMEETIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
EEFR Short-term deposits 801 1,199
IRITIER Bank balances 17 14
818 1,213

BB HZBENMEBAREM BRI —FD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WEY  FEERFEMEEL -

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Trust is primarily engaged in supporting charitable organisations and community projects in
Hong Kong in accordance with the Trust Deed. The Trust is established in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million), unless
otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 76 to 98 were approved by the Board of Trustees on 26 July
2019.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Trust’s accounting policies. The area involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements is
disclosed in note 3.

(@) Amendments to standards and new interpretations that are relevant to the
Trust’s operations and are effective for the current accounting period

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above amendments and new interpretations did not have any significant impact
on the financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Trust’s accounting policies.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received
or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

Annual Improvements include changes from the 2014-2016 cycle of the annual improvements
project. These affect two standards.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(b) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Trust’s operations but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following amendments have been published and are mandatory for the Trust’s accounting
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The Trust is still assessing what the impact of the amendments will be in the period of initial
application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments will have a significant
impact on the Trust’s results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Joint arrangements

The Trust has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Trust has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Trust’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Trust’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Trust’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Trust does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Trust and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Trust’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Trust.

2.3 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the HKJC Investment Trust Fund (“Investment
Trust”), are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in the Investment Trust. The
accounting policy for the financial assets of the investments and derivatives are stated in note 2.4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Trust classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. The investments and derivatives contains
these financial assets.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Trust’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Trust uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Trust holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are classified
as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current assets.

The Trust’s assets in this category include loans and receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date on which the Trust
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement (CONT.)

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Trust measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets
that are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and
interest income, are recognised in the income statement. This information is shown under net gains
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
(c) Impairment of financial assets

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS
9 on the reporting date.

The financial assets include loans and receivables, funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Trust
considers these counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual
cash flows, and are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the
12-month ECL.

The Trust assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Trust considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.4 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

The Trust measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Trust considers the 12-month ECL for the financial assets as minimal.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Trust are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The Trust
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Trust’s functional currency
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the income statement. Assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period. The differences
arising from translation are recognised in the income statement.

2.6 Revenue recognition

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

2.7 Donations

Donation income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive the payment is
established.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Allocation to charitable organisations and community
projects

Allocation to charitable organisations and community projects is charged to income statement and
recognised as liability when the grant has been offered to and accepted by the grantee and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the legal and/or constructive
obligation established.

Allocations awaiting payment that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the
present value of expected future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.9 Forfeited dividends and refunds

In accordance with The Hong Kong Jockey Club’s Rules, certain dividends and refunds which are
not claimed within the specified period are deemed to be donated for charitable purposes. These
amounts are paid directly to the Trust.

2.10 Related party

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Trust if the
Trust has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Trust and the party
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to exercise significant judgements in
the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates and assumptions.
The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and uncertainties and
for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using different
assumptions.

3.1 Recognition of allocation to charitable organisation and
community projects

The Trust requires significant judgement to determine when allocation to charitable organisations
and community projects is recognised as liability. In making this judgement, the Trust performs
due diligence on the grant application, including assessing the grantees’ ability and willingness in
honouring the grant conditions, and evaluating the likelihood of an outflow of resources to settle
the obligations.



4 BERANKRE 4 INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

A2019 F£6 A30 BEEQTFBNT : Details of the joint venture as of 30 June 2019 are as follows:

BEREE A E R FEERK EEREIREHERE SFEFRX

Name of entity Country of incorporation Principal activities Authorised and paid up capital Measurement method
HKJC Investment Trust Fund BIZE S RERERERES TEA fE

(“Investment Trust”) The Cayman Islands investment in equities and n/a Equity

debt securities

N 6HA30H  EXEESREBBEER Investment  The effective percentages directly held by the Trust and its related entities in the Investment Trust

Trust EEFENERBEALLWT ¢ as of 30 June were as follows:
2019 2018
ERESEREERES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 45.8% 50.3%
EEERS The Hong Kong Jockey Club 51.8% 47.0%
EEESEETRINERGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 2.4% 2.7%
100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
7TH1H At 1 July 30,174 27,191
xE Injection 1,520 3,516
e Redemption (3,568) (2,562)
Frik @R Share of profits 1,887 2,029
ERREBESS Transfer from The Hong Kong Jockey Club 573 -
6 A30H At 30 June 30,586 30,174
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4 BERATNREE)

EATBEE B30 ALNHBANAENT :

4  INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint venture as of 30 June was as follows:

2019 2018
EtESEE =tEeEs
WERE DL WEKRBE DL
Trust’s effective Trust’s effective
BEEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest
Wz Income 3,475 1,887 4,273 2,029
BFi R R Surplus after taxation 3,475 1,887 4,273 2,029
EHEINEHEEE Total comprehensive income 3,475 1,887 4,273 2,029
FRBEE Non-current assets
RATEEEBERIIRNTEEE Fair value through profit or loss
BE Equities
EEBLEWM Listed in Hong Kong 1,981 1,039 2,381 1,129
EEHNLET Listed overseas 28,249 14,821 30,209 14,331
BEHES Debt securities
v =2 ki) Listed overseas 18,665 9,564 16,391 8,808
L Unlisted 11,894 6,054 10,646 5,726
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - - 170 70
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 71 36 200 107
REBEE Current assets
fTHEemIA Derivative financial instruments 126 65 162 87
REEELE Total current assets 126 65 162 87
RBEE Current liabilities
B 5 REMEMIRR Trade and other payables (1,578) (801) - -
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments (179) 91) (75) (40)
RBEEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEE S R EMEMERRMERS) (excluding trade and other
payables and provisions) (179) (91) (75) (40)
FERBEME Non-current liabilities
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments (197) (101) (83) (44)
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4 BERATNREE) 4  INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONT.)

&% QAT Investment TrustFiiFEH % » :]8F  The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rate of 5.78% (2018: 5.03%) for the
MEEHERANE5.78% (20184 : 5.03%) o joint venture under the Investment Trust. Their weighted average maturities were 4 years (2018:

Investment Trust FTiSEHHFH W METLITHARAIL 6 years) under Investment Trust.

4F (2018 F : 6 F) °

2019 2018
BTREUTIERIE : Underlying investments were denominated in
the following currencies:
Ep United States Dollars (“USD”") 83% 83%
Bl Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 4% 5%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”) 3% 3%
& Euro (“EUR”) 2% 2%
Hit g% Other currencies 8% 7%
100% 100%
5 RERTESMIA 5 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT In HK$ million 2019 2018
FERBEE Non-current assets
EfHS — LW Debt securities — listed 753 -
FERE —FLtm Alternative investments — unlisted 14,825 9,557
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 8 19
EEN Deposits 977 676
16,563 10,252
REBEE Current assets
FERE —FLm Alternative investments — unlisted - 3,340
fTEemI A Derivative financial instruments
- BEMNEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts - 1
- 3,341
RBEE Current liabilities
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
- BHINEEH - Foreign exchange forward contracts (1) -

BERELERERNMEREERAERE2.60% (2018  The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rate of 2.60% (2018:
F:207%) FRERESREESWIREEBEEAE  2.07%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair
NEEERE  MEEZEREFRNMEFEIHERERA  values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits were 493 days (2018:
5493 H (201845 : 26H) ° 26 days).

2019 2018
RERTEESMTIANUTIIERE ! Investments and derivatives were denominated in
the following currencies:
ES uUsD 99% 98%
W& EUR 1% 2%
100% 100%
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6 EHERRRERAESEY

6.1 EHER
EHERNMEFEERANERE2.35% (2018 F :
2.64%) c EHIFERMWIRAEEEEL A FEERES -
MEMMEFHHAR A 1658 (2018 £ : 164 B) °

6 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
6.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 2.35% (2018: 2.64%). The
carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their weighted average

maturities were 165 days (2018: 164 days).

2019 2018

EHRERUTIIEMNE Short-term deposits were denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 88% -
ES usD 12% 100%
100% 100%

6.2 RERRTEEY

AMBEA=ZEAUTHERNMELHERIES
2.55%(2018 F :2.01%) - FRHNEEEABAKEEL D
TEEEE  mMEMEFIERAA69H (2018 F :
40 H) °

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with maturities of less than three months
was 2.55% (2018: 2.01%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair values and

their weighted average maturities were 69 days (2018: 40 days).

2019 2018
FEBMAR=EAUTHERATIEETE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 55% 87%
ES usD 45% 13%
100% 100%

7 HEFXATHERK

RS T E 8 0 IR AR RO IE IR =
mERMARHBD 12 BAZE BEEEEDHE
MEZMHBIAERDAMN - A - BERERES
ERRENNEEEEME  HERROBIHIRS
THBRSEBRBESR12 @A - EREME - B
F6 530 AMFRMNBRBBNTAMRELE |

7 ALLOCATIONS AWAITING PAYMENT

The Trust classifies the allocations awaiting payment as current liabilities as the Trust does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the allocations for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. However, due to the inherent nature of the projects for which allocations have been made
by the Trust, the period in which these allocations are expected to be paid may be greater than
12 months after the reporting period. Based on the estimates of management, as at 30 June, the

allocations awaiting payment are expected to be paid:

BEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
R—FR Within one year 4,770 3,532
RE_ZE=FR In the second to third year inclusive 9,405 9,085
RE=ZF#% After the third year 5,806 6,106

19,981 18,723
HESFIANBRRENEE Present value impact on allocations awaiting payment (403) (323)
EEESR OO E N bR E] Present value of allocations awaiting payment 19,578 18,400

BRNEEANNRTEHEEEEWRETE ¥
TALE L3 TR S T ©
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The actual timing of the payments is dependent upon the progress of the individual projects and

may differ from the expected schedule presented above.



8 EH2 8 FUND

BHEET in HK$ million 2019 2018
7TH1H At 1 July 33,995 30,585
iR e Wam R Transfer from income statement 2,634 3,410
6 H30H At 30 June 36,629 33,995
9 BiE 9 TAXATION

SHESERRYMEERER - B L EIEHBE
4 o

10 BEBEALZXS

FRECHEEERE((BE D RETEMEAR
HERE HNEEEZRANETRAKEEERES
BREA URBESEZANLCRSERRSEERLE
(MEENDNEFSEXNREARARA(FEXIR
BNEZRME  FUGRESHEZIANRSEXY
RELBHE -

RTEEUBHRREMEIIREEN  EEESHEE
BEATCETHRXZOT !

10.1 BERA
KERABREEEANESRENTERRXER
oo mEINN1E7,50088 T (20184F 1 18
5,9008&T) ©

10.2 B

(a) EUEEMELHBEL

REHHR - EEESHRDEEANERR YR
HHEE—-%3,0008BTHWKIE(2018F 3,000
BEx) EEFRERERESHEANELERN
E8 > FRERBARRF S MELEIER - BENME
AESFEHEREHEE - AERENREEEREAR
FEERES -

No provision for taxation has been made because the Trust is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax.

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust is related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries. It is also related
to The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited (“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club
CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and the Directors of
KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Trust with related parties, except for those
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

10.1 Operating costs

Operating costs included management expenses of HK$175 million (2018: HK$159 million) for
administrative and support services provided by the Club.

10.2 Loans
(a) Loans to KSCGC

At the end of the reporting period, included under the loans and receivables in current assets
was HK$30 million (2018: HK$30 million) made by the Trust to KSCGC representing the balance
of an interest-free, unsecured loan repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the loans
approximated their fair values.
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10 EEBEEATZRFZ(E)
10.3 X

(a) RIEFEFZEXNYREFR A BIHHE

ETELCEIBE1158,800&8B T (201845 : 912
8,900 BET) FTEEENWREEBRAT

(b) REBEBESSKBATIEHN

ETECHABESSEEREMNIBRA431/E3,300
BT (20184 1 44181,300EBT) °

104 BEEBEFEEERRNE

REFHPR BEEESSEEEWRNRIEAG2E
6,600 88T (20184 : 6812800 &8 T) » BEFIE
BEWMFERGEIRIF - BRETEEE (@ BEE
EESEERMEERBRNGRI0EHB T (20184 ¢
34EET) BERERESR2BRBAREANEARREL
BeARESERE ROBEFAAVLESTERN
—%32{56,100858 7T (20184 : 34{E100E B )
HEE  FARREERE X LBYEZR - RigHE
EeNEHHE  FERESRETESARAL
EEERNNRAER  LUHEEERR - £8EB
EFEEEEKRNREZH - EH21/E8,0008E T
(20184 : 32fH500B B T) HFEHFTERAK121E
BREE  HIMEFRRBHEE > MESKKERIER
BEE -FR - A7E8500BBINEERR
FRERRETEE -
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10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

10.3 Donations

(a) Donations to CPS
The Trust donated HK$188 million (2018: HK$989 million) to CPS.

(b) Donations from the HKJC Group
The Trust recorded donations of HK$4,333 million (2018: HK$4,413 million) from the HKJC Group.

10.4 Receivable from the HKJC Group

At the end of the reporting period, receivable from the HKJC Group amounted to HK$6,266 million
(2018: HK$6,808 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included (a)
the remaining balance of the annual donations from the HKJC Group to HK$3,000 million (2018:
HK$3,400 million), which will gradually be received within six months after the end of the reporting
period; and (b) HK$3,261 million (2018: HK$3,401 million) for the donation to West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority (“WKCDA?”) for the construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will
be received based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to the
mutual agreement with the Club. Out of the receivable from the HKJC Group, HK$2,180 million
(2018: HK$3,205 million) was classified as non-current asset as such amount was not expected to
be received within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as current
asset. During the year, HK$785 million of annual donation was received by means of transfer of
investments.



11 BIKERERE

11.1 BEKREE

ERESHNRETH (BRYESEQATNKRE)ARZE
SHENPEEAR  TSAR(BESERE - B
BEEAERRE)  RBESERREERR - 55T
HeMBERRSESS  Eh#¥eRT SRR
BEEME  BENERERERBYECTESHRRENE
ETRRNEE . CAESFRATESRHITE  LLEER
BIRARZNE TR -

FREEENEIENKEE  BEER - EF  RER
HtZHRE AFERENFERBUEXESK
BETEE -

FERENSERESEREZETMRNWRERKE
REBERES  ETRARER - RERFIRES
BEREBEETARRN—BD - EXESRES
HESHRERR  HENESITERHRIES - MU
ETRERRERE -

(a) TiEERE

() &R

E¥ERRERUMFIENRERRSTAERY
BANES Mol BUSRARR -

ERESNEEREBIENEZAREBRAE - BT
HEETHE BRI ERBATRSEBEMY - HERH
E¥ER  DTEEZRTSFESTILHRERESR
Ve

TRETHRERPR  BUTEZEERHLEBINE
ERTHEALWIBEIE®/ES  EHMLAETE
EEHERFTROBERT  EEESHNEBEEMN/
AT

11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

11.1 Financial risk factors

The Trust’s investment activities, including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Trust’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial
performance. The Trust uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Trust’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative investments,
which are managed by the Investment Office of the Club and external professional fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Office of the Club under investment policies and
risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment constraints
and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set
according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Trust’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in USD or HKD. The HKD is pegged to
the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The remaining currency
exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Trust’s surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2019 2018

FARBRER FRBHRES

EEBRTH #w/Chd) BEBET a0/ CRA)

BOLLMIEE Increase/ BHZLEHIIRE Increase/

s /HE 5 (decrease) on Wos/HE55 (decrease) on

If currency surplus and If currency surplus and

strengthened/ equity for the strengthened/ equity for the

BEET in HK$ million weakened by year weakened by year
B EUR 5% 12/(12) 5% 22/(22)
BEE GBP 5% 5/(5) 5% 7/(7)
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1.1 BEKBEE (&)
(a) FEER ()

(i) EEEE

EBRERRIEETSERZEMIBSENEAR - H
RTSERTH®  BESRERERZERENEET
B UGEEESAZETSERRAR BLERER
BHEMRRARAFIARAFEEEBEBIIRNIBE
EET -

REBHPAR  ZEZEHESHRIENERLEA/TH
5% EHMAEUERXYERTENERT &
AESHERSRSRIAN LA FEEEB ML M/
WA 81E6,900 88 T (20184 : 8123,000&8T) °

(i) F== bz

NEREBEEEATSANESHMSIBEENAR - 5
ALOTPEENZEABRRRESREFNZRAL - X TVEE
NEEBRETSANEEE  SIFUKEEERKE
HEK - RERENZEBAETSFIREE - 51
BHREEARRESRBHRKBNEAR - HRMEEE
SHREANERE  URKEAZZAFEERR
EREBFEERE

REBHMKR  ARFREBEELE  HFRREM 50
B GHUFAEUSREIESTENRERT
FREEFANBBRREREETE 26210088
(2018 & : 1 182 9,600 &) °

ERETEBRRMEEIRRAEESRENRER
B ERETWERE  EWMERBEAEREET/ER
MEBREBRTURSE - EREKERE - AEBRAR
TEREBESENFEZ T REARD BHELET LUR
B RMEREEIH  AEAFTEERRESIRRE
REBHESRFETEREH o

o

(b) HEEZEE

FEASEBRRIREAS TR (B RHR
PO o O - FFEE SN A AR K R ST P b g
EATEENEREHBAERR -

AREEEENELHNEE RERHIEEELE

NENFE  FRESREEHRERAHSEEN
B WFTERENTREFBNEMHERIH -

ERESTEBHEFMEREREZEEEES - E1T
BHARESREDN  EERBDESEAR - UBRTE
NABEEMEEREANEESER -
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Price risk
Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Trust is exposed to market
price risk as the value of its equity investment and alternative investments will decline if market

prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the statement of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective financial instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Trust’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$869 million (2018: HK$830 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of its
financial instrument.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Trust has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Trust’s surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$221 million lower (2018: HK$196
million).

The Trust controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD exposure.
Price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by
securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing
across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Trust may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Trust maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Trust also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Trust to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.
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1.1 BEKBEE (&)

(b) FEBE L/ (&)

SEESEZES A30 BLEMETEMBEBRUF
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Trust as at
30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2019 2018
318 A 318 AR 31@A 318A
KT HEE1FE  1FLE RUT UEE1HE 1FU0E
Upto >3 months Over HBE Upto >3 months Over RE
BEAET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
EFTEM AR Non-derivative financial
liabilities
EEESZNE:OFEAN Allocations awaiting
payment 19,981 - - 19,981 18,723 - - 18,723
UREEELEN Net-settled derivative
ITEMBEE financial liabilities 25 - 101 126 8 10 40 58
20,006 - 101 20,107 18,731 10 40 18,781

M2019%6 B30H ' EXESHBENARTERER
MESHNEEBEEELIEAT70/E900E8 (2018
F 51850088 T) e TREETEESEZE2019F
6 H30H1EK% 2018 6 B30 B ILMARFAEHINE
BHERS  BESHNBRBELE  TIRESBT
BHIBEELIEBRHRAR - TRAKENTES
EHRTRBELRE  HEXESHBERRERAIN
BREEEEHE)RE -

As at 30 June 2019, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts held by the Trust was HK$7,009 million (2018: HK$5,105 million). The table below analyses
the Trust’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 that would
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining contractual
maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted cash flows,
which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the statement of financial
position.

2019 2018
31EA 31@A 3{EA 3{EA
HUT HUEE1FE 1FHUE AT HUEE1E 1FH0E
Upto >3 months Over #EE Upto >3 months Over Rz
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year 1 year Total
RHINESH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
M Outflows (6,526) (466) (17) (7,009) 4,572) (5633) - (5,105)
A Inflows 6,490 464 17 6,971 4,639 539 - 5,178
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Trust is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets at amortised costs (such as loans
and receivable, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment), alternative
investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities are carried at FVTPL fall due.

The Trust limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2019, the Trust’s maximum exposure to the credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of such financial assets recognised in the statements of financial position less the amount
of cash on hand as defined in note 2.4.

Management considered the 12-month expected loss amount with respect to these receivables
as minimal as at 30 June 2019 and 2018. The Trust made no write-offs or provision for these
receivables during the year.

11.2 Capital risk management

The Trust’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Trust’s ability to continue as
a going concern in order to be a major benefactor of public and community services through
charitable contributions; and support the Trust’s stability and growth.

The Trust monitors its capital which is same as the Fund shown in its statement of financial position
to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of donations.

11.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by utilising the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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ERETOENEOREEXSH X585 &2
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant

input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and

considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following tables present the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities that

were measured at fair value as at 30 June.

2019 2018
&A1 &2 13 #zE &A1 72 #7513 R
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE/(88) Assets/(liabilities)

RERITESMIA Investments and derivatives

SERE Alternative investments - - 14,825 14,825 - - 12,897 12,897

BEES Debt securities 753 - - 753 - - - -

TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - () - () - 1 - 1

753 (1) 14,825 15,577 - 1 12,897 12,898

ERESHBREREREBNEHRBERELE
B0 BRATEEFEANNEAREY -
A2019 £ 2018 F > FAESE=HAAFTEEFE
AR B R o

(b) RIFARF3 B EE A FEBNETESE
ERAEZHEEHNT :

The Trust’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of

the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value

hierarchy classifications for the Trust.

(b) The movements of the Trust’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured

at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BHEEBT in HK$ million 2019 2018
7H1H At 1 July 12,897 8,889
TEWERER NN E2ARE Total gains recognised in income statement 503 1,021
BA Purchases 4,662 4,577
= Sales (3,237) (1,590)
6 A30H At 30 June 14,825 12,897
FRFTAKSERILSIVE Total gains for the year included in income statement and

RERITESHM T ARSNNGREEE presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 503 1,021
2RBRESEENEERERE Total gains for the year included in income statement for assets

RERTARSERLIHERER and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period and

TSR I ARBRNKRRELE presented in surplus from investments and derivatives 403 1,460
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11 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

11.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements
within Level 2 as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

ktid) fh{ERKTS ERXBAZH

Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE/AE

Financial assets/liabilities

BHINEEH FRBEERE AREER

Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates

(d) #2019 %£6 30 HX 2018 £6 B30 H - &t
ERBI3 AR A FEEREANEAFLER

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 were as

BAZBHERBENERMT : follows:
ki fHERT BEREEBERASHY B (hnfEF)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs ~ Range (weighted average)
BsEE/AE
Financial assets/liabilities
BiEESRE EEFE" TEA TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREESRE BEEFE" TEA TEA
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHhEESRE EEFE" TEA TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE BEEFE" TEAR TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
IEEERE EEFE" TEA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

* EERPIBAR WREAFEFRHHETE
B UERENEENRESESCEFERNE
NESHENCELBENERREEERERH
tWEBEREMET  ERESRAMEREEFE
ARERENNTEE-

(e) R2019 £6 530 HK 2018 6 H 30 A&
FHBEEXNEEUR FPEESIRK -
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* The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Trust has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2019 and 2018, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried
at fair value.



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEEFTEZEN

BATH BBEFSEESETESEE  Over the past decade, The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities
FEMTIYMEBELLERTLERBR ©  Trust has approved an average of HK$3.4 billion a year in
RE [HERE ] THAEI ] - [ charitable and community donations. These donations are
&4 | R BRIt ] MK - broadly grouped into four major areas: Community Services;

0018/19 %[ » 2T E4 D =itfigz  Education and Training; Medical and Health; and Sports,

WAL AB SR T » T 004 [HREE Recreation and Culture.

RHBRIEE - HEERFIINE100Z  In 2018/19, the Trust approved a total of HK$4.3 billion in

120H ° donations to 294 charitable and community projects. Details
are provided on pages 100 to 120.

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB CHARITIES TRUST CHARITABLE AND COMMUNITY DONATIONS (HK$M)
ERESELEGRESHEAEARBR(ARET)
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17/18
16/17

15/16

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000
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CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEGRESER

B/ A
ERESEEERTESIENE

HERE COMMUN

Organisation/P

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BERETESSLRETE AHNF To extend the Trust-initiated JC JoyAge: Jockey Club Holistic 279,250
Support Project for Elderly Mental Wellness for four more years
HMERTEESTEMEE  A=F To extend the Trust-initiated Jockey Club End-of-Life 124,150
Community Care Project for three more years
AEWO020FE [ZEHA #HHBEIREM  To convene the Philanthropy for Better Cities Forum 2020 23,400
ZERIBE
AIEBTHBHEL —RYSEEE To launch a series of promotional programmes for non- 5,570
governmental-organisations
EFSR2ENES Jockey Club Emergency Relief Fund
RHSISERT : B To provide assistance to:
R RELE AL R AU M EEALANER  Nine families and individuals who faced financial hardship due 580
NERERERIAL to the sudden death of their main breadwinner
AAXKHEMERLEMSZEN=RE  Three families and individuals who fell victim to fires or other 226
RAERIA L natural disasters
EEBLARIEEN T —ExRERENAL  Eleven families and individuals with special financial needs 307
ARELBAAERE - TERHMIZIF  Two families who faced financial hardship owing to their main 130
2 4 o 5 54 T TE A IR 2 O R B =R breadwinner dying in or being affected by traffic, construction
or other accidents
ERELS The Society of Rehabilitation and Crime Prevention, Hong Kong
IREGEEBTRBEEETERE ARG To support the redevelopment of its halfway house in Shau Kei 239,720
BERBUBEREEETANBEBERN - R Wan and to implement a new service model for marginalised
H=F (EXEATHRBEEXBRE) youth and persons in mental recovery for three years (in addition
to a pilot run of the service for two years)
EEYBTE Christian Action
WEB R EASH I ARFE O To relocate and renovate its headquarters and service centre 84,750
BERBEERE Hong Kong Baptist University
97 [CLAP-TECH | A& 5+& - LR  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 66 73,840
BAEZTHE  BHARTAREA months
ERGHE(EB)ESSERAT Dialogue in the Dark (HK) Foundation Limited
R BEEDHEREISHE - WETABKA  To set up the Dialogue Experiential Place and implement Dialogue 44,420
TR RBEPHESEETE  AB=F Academy programmes for persons with disabilities for three years
BERBEENRER Hong Kong Productivity Council
WIT—I18S ;lz:?jljﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’gﬁ%‘tﬂﬁ&ﬁ | To operate an information technology consultancy service and 34,780
RIEMBENIRFAETE > BHIRF capacity-building programme for NGOs for five years
BEBAR The University of Hong Kong
EITESESSTEMETETHE > AHMEYE  To implement the Jockey Club Self-directed Learning in STEM 30,820
Programme for two and a half years
EBEEY The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation
BT-EREREEEE - BH=F To implement an empowerment project on smart health and 29,370

well-being for older people for three years
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BEBAER The University of Hong Kong

EIHBERESL LB E - BHN+M@ES  To pilot a mindful school culture project for 44 months 27,770

EBEBEYRBKE Hong Kong Christian Service

HITESS [ERFE 25548 BH=F To implement the Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project for 21,280
Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

BRI EHERE The Boys’ and Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

EIT—IBRERSRHA RERSTLVEM  Toimplement a service to empower children and young people 19,470

&E’J%i@i?&&kl‘f’%m %HE?&% RARH=F with special educational needs in the community for three years

NEREESERAT Bo Charity Foundation Limited

TERK %%j%&é; """ I BETHREMES  To operate its community support and meal services project 18,490

BHHRERETE - AH=F for older people in Sham Shui Po, Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan
Districts for three years

EBIBEHE SAHK

WITEBREALTMBRNEERERESERY - BH  To implement a rehabilitation seating service for persons with 18,010

=F physical disabilities for three years

ERBABEARZ((TRREHEERE) The Education University of Hong Kong (HKSAR Chief
Executive’s Community Projects List)

BIT—BRERKREEFTEZHREMR To implement a lifelong learning project for school leavers with 18,000

HKEEETE > RP=F special education needs for three years

BREEY The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong

BITERITEESEERETS  AP=F To implement the Blue Bus Jockey Club Together We Grow 16,970
Project for three years

HEHRERKEH L Christian Family Service Centre

EIT—EANEATMENE=RBRBKZE To carry out a project on third age planning and productive 16,550

ErAstEl RE=F ageing for young-olds for three years

BIFEBERRAR Make a Difference Institute Limited

A?E?T'E'E"Zﬁﬂg,?'\%% [BIFE ] ERIFEEZ  To organise the second phase of the Jockey Club Make a 16,490

atEl . AE=F Difference Social Lab for three years

HERUWEREERES New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association

B MBERE I To renovate its Chuk Yuen Integrated Work Centre for persons 14,870
with disabilities

BRENERANGERRAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited

ABET-—BEEREBEALIBER F&  To set up electronic management systems in its 11 residential 13,930

BEES o care homes for the elderly and persons with disabilities

EBPUKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BIT—IEtEREHSEETZ ) AH=F To implement an integrated care programme for older people in 13,640
the community for three years

EBPYKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

RVESS [ EZHE5E - WEITEEE  To establish the Jockey Club MEL (Monitoring, Evaluation and 13,320

JRENEE - RP=FFT=EA

Learning) Institute Project and implement a certificate training
with mentored practicum for three years and three months

101



CHARITIES TRUST DONATIONS
ZEGRESER

BB/ A

ERANBEKE The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
BHRRAMRUEATMRATBERESL  To fund the development of a mobile tracking system for people 13,030
with dementia
BEBAR The University of Hong Kong
T —ERNEALTMRNE=RREKRE To carry out a project on third age planning and productive 12,950
BFATE > AB=F% ageing for young-olds for three and a half years
EALERBEHE The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EM2019R 2020 F LRV FELE SRS To organise the Gerontech and Innovation Expo & Summit 2019 12,850
and 2020
EREAEEEERAPL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
RENNESHE2HRESFHOETERE  Tofit out and equip a new Healthy Ageing Centre in Kwai Tsing 12,840
REBEXRE
RE=Px Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
WAT—TEUBMN AW E(LEEEZ - To implement a dementia care programme, including art 12,810
BHI=F interventions, for three years
EBBEASHE((THRRELEERGE) Hong Kong Playground Association (HKSAR Chief Executive’s
Community Projects List)
FMSISTEISEE - IRMHREAZ L EIERRIE To install age-friendly and barrier-free facilities in Southorn Stadium 12,490
FERHEERE New Life Psychiatric Rehabilitation Association
HITEREBHAERE  A=F To implement a mindfulness education programme for three years 12,320
BRI EHRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
ETESE[EGFHERE AH=F To implement the Jockey Club “Coding for our Future” 12,170
Programme for three years
HEHREREH L Christian Family Service Centre
T —ELEEE  BBERKSEHELHL  To implement a community programme to support at-risk 11,780
ERNEZEERERMUIERYE  AHNE families moving into new public rental housing estates in Sham
Shui Po District for four years
EBHAE Caritas - Hong Kong
BTAEEEERETE — BLHRREE  To carry out the Caritas Jockey Club Project Cedar - Social and 11,460
XERY > RE=F Emotional Support Service for Men for three years
ERFHBENELSRBE PO Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre
HITEEZ =R « AT 518 AH=F To implement the Jockey Club Kinship Support Project for three years 10,680
PREEHS St. James’ Settlement
WMERMHINERS  ARCERERHER  To extend its mobile services for older people with dementia 10,010
BEERMIE AH=F and to provide carer support for three years
RE=fR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BT EEEERERFEENTE - To carry out a three-year project to improve parent-child 10,010
RE=F relationships for families in need
ERHTEERRAT Fullness Social Enterprises Society Limited
BiTEETYRdENREEEINE B To develop and implement the Jockey Club Fullness Social 9,950

BH=Ey

Impact Measurement Coaching Scheme on Monitoring,
Evaluation and Learning practices for three and a half years
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RE=RR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BTEES BNl XE:TE - AH=F To implement Jockey Club Project COMPASS for young 9,390
people with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder and autism
spectrum disorder for three years
BREABHEEXHEERAT Principal Chan Free Tutorial World Limited
CEHBEFEAAEFERREPOLREINE  To operate its Jockey Club Tai Kok Tsui Talent Development 9,360
¥ET - AHI=F Centre and develop specialised volunteers for three years
IHERERRREEERAT FTU Employment Development Services Limited
EME SRR B S B AR A O To refurbish the Causeway Bay Vocational Training Centre 9,260
EB GRS Hong Kong PHAB Association
BITEES [FRER ] PEEXESE - A To carry out the Jockey Club “Strike Back” Support Project for 9,160
H=F Stroke Survivors for three years
BEERRSE Jockey Club CADENZA Hub
EMARMARLET —ERRERALM  Toimplement a frailty prevention programme for older people for 9,070
Eﬁﬂ’ﬁfﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ AH=%  Wi%74EE three years in New Territories East and North, and to support the
FBIHEFNIE B 4 THE co-ordination of its protocol development and project evaluation
EBELAERAGEERAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
1T %Zﬁ#@mﬁﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ¥1§}§i§<ﬁﬁﬁ%§ﬂ@§% To implement the Jockey Club “Drug Free, with Love” Family 9,040
SRS « EX|XEXESE AH=F Support Project for children and families of substance abusers
for three years
EREAHEE The Hong Kong Society for the Blind
AEESEMEARERETEEIR To carry out repair work at the Jockey Club Tuen Mun Home for 8,930
the Aged Blind
M Z=X Harmony House Limited
BT —ExZ2 U REEIRENE To implement Project HE@T for male victims of domestic 8,700
+ . BE=%F violence for three years
EBHRERE O Christian Family Service Centre
ETESSMRET RS Al=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing for 8,530
three years
ERERnE Hong Kong PHAB Association
BIT—EAEREKREZRENTENTRE/B  To carry out an employment support project for young 8,470
EEREATMROMESES - BHI=F  people with specific learning difficulties and attention-deficit/
hyperactivity disorder for three years
EmBBRERAT Suicide Prevention Services Limited
WEBRTRINEEESSHEBEGRI THE  Tocontinue and enhance the Jockey Club “Life Cherishing” Project 8,290
FE[EB4alita BE=F for three years under the Jockey Club Embrace Life Series
EBEEHREKE Hong Kong Christian Service
RBIEZSFMET—EREXERMLERRE  Toimplement afamily empowerment and community development 8,200
iTE . AEI=F project at On Tai Estate in Kwun Tong for three years
EBEBHRLEFE Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
RERKBRITETLZSEEEREEEITE  To set up and operate the YWCA Jockey Club Community 8,190

g BH=%

Support Network for SEN Children in Tin Shui Wai for three years
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ESEEEE Jockey Club Centre for Positive Ageing

HITESKE{CEATHEE - AH=F To implement the Dementia Caring Communities Campaign for 8,110
three years

EBEBHRLEFE Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association

WITZEEEESRES (M 2iikst2 » BH  To organise the YWCA Jockey Club Joyful Transition with 7,810

=FF Families Project for three and a half years

BEEBKRE The University of Hong Kong

BITESSERNEE - BEmE To carry out the Jockey Club Kindling Active Kids Project for 7,690
students with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder for two years

EREAEEEERAPL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre

BENLSRETESS [HBXEIZERE  To implement phase two of the Jockey Club Sunshine Project: 7,470

REBXERE  AH=F Community Support Service for Sub-divided Flat Residents in
Kwai Tsing for three years

EREBERES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated

BEERKSEBEEZX To renovate its Sham Shui Po Homeless Shelter 7,250

ERAWmBEHEAERA T Hong Kong Wheelchair Aid Service Limited

ﬂﬂkﬁﬂﬁi%%ﬁiﬁ NephWHEITEESZERS  To renovate its training centres and implement the Jockey Club 7,220

EwatEl =F Wheelchair Repairing Service for the Elderly for three years

EBEREAENE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

WIT—BANEALIMRNWE=ZRIREIRE To carry out a project on third age planning and productive 7,150

ﬁﬁﬁf‘% &8 AHi=F ageing for young-olds for three years

BRI ERRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

WTEDLTEESEHNRTE X BH=F To implement the Blue Bus Jockey Club Together We Grow 7,140
Project for three years

BEAERAF Dreams Possible Limited

EIT—BAM=T=@AMNE - AKEM  To launch the Butterfly Magician Programme to improve the life 7,130

BEREENAE outcomes of ex-substance abusers for 33 months

ERFHHENGEERBEH O Aberdeen Kaifong Welfare Association Social Service Centre

WIT—HEHANEATIMBRNE=ZRRER To carry out a project on third age planning and productive 6,800

ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ‘l'% RE=F ageing for young-olds for three years

ERAYERRES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

HWITEESS [ BE50+ | RSB TARTS - To implement Jockey Club Refocusing Love 50+ for retired 6,780

%%T&E WE’E%E%T%?J*E/EE'JRE%{E couples facing family life crises for three years

EBERnE Hong Kong PHAB Association

ETESSHRFRMETE  A8=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing Project 6,320
for three years

EBHBRERLERE The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong

MEARERESSHBEMAITHWESS To enhance and broaden the Jockey Club Life-Connect 6,280

TR BBERE  AH=F

Resource Network for three years under the Jockey Club
Embrace Life Series
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EBEEBHLEFE Hong Kong Young Women’s Christian Association
HTEESHRT RIS A=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing Project 6,230
for three years
BERTESSERAR WEDO GLOBAL Foundation Limited
WIT B ERELEFIFE - $ZHIFEE  To organise a three-year programme to enhance the cultural 6,080
o AHI=F intelligence of young people with the aim of nurturing young leaders
THABEEEZESHRAA Yuen Long Town Hall Management Committee Limited
BOSXETHBEIERERATEREMNT  To carry out the Yuen Long Town Hall Jockey Club “Growth 5,930
PAEEEEE [ | KEMTE - BH=F Journey” Project to support disadvantaged families and children
with special needs in Yuen Long District for three years
EEYERCERSHEREI Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong
ETESSLRT RS AH=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing Project 5,910
for three years
BERRLPOHEERAT Hong Kong Federation of Women’s Centres Limited
A -—BARBARENFLMRMNERER  To implement an entrepreneurship incubation and community- 5,810
EERITEARTIEHEE > BEP=F based work opportunities programme for women from low-
income families for three years
HRZEESERAA La Violet Charity Foundation Limited
HTEES [ SETHEMA | RIZ5TE - B To implement the Jockey Club “Life Beyond Routine” Dream 5,600
H=F Project for three years
BEBARE The University of Hong Kong
WIT—IEEZEABSEELEE - AH=F To implement a community programme to provide emergency 5,330
care for the elderly for three years
EREEY The Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation
ENERET-EBBRFRALTMRMNFER  Toimplement a frailty prevention programme for older people in 5,310
REFE > AE=F Kowloon East for three years
HEHPFERERD Happy-Retired Charity Action
ET—ERNEALTMRNE=RREKRE To carry out a project on third age planning and productive 5,210
BFATTE > AH=%F ageing for young-olds for three years
EREEHS St. James’ Settlement
EREBHIT-HARFRATMRMNFER  To implement a frailty prevention programme for older people 5,150
REE RH=F on Hong Kong Island for three years
EBULEREHS The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
RIS ET HEHEER ] SEiTE - & To implement a pilot programme in Sham Shui Po to improve 5,050
=% livelihoods through modular social housing for three years
HENGE The Samaritans
ETESERBEDRITHRERIEBR  Toimplementan elderly suicide prevention support programme for 4,990
RZEE > RE=F three years under the Jockey Club Embrace Life Series
HEHRERKEF O Christian Family Service Centre
To provide emergency support for older people and their carers 4,890

{’Eg—ﬁ%%&@ﬁ?ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ » B

for three years
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EBHEKRE The Education University of Hong Kong
HABEEEAEREFHBEENI TR To develop scales to measure the generic skills of students and 4,870
WEETBIREB LT E - BEI=F young people with intellectual disabilities and to conduct an
independent evaluation of the project for three years
BEBARE The University of Hong Kong
AERLTEESEHNRITEMER LM To provide support to develop a service model for the Blue 4,830
AE=F¥ Bus Jockey Club Together We Grow Project and to conduct an
independent project evaluation for three and a half years
ERREENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong
ETRMEIRERET - EHENREREER To carry out renovation work and an IT infrastructure project 4,600
EEHE Caritas - Hong Kong
HTESSHRTAME > AB=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing Project 4,600
for three years
RE=RR Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
BT —ERNEALMRNE=RREKRE  To carry out a project on third age planning and productive ageing 4,600
EmAstE AE=F for young-olds for three years
EEBEAIRRES The Hong Kong Joint Council of Parents of the Mentally
Handicapped
HEIREREATRAEKRMRN EE2[HERE  Toimplement the Jockey Club Support and Training Project for 4,530
TIXERIGETE > BE=F Persons with Intellectual Disabilities for three years
e elF e HRAT Fantastic Dream Limited
ETESS[SKREERE | T2 A%  To implement the Jockey Club “WeAsk” Youth Project for two 4,500
ME years
Kttt E The Salvation Army
HTESSHIMHM RS A=F To implement the Jockey Club Place for Healthy Ageing Project 4,380
for three years
KKEFHEERRA A Tin Shui Wai Women Association Limited
BIT—EARKBEREMRMWHLERES  Toimplement a neighbourhood support project for older people 4,230
2 AHI=F in Tin Shui Wai for three years
ERARHEARAT Hong Kong Women Development Association Limited
BT EALEREMEZNEEREE - To implement a neighbourhood support project for older people 4,190
AH=F in North District for three years
FHEEAEYSEEERZER The Church of Christ in China Mongkok Church Kai Oi School
XERSIRETHEESEMRMILERES  To support the development and delivery of a generic skills training 3,940
AIARERAE - MR HEMEIAEMIRTT - B curriculum for students with intellectual disabilities, including
H=%F teacher training and hardware enhancement, for three years
CareER Association Limited CareER Association Limited
WITEES REE | BEEREE - AHME  To implement the Jockey Club Thriving Grass Career 3,860
Development Programme for higher education students with
disabilities for two years
KEE Fu Hong Society
EITHAEBALTMRN HEZBRIEEHE  To implement the “Be My Friend” social inclusion project for 3,850

T8 BM=F

people with intellectual disabilities for three years
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Empathy for the Elderly

Empathy for the Elderly

BTESES[E2E4 | B5:TE8 - AHH=%  To implement the Jockey Club “A Tale of Two Generations” 3,710
Theatre Project for three years

EREEHES St. James’ Settlement

ETEEMEREATHESE > BE=F To implement the Dementia Caring Communities Campaign for 3,500
three years

BERAE Caritas - Hong Kong

ETESEERGEE  AUNE To carry out the Jockey Club Kindling Active Kids Project for 3,270
students with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder for two years

HEE Heep Hong Society

ETESSERNEE AHWmF To carry out the Jockey Club Kindling Active Kids Project for 3,270
students with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder for two years

EBIBEHE SAHK

HITESSERNKEE - BEmE To carry out the Jockey Club Kindling Active Kids Project for 3,270
students with attention-deficit/hyperactivity disorder for two years

PEEEHSEIEER The Church of Christ in China Kei Shun Special School

TERTRETEES(EFESHR |/ EE5  To carry out the Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project for 3,150

2 RE=F Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

EENBE=R Hong Chi Pinehill No.3 School

TERHRETESS (SFESE ] 2E  To carry out the Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project for 3,150

2 RE=F Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

REERBR(BAF)ER Po Leung Kuk Anita L.L. Chan (Centenary) School

TEXRIRETEES[EFTE | EBET  To carry out the Jockey Club Experiential Learrning Project for 3,150

2 RE=F Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

REBEKETER Po Leung Kuk Law’s Foundation School

TERIRETEES [EFESE | EHst  To carry out the Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project for 3,150

2 RE=F Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

REBRBBNEBERER Po Leung Kuk Mr & Mrs Chan Pak Keung Tsing Yi School

YEXRIRETEES[EFETE | EB5T  To carry out the Jockey Club Experiential Learning Project for 3,150

2 AH=F Students with Special Educational Needs for three years

HEEkR Pok Oi Hospital

BIT—EAEAMLEEMENEEXEST  Toimplement a neighbourhood support project for older people 3,060

2 RE=F in South Lantau for three years

memEs The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

HENEFEET-BRABFRATMRMNER  Toimplement a frailty prevention programme for older people in 2,760

REE RHME Kowloon West for two years

RE=Pr Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

EMRAAET-EDBRFRALTMRMFER  Toimplement a frailty prevention programme for older people in 2,740

RETE REWE New Territories West for two years

B — FLUBRERKZERAA Teen’s Key - Young Women Development Network Limited

EITESESRELZETHE AB=F To implement the Jockey Club Teen’s Key “Walk with Girls” 2,670

Project for three years
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Org

The Incorporated Management Committee of Shun Tak
Fraternal Association Yung Yau College

#47 [CLAP-TECH | B 5T& - IR  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 2,040
BEZTHE  AHESF five years
DMSHW Education Foundation Limited DMSHW Education Foundation Limited
#47 [CLAP-TECH | 55t &l - LlHE  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 2,020
BEZTHK ARRSE five years
BREREIERES The Incorporated Management Committee of Pak Kau College
17 [CLAP-TECH | B # {5t &| - LIAR  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 1,960
BEZTHE  AHESF five years
ERATEERLZENE Women’s Welfare Club Western District, Hong Kong
BT EHATHAEREMRMWEEXES  Toimplement a neighbourhood support project for older people 1,950
2 RE=F in Central and Western District for three years
BIERLESBRAT AIDS Concern Foundation Limited
RIY—BESLEMRERSLFEEEMNMA To buid a youth-friendly sexual health and youth-led sex 1,900
AstEl REWE education programme for two years
HEFRIOMNTFBZIERES The Incorporated Management Committee of Lok Sin Tong Yu

Kan Hing Secondary School
#47 [CLAP-TECH | B 5T& - LR  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 1,870
BEZTHE  AHESF five years
ERAEFEABEEPELERES The Incorporated Management Committee Of Hong Kong Red

Swastika Society Tai Po Secondary School
#47 [CLAP-TECH | B =X 5t& - LR  To fund the CLAP-TECH learning pathway pilot project for 1,790
BEZTHE  AHESF five years
ERABVFIEZEEEREAELSER Hong Kong Juvenile Care Centre Chan Nam Cheong Memorial

School
HWITERERELLESTE  AHi=5F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,680
BFBIAGE Helping Hand
ARBABEEAEBRDPLEBR -GN+ IR  To replace a 49-seater coach at the Cheung Muk Tau Holiday 1,560
[Elat Centre for the Elderly
REBHEERSR Po Leung Kuk Yao Ling Sun College
WITEHERE LT ERE - AF=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,460
EETHhE St. Mark’s School
EITHEBEREXLEERE » A=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,430
EBERHEEMEG/NE Hong Kong Taoist Association Shun Yeung Primary School
ETHEBEREN LSS RE=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,400
EAEEENE Sheng Kung Hui Kei Fook Primary School
ETHEBREN LSS RE=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,360
EENEHIASERRLSHE The THKSYCIA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
ETHBREN LB S BE=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,360
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EREREHHEHRAZER

HHCKLA Buddhist Chan Shi Wan Primary School

ETHBERENLEELE - BE=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 1,110

EBRLEINE Hong Kong Women Workers’ Association

REERTALREEMRNEEXEE 0 To implement a community support project for female carers in 779

AE+N\@EAR Kwun Tong for 18 months

HEREER Caritas Mother Teresa School

WITEHERESML L E S AR=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 730

REEEREER Tung Wan Mok Law Shui Wah School

HWITEHERESML L ERE - AR=F To pilot a mindful school culture project for three years 630

THHREZESERESR-O—N\/—IhEENEEEETSHESR The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

g i EN from the Trust for 2018/19

EE® Hong Chi Association

BRI EM B EILUEIMERE A THMERS To fund its Enhancing Employability of People with Intellectual 3,000
Disabilities through Social Enterprise Projects

ERAYEBRRES The Hong Kong Catholic Marriage Advisory Council

BUHXSRBRRETE To fund its Family Mediation Service Project 3,000

BERELSHE Hong Kong Playground Association

BYH[FEZE |53 To fund its Unusual Academy 3,000

FRHRE Mother’s Choice Limited

BOHEIMER S ERKE To fund its Pregnant Girls Services 3,000

RE=Pr Tung Wah Group of Hospitals

BEEB 7 EEBEERE To fund its Parent-Child Interaction Therapy (PCIT) Service 2,893

it B The Salvation Army

BOWEIER KRB REXERE To fund its Family-friendly Community-based Project 2,817

M2 XK Harmony House Limited

BYHE BROa ] 58 To fund its Moving Forward Against Domestic Violence Project 2,792

E R Adventure-Ship Limited

BEES EEFEBHAE To fund its Nautical Adventure Life Education Project 2,696

Bl E B ERR A F Make a Difference Institute Limited

BOWHESSE ‘AITE" 2k To fund its Jockey Club Make A Difference School 2,645

ERREENE Arts with the Disabled Association Hong Kong

B H ST 2 To fund its Inclusive Arts Project 2,645

EWmBGRERAT Suicide Prevention Services Limited

BYWHE E5RT] IINERERE To fund its Outreach Befriending Service for the suicidal elderly 2,410

ERBEEFE Hong Kong Sea Cadet Corps

BBV E RO IR ETE To fund its Core Training Programmes 2,357

DHEAREBEERERAT The Ebenezer School and Home for the Visually Impaired Limited

BB HERFE 4h BB T ERTE To fund its Early Intervention Programme for Visually-Impaired 2,228

Children
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EBATFE Hong Kong Red Cross

BWHEA+FEFREMRIIREZRETE To fund its Red Cross Youth Leaders & Trainers Development 2,185
Project

BERRBPAGES Hong Kong Blind Union

BYH[EESZE ]38 To fund its E-Learning For All Project 2,096

EREAHES The Hong Kong Society for the Blind

BEHEREA T REZRF O To fund its Family Resource Centre for the Visually Impaired 2,078

BEBEREAENE The Hong Kong Society for the Aged

BEEMRE N — REREMES To fund its Elder-Friendly Employment Practice 2,007

IEREBEZBEIFENS Association for Engineering & Medical Volunteer Services

BYHEHERRE &R To fund its Information Technology Solutions for Rehabilitation project 1,802

EEYERCERELERBE Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong

BB H R To fund its Kwai Chung Care Network 1,800

HEE Heep Hong Society

EYHEREREBE RIS EBRE To fund its Outside School Support Service for students with 1,771
special education needs and their families

BRBERERRS Parents’ Association of Pre-School Handicapped Children

BEE[RE - K2 - 1ERE 518 To fund its HOPE - Parents’ Networking Project 1,732

BEFEAR The Friends of Scouting

BOHEHM KPR — BEERITE To fund its Know the Future — Non-engaged Youth Counselling 1,680
Scheme

4 TREATS

BERERBLVEAMBAERERTE To fund its Social Inclusion Project for Children and Youth in 1,550
Hong Kong

BERLEEHRE The Hong Kong Girl Guides Association

BWHERBELAREERE | BRARGE To fund its Intergenerational Responsible Citizenship Project 1,532

ERNIRETEESSE The Outward Bound Trust of Hong Kong Limited

BEHEEERELTE To fund its Second Chance Project 1,511

ERRERMNE Hong Kong Family Welfare Society

BYWHERBZAIFH R E To fund The Bridge to Competence Project 1,450

BRAEBEREHEFO Holy Carpenter Church Community Centre

B HEEN T EBREKETE To fund its Human Re-engineering Project for Building a Better 1,437
Community

FFtEFREERRARE Against Child Abuse Limited

BBWHE £ 255 | REFHTE To fund its Healthy Start Home Visiting Project 1,369

i L= The Comfort Care Concern Group

BB EFERETE To fund its Comfort Care and Support for the Bereaved Service 1,365
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EASENBREBHEREHO

SKH St Joseph’s Church and Social Centre

BEHE [mELTE ] To fund its ARISE lIl Project 1,284

ERMBAGERLEARE The Samaritan Befrienders Hong Kong

BEIER I BB AT E To fund its Suicide Prevention Education Project 1,250

KEE Fu Hong Society

BOHEHKERE S To fund its Casa Famiglia Project 1,240

HEHRERBEF O Christian Family Service Centre

BEHERRETETE To fund its Grand Generations Bridging Project 1,207

China Coast Community Limited China Coast Community Limited

BOHES GRS REEBNR K& E To fund its subsidy package for Comprehensive Social Security 1,137
Allowance recipients

EEAFT Caritas — Hong Kong

BBE (48 E1T | 518 To fund its professional support services for children with 1,122
attention deficit and hyperactivity disorder and their families

ZREEEERDT Hans Andersen Club Limited

BYWHEBAETERNR]FE To fund its Sunshine Community in Tai O 1,100

HeE Sik Sik Yuen

BYWHEELm e REFHK]GE To fund its Cherish Our Life: Enhancing Psychological Well- 1,092
being of Elders project

EBRERES Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children

BYWHEIE K- 2] 5288 IV To fund its Whole Learning Project (Phase IV) 1,086

EREBRLERBE International Social Service (Hong Kong Branch)

BYHE[ANRT — R ERE] 52 To fund its Support Project for Families with Young Kids 979

EEAE Chung Sing Benevolent Society

BEE [ BEL4HE | KEETTE To fund its Elderly Lifelong Learning Project 840

ERERMGAALEGS The Hong Kong Down Syndrome Association

EEER 4| 2 — ERRESZERS To fund its “SHARE Project” — A comprehensive support service 783
for families of children with Down Syndrome

EEERNMESETESL Jockey Club Cheung Chau Don Bosco Youth Centre

BWHEHERSFRTHESIIHE To fund its Adventure Based Counselling Programme for Youth 745
in Hong Kong

ERRETEEES The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong

BOHEHTEHHEE To fund its Community Level Sex Education Programme 741

fFiEEEE Pneumoconiosis Mutual Aid Association

BOHEHMEEREE T EBERERKE To fund its community rehabilitation service for pneumoconiosis 690
patients and their family members

EREERES Street Sleepers’ Shelter Society Trustees Incorporated

BOWHEFEBEZX To fund its Wanchai Homeless People Shelter 595

Nt (L EIRES) Sub-total (Community Services) 1,851,431
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Organisation/Purpose

Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

BEET [ BSSHME TR HE I5t8 - Toextendthe Trust-initiated Project “InnoPower@JC: Fellowship 142,000
ERFRESIHNEHEALSE Programme for Teachers and Social Workers” to five more
cohorts for six years
BERBEERE Hong Kong Baptist University
BRERENDLERER To support part of the construction costs for the Campus of 452,000
Creativity
EBPYKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
WIT—EPREEATIREHBTE A% To implement the Artificial Intelligence Education for Junior 59,980
=% Secondary Schools Project for three years
EBPUKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
fﬁﬁ}% H=FEFZ=AAMNEES [RKREXZx] Toimplementthe Jockey Club “Diversity at Schools” Project for 30,980
=t &l three years and three months
BEPIKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
HITERS [BE4ES] BREIEEIHES  Toimplement the Jockey Club VR Project for Enhancing Chinese 23,340
g REI=F¥ Language Literacy for three and a half years
EBAYFEREEERE Hong Kong Red Swastika Society Tai Po Secondary School
i&ﬁj{% H=FEZ=-EAMNEES [KREXZx] Toimplementthe Jockey Club “Diversity at Schools” Project for 21,800
st three years and three months
BEBHPUKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong
ETHERREASHAESETS - AH=  To implement its Community Care and STEM in Action Project 20,140
FE=@A for three years and three months
REERIREBR Tung Wan Mok Law Shui Wah School
XEBHEEENREMELRNE - WETRM  To support facilities enhancement at its reprovisioned school 15,050
SENBSE [HBEHD 518 — REEE  premises and implement the Jockey Club “Arts & Action”
HESER [ BEAR] Project — Tung Wan Mok Law Shui Wah School “Growth Power”
for three years
BEBAER The University of Hong Kong
fﬁﬁ}% H=FEFT=-AAMNEES [KRAEXZx] Toimplementthe Jockey Club “Diversity at Schools” Project for 14,900
=t &l three years and three months
HERKEERATR EDiversity Limited
BRI [ e £l o ] KA&E2.0° AH=F To fund the “Learning by Doing” Academy 2.0 project for three years 13,590
BEEBKRE The University of Hong Kong
WITEESRE (] AL:E . Af=5 To implement the Jockey Club Coding for the Community 11,370
Project for three years
EHmEMEERR AT The Absolutely Fabulous Theatre Connection Company
Limited
ETERSS [HEHH 58 — FHMEWN  To implement the Jockey Club “Arts & Actions” Project — The 10,690

SEE08E| HPO+TEA

Absolutely Fabulous Theatre Connection “Arts for Empowerment”
for 44 months
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BEBHPUKRE The Chinese University of Hong Kong

WITEES [FERE | £EHE ) BHMEE  To implement the Jockey Club “Flipped Learning” Pilot Project 8,890
for two and a half years

REZRARATR Tung Wah College Limited

AEESRREEEE]REREBERE To purchase equipment for its Jockey Club Nursing Clinical 8,180
Simulation Training Laboratory

EBISGRE Hong Kong Baptist University

HWITESS [PENE | K542 BEAMEY  To implement the Jockey Club “Flipped Learning” Pilot Project 8,110
for two and a half years

SRHTIEEE N Asbury Methodist Primary School

WITAH=FEZ=HAMNEES [RAEZx] Toimplementthe Jockey Club “Diversity at Schools” Project for 6,900

=T &l three years and three months

AR BRIEARES The Incorporated Management Committee of Caritas Mother
Teresa School

SEEFREELRE  URETHH=F  To support facilities enhancement at its new school premises 4,260

NWESS rﬁﬁﬁiﬂ “fiJ HE%M%E*?C and to implement the Jockey Club “Arts & Actions” Project —

[ RIER Caritas Mother Teresa School “Glow, Grow, Go” for three years

BERLOFEZBBRRAT Fair Trade Hong Kong Foundation Limited

1T 301 9-2022 FEMEEEATFEZER  Toimplement the Jockey Club Fair Trade School Award Scheme 3,690

KR A 2019-2022

RE=RERIAPE Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Fung Ling College

ETRE=RERATL2EFEMAKER+A]  To scale up the TWGHs Wong Fung Ling College Jockey Club 3,240

RE o AH=F MAKER+ Innovative Curriculum for three years

THMBESEREER=-0O— /- "EENEEETEHES The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

BhEt 81 from the Trust for 2018/19

REH L EEERBDOLERAF The Conservancy Association Centre for Heritage Limited

BhHESSHR AR ELEETE To fund the Jockey Club Cultural Heritage Community 1,805
Integration Scheme

BB IERRE Agency for Volunteer Service

BEEEEAFZTHRFE To fund its Volunteer Talent Bank 1,715

BB RRBERAF AFS Intercultural Exchanges Limited

BBV E AFSBIFR 3L 337 : BNt &l To fund the AFS Intercultural Exchanges Sending Programme 1,497

EEAXRIEEE Hong Kong Parent Education Association

BOHE[VERE | RRHYAE To fund its “Family Embrace” Parent Education Programme 1,382

EEHE SR E Life Education Activity Programme

BBHEERB B RE To fund its Special Needs Programme 661

B ERA TGS Direction Association for the Handicapped

BBEEHmHE - RXRELA] 58 To fund its Hopeful Life Project 593

N (HBE RIEF) Sub-total (Education and Training) 866,763
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BRABRRBEERAR Business Environment Council Limited
R/ NEEIT —TEERGEEBTTE - A% To implement the BEAM Plus in Schools Project in primary and 74,160
=FF secondary schools for three and a half years
BRETIAZ(ITRRELSELTE) The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (HKSAR Chief
Executive’s Community Projects List)
BEHE [T 4 | TEERBRAE To conduct a project development study into the construction 68,170
of a green deck
BEBARER The University of Hong Kong
ET—EYHESEFRINERSE > BE=  To implement an outreach dental service for kindergarten 55,750
FH¥ children for three and a half years
ERENHRELE Hong Kong St John Ambulance
AHERBEVNBEMNTXEESHEIRE  Toprocure and install automated external defibrillators and provide 53,460
2 URRMIZIFE  AH=F training programmes for social service units for three years
REH The Conservancy Association
ARKS @R — M0 - EE—  To establish an urban forestry centre in Sham Shui Po District 38,660
IE%:I:E%ZF“I’EH’EE%FH*&WF REAMEF and launch a community-based programme to promote the
conservation of urban forests for two and a half years
KB RIHERA R CarbonCare InnoLab Limited
ETESSAGRERETE To launch the Jockey Club SolarCare Project 23,700
BEBAE The University of Hong Kong
WITEZREBREESMEK o HAstE - B8  To implement Phase Il of the Jockey Club Water Initiative on 17,970
=fF Sustainability and Engagement Project for three years
EREIKRE The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
WIT—ETEUREEENST LV EREMES  To implement a project to help school children with adolescent 17,950
ﬁﬂﬁ' 558 - BHIE idiopathic scoliosis for four years
TEER Kowloon Hospital
R —Fr A BARE REH O To set up an Integrated Rehabilitation Day Centre 17,800
BERA+FE Hong Kong Red Cross
A EREEMIRMHEBEINRBESEIEH| 0 To provide automated external defibrillation training to social 17,690
RE=F service units for three years
EREHESS Hong Kong Kidney Foundation Ltd
BB 200 A B ENRARETHE To acquire 200 automated peritoneal dialysis machines 16,800
EEE Hong Chi Association
EHEBARERZERGRERS To install solar power systems at all of its special schools 15,160
ERBEEARE Hong Kong Baptist University
WAT-HPPEEREEA  MHEE - EM  Toimplement the Chinese Herb-drug Interaction: Knowledge 12,650
RARHETE > AH=F Generation, Application and Public Education Project for
three years
BRENERANGERRAT Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
BITREFZGEMEIEE  AB=F To implement a community paediatric palliative project for 12,020

three years
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BREHNERRAA

Green Power Limited

EMBEES[SKKBARIZHEE ) LMRE  To organise Jockey Club Fluvial Liveliness of Water Gathering 7,830
KEREKE Grounds (JC-FLOW), a conservation project for reservoirs and
water gathering grounds
PREEHS St. James’ Settlement
WMECERRREBERESALESEDL A To continue the operation and development of its Jockey Club 7,500
H=F Upcycling Centre for three more years
ERRCEEZEERLT Hong Kong Green Building Council Limited
RERBFZBZIHET » REFEEFEI  To develop green building training kits and carry out educational 6,800
B RIREHERE programmes as part of the BEAM Plus in Schools Project
ERRRIHIHBEERAF BEAM Society Limited
E"ﬁhfﬁ?ﬁrfﬁ& EIT  EBHMEREMR  Tooversee the preparation of a new green building assessment 5,880
REERFTLHFMERI/E - WHEEBRIER  manual for schools and to undertake independent assessment
MR EERETE M T of certification submissions from schools as part of the BEAM
Plus in Schools Project
BEEARATR Regeneration Society Limited
& Centre renovation 5,820
REAGREHEEEESEERLT The Nature Conservancy Hong Kong Foundation Limited
EMUFBLEBUSNEFTEILER—1]  To organise the Jockey Club “Ridge to Reef’ Environmental 5,760
BHAEE > BHWE Education Programme for secondary school students for two years
PhEmE(EE8) The Jane Goodall Institute (Hong Kong) Limited
EEBNBEENR HBEFTE2/M-YEE  Toorganise “The Hong Kong Jockey Club Presents — Becoming 5,270
MEMEE ] RE - URERESELHEYE  Jane: Inspiring a Shared Planet” exhibition at the Hong Kong
TEYHEGTE Science Museum and the Jockey Club Jane Goodall Wildlife
Education Programmes
EEBEENS Project Concern Hong Kong
WITHRE T RIRIETE  AB=F To implement a mobile dental services project for three years 4,640
THHEBESERESR-O—/\/—NEENELEEETHESR The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant
BhET BB from the Trust for 2018/19
E B S T R ERS United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service
BhEMERERETE To fund its Community Geriatric Health Maintenance Programme 2,936
EHYBREEBEPLESBRAA Maggie Keswick Jencks Cancer Caring Centre Foundation Limited
BEVE [ LB | B BT E To fund its Emotional & Psychosocial Cancer Support Programme 2,646
BREEY The Society of Rehabilitation & Crime Prevention, Hong Kong
BB E M E To fund its Project OASIS 2,245
ERAESE The Society for the Aid & Rehabilitation of Drug Abusers
BYHREZEHER REE85TE To fund its peer counsellor and internship schemes 2,013
EREAEEEERAPL Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Lady MacLehose Centre
B EPEEFRSEIRBBETE To fund its Chinese Herbs Employment Training and Education 1,350
Programme
EBTAREDD Hong Kong Workers’ Health Centre Limited
BB E RO R 2 R R S L TAERIFTE) To fund its Working Together to Enhance Health and Safety 414
Culture and Workplace Improvement Project
NET(BEFEE) Sub-total (Medical and Health) 503,044
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Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust Initiatives

XIE2019/20FEREARHBEEEEE To cover the 2019/20 Tai Kwun public programmes budget 132,700
201920 FEREEEEE To cover the 2019/20 Tai Kwun operating budget 39,400
EABECIEERESREBEMBBAMERN  Additional advance funding for the recovery of the Married 15,800
MR HATR IR Inspectors’ Quarters and related services and fees
B A REBITER Tuen Mun Public Riding School
TEHEEAT Y AEESF To support its capital expenditure for five years 93,630
BEBAE Caritas - Hong Kong
BYRNAEZBEERASTREREE IR To renovate the Caritas Oi Fai Camp and Caritas Ka Fai House 80,000
in Cheung Chau
EREMBER Hong Kong Arts Development Council
ERAERXMBMEIMBENESSTEEH  To organise the “Jockey Club New Arts Power” programme for 53,800
2n]7E8 - LAR2019/20 ~ 2020/21 %  home-grown artists, as well as community outreach activities, in
2021/22 FENHEBINEEE 2019/20, 2020/21 and 2021/22
FEEEERENS Hong Kong, China Rowing Association
EERBERUEPAEREP ETIEERIR Supplementary grant for the Sha Tin Rowing Centre extension 52,230
project
B Elhaine Playright Children’s Play Association
REBREBL  BEIRIBLRERGER  Toorganise the “Jockey Club P.LAY. - Play, Leisure, Arts and 32,630
ERER [ BEESBESELET] B+ =  You” project at the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital, Prince of
H Wales Hospital and Tseung Kwan O Hospital for 62 months
RREHELSES Elite Athlete Charitable Trust
HITESSHRAREFZIAREESHRME  To run the Jockey Club Active School Programme and Jockey 32,440
TE - ARE=F Club Active Community Programme for three years
5B F PN RERIT AR Lei Yue Mun Public Riding School
TEHHEARTH  BHEF To support its capital expenditure for five years 30,210
BERELEHE Hong Kong Playground Association
BTEES [BHEEEAIEEAETE - A%  To organise the Jockey Club Innovative and Adventurous 29,770
=F “Sports for All” Programme for three years
ERTEEEYEFE Chinese YMCA of Hong Kong
BIT-EHBRERNE > AH=F To support the Mapperthon Sports Action Programme for 29,080
three years
HEEAE Lingnan University
SHEEE[E o £ FEHBE - BHPMW  To support the Jockey Club ICH+ Innovative Heritage Education 28,630

Fy

Programme for four and a half years
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ERRRAEE The Hong Kong Tennis Association Limited
EMEESHTMARE  AB=1THEA To organise the Jockey Club Tennis Rocks Programme for 39 27,880
months
B ARKRMER Tuen Mun Public Riding School
FEHE 201920 FEWE B FHE To support its net operating deficits in 2019/20 23,760
EBRERRBHEERAT Riding for the Disabled Association Limited
YEEARRMERETERRRTEIRS  To support its rehabilitative riding programmes and the Junior 20,140
DEERBEMBGTE 3% =4 Para-Equestrian Squad programme at the Public Riding Schools
for three years
BRERLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
1881201920 FERBMETERE[EYE  To fund two major exhibitions in Hong Kong in 2019/20: “A 19,570
R — KEEYEERE MR | M [EHEAK —  History of the World in 100 Objects from the British Museum” and
XOREEENRBEEE | UREMBE  “Inheriting the Culture - the Science and Skill of Conservation”,
£EGHE as well as a pilot “Accessible Art” scheme
BEBRREESERAT The Hong Kong Football Association Limited
1012848 20 1) 2= B AL A S E NEESEBE  Supplementary grant for the completion of the Jockey Club 18,300
HEe EfTqul PO EE TR HKFA Football Training Centre at Tseung Kwan O
MZ2EIEERAR The Nonsensemakers Limited
WIT—ELRMEB AR HBEE > BH  To organise the Inclusive Theatre Public Education Project for 16,900
=+ hfEA 39 months
EBFERERRAR Hong Kong Repertory Theatre Limited
EWEES [ESHEK | RRBBESZEEIET  To organise the Jockey Club “Sing Out” Character Education 16,390
2 AHI=F Musical Project for three years
ERBMBHERRAF Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
#172019/20FE IR | SEBHAMESFE  To organise the “No Limits” Project and the Jockey Club “No 15,000
[\BRES | HEREEIIMNRER Limits” Education and Community Programme in 2019/20
EBEM PO Hong Kong Arts Centre
TRHEFS([E « Al kEHEE > AH To support the Jockey Club ICH+ Innovative Heritage Education 13,910
F¥ Programme for four and a half years
FEEEREAS Hong Kong Rope Skipping Association, China
j\?&ﬁ—lﬁ%&&ﬁ@%ﬁ}&%ﬁ%ﬂ » AR 52 To organise a School and Community Outreach Rope Skipping 12,710
Bk AE R 1ZE 2019 Programme and the Asian Rope Skipping Championships 2019
EHHEMLBRAT Musicus Society Limited
ENESS[HBLEIFE  ARP=F To organise the Jockey Club Musicus Heritage Alive Programme 11,620
for three years
EREMHTHEERAT Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited
HIT2018/19FE[HEPR S |SEHMESSE  To organise the “No Limits” Project and the Jockey Club “No 11,580

[ERS | BB RHEEINEEE

Limits” Education and Community Programme in 2018/19
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EREFENGE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation
ENESS RN BREME - B To organise the Jockey Club “Project Silver” — Intergenerational 11,490
=F¥ Arts Project for three and a half years
BERTPLEERAT Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
ENBEFETL36051E 0 BH=F To organise the Jockey Club Chinese Music 360 Project for 10,950
three years
BB NEBRRE The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong
?%ﬁ)’%ﬁ’ff—iﬁﬁk%j FREFE-REFM To organise the Jockey Club Arts Make SENse Programme for 9,520
RMEBEES (25 SENse 5128 » BHI=%F  young people, including those with special education needs, for
three years
ERTFHEERERAT Street Soccer Hong Kong Limited
BYME]BEGHERRE  Ai=F To fund the “Empower Life through Football” programme for 9,520
three years
B2 AP AR BRI R Lei Yue Mun Public Riding School
HENE 2019/20 FEWNEE FEIE To support its net operating deficits in 2019/20 9,460
EEHESERERRAT Alice Theatre Laboratory Limited
ENEESHEFANERBESEFTE - & To organise the Jockey Club Theatre-in-Education Project — 9,420
H=F Legendary Stories of Chinese Poets for three years
CRHEBRAF Kick It Heart Limited
EMAREMRNEESIHUIEERE - B Toorganise the Jockey Club Happy Senior Football Programme 9,320
H_$ for the elderly for three years
EEIALERERAE Association Culturelle France - Hong Kong Limited
B 2019 F AT A EME To organise Le French May 2019 9,160
BRSO Hong Kong Arts Centre
BITAH—EANBRRRAREMER To organise the “Shall We Play” Public Art Project on mental 8,400
wellbeing for one month
—#EBERAT Yat Po Singers Limited
WIT—EBAREMRMNENFRAIEE A To organise the “Life Enriching A Cappella” Project for the 8,100
H=F elderly for three years
ERANEHEERAR Opera Hong Kong Limited
%gjﬁg%%ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬂ% EIERBRENRZ  To organise the Jockey Club Opera Hong Kong Young Artist 8,030
AstEl AH=%F Development and Education Programme for three years
EREEHES St. James’ Settlement
?’Eﬁ?%ﬁﬁ‘_éﬁﬁ& EEMBRNESE [ AHEZE  To run the Jockey Club “Super Senior, Flash Mob” project for 7,940
% o IREGEY | 518l - BEI=F young-olds and the elderly for three years
BEBATE Caritas - Hong Kong
WIT—EAEEERBRELMBNEMNEE  To implement the “Artskids Studio” art learning programme for 7,260

BE K %H;ﬁ_i

dyslexic students for three years

118



BB/ A

EEERESEERAT Young Artists Development Foundation Limited
EMPBERERELFMRNESFSEES  To organise the Jockey Club Young Artists Development 7,200
EWEtE A=5F Programme for underprivileged children and young people for
three years
AR Passoverdance Limited
ER-—EARESVFRRERTEEAM:E  To organise a dance education programme for youth 7,090
WEBRHETE Z%,Bfﬂfi development and social well-being for three years
EEM D REBRITER Pokfulam Public Riding School
FBIE 201920 FEME EFEIR To support its net operating deficits in 2019/20 7,090
BERLEKE Leisure and Cultural Services Department
EW2019FBBIREFARERERHA T To organise six educational initiatives at the Hong Kong Flower 6,650
Show 2019
WEHREE TEE Tang Shu-wing Theatre Studio Limited
;%;jﬁ%?.ﬁ/ﬁﬂ BHFERNALTMRMNEEFE  To organise a pilot drama programme for persons in custody at 6,620
tél A=+t @A the Lo Wu Correctional Institution for 27 months
EBEFHE The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups
BT EHEFEMHAETE To organise the “Celebrate the Future” youth arts education 5,630
programme
EREAEREAGEERLF Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
EIT—EAERKETEZEREMRMNERE  To implement the “Happy Feet” dance education programme 5,260
?Slﬁ 5TE > AEmT for children with special educational needs for two years
EBEABEAE Hong Kong Blind Sports Federation
BEMBEEAIMBENESEENELESE  Toorganise the Jockey Club Light Up Sports Programme for the 5,250
atEl . ARE=5F visually impaired for three years
EEBAESHASERAT Hong Kong Sports Association of the Deaf Company Limited
%#%%A/ﬁﬁﬁﬂkiﬁ SHWEES[LIBE  To organise the Jockey Club “Building Lives Through Sports” 3,840
B | @ E A %Hﬂﬁfﬁ Programme for the deaf/hearing impaired for two years
DMBEEEPL Asia Society Hong Kong Center
S EY  BEREBR|RERETHE  To stage the “Song of Spring: Pan Yu-Lin in Paris” exhibition 3,690
BAEMHAEE and related art education programmes
EBLARRBESERAT Hong Kong Beijing Association Limited
SEmhEELRERIELBESRETE To stage an exhibition on Chinese calligraphy and related 3,350
education programmes
DMBEEEPL Asia Society Hong Kong Center
ENTBg R BEZRSEMEIRENR  To stage “A World Within: The Art and Inspiration of Irene Chou” 3,190

i e e

exhibition and related art education programmes
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BB FHREE Hong Kong Little League Limited

XEHEMERRS - URETAEEAL  Tosupport the renovation of two baseball fields and to organise 2,590
Mk ETEl a challenger programme for people with disabilities

BEM D REBRITER Pokfulam Public Riding School

YTHEHEEAT Y AHESF To support its capital expenditure for five years 2,280
EBRPARESERLT Blind Sports Hong Kong Limited

EMD/BRBATMRHVEFTE[MIRALEIE  To organise the Jockey Club “Together We Shine” Sports 470
Astél RH—%F Programme for the visually impaired for one year
THHRBESEREESR-O—/\/—hEENEERFELES The following agencies receive The Hong Kong Jockey Club Community Project Grant

BhET &I from the Trust for 2018/19

EBREFEMGE Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation

BYHEEEMTEEMETE To fund the stART Up — Community Arts Project 2,999
MEZRILERAF The Nonsensemakers Limited

BB EHEE R B B SR BB BIET To fund the Hand in Hand Capable Theatre IncluDrama Project 1,737
EBRAIEREMHROERAT Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited

BOHHEESERSEI5ERE To fund its Jockey Club Black Box Theatre Subsidy Scheme 1,651
ERBHRRES Special Olympics Hong Kong

BUHSRSHEANRERETE To fund its Special Olympics Golf Development Project 1,547
EBEFREHE Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association

EYEERES BRHEBTE To fund the Mei Ho House Hong Kong Spirit Learning Project 966
NEHEEE - BERIL) Sub-total (Sports, Recreation and Culture) 1,055,750
ot Total 4,276,988
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